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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D. C. 20549

Form 10-K

™ ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013
OR
O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the transition period from to
Commission file number: 001-35637

ASTA FUNDING, INC.

(Exact Name of Registrant Specified in its Charter)

Delaware 22-3388607
(State or other jurisdiction of (I.R.S. Employer
incorporation or organization Identification No.)
210 Sylvan Avenue, Englewoo 07632
Cliffs, NJ (Zip Code)

(Address of principal executive office
Issuer’s telephone number, including area code: (2) 567-5648
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) dfie Exchange Act:
Title of each Class Name of Exchange on Which Registered
Common Stock, par value $.01 per st NASDAQ Global Select Marke
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) ¢tie Exchange Act: None
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a welbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405edBdturities Act  Yes] No

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuieed to file reports pursuant to Section 13 orti®ecl5(d) of the Act Yes[]
No M

Indicate by check mark whether the registranth@s filed all reports required to be filed by Sewti3 or 15(d) of the Securities &
Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 mofah$or such shorter period that the registrans wegjuired to file such reports), and
(2) has been subject to such filing requirementsHe past 90 days. YeH No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant lasmstted electronically and posted on its corpo¥&eb site, if any, every Interactive
Data File required to be submitted and posted puntsto Rule 405 of Regulation Sdliring the preceding 12 months (or for such shqrégiod
that the registrant was required to submit and posh files). YesM No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquiletrs pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K ($&t29.405 of this chapter) is not
contained herein, and will not be contained, toldbst of the registrant’s knowledge, in definitpm®xy or information statements incorporated
by reference in Part Ill of this Form 10-K or ampendment to this Form 10-K. 4

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlerge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, m-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting
company. See the definitions of “large accelerdited” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reportirmmpany” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange
Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated fileid Accelerated filer M Non-accelerated filer Smaller reporting company
(Do not check if a srealteporting company
Indicate by check mark whether the registrantskell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Acfyes O No M

The aggregate market value of voting and nonvatomgmon equity held by non-affiliates of the registrwas approximately
$89,066,000 as of the last business day of thetragt's most recently completed second fiscal tguar

As of December 3, 2013, the registrant had 12,8B4shares of Common Stock issued and outstan
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Documents incorporated by reference:

Portions of the registrant’'s prosgatement for the 2014 Annual Meeting of Stockhddee incorporated herein by reference in Padf
this Annual Report on Form 10-K to the extent stdterein. Such proxy statement will be filed witle Securities and Exchange Commission
within 120 days of the registré s fiscal year ended September 30, 2(
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Caution Regarding Forward Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains certaimfard-looking statements within the meaning of Bhivate Securities Litigation
Reform Act of 1995. All statements other than stagets of historical facts included or incorpordbgdeference in this Annual Report on F
10-K, including without limitation, statements rediag our future financial position, business &gyt budgets, projected revenues, projected
costs and plans and objectives of management fiorefoperations, are forward-looking statementswiBad-looking statements generally can
be identified by the use of forward-looking ternmigy such as “may,” “will,” “expects,” “intends,”plans,” “projects,” “estimates,”
“anticipates,” or “believes” or the negative thereoany variation there on or similar terminologryexpressions.

We have based these forward-looking statementsipowrent expectations and projections about &uavents. These forward-looking
statements are not guarantees and are subjecvtmnkand unknown risks, uncertainties and assumptiout us that may cause our actual
results, levels of activity, performance or achieeats to be materially different from any futureuks, levels of activity, performance or
achievements expressed or implied by such forwaolihg statements. Important factors which couldemally affect our results and our
future performance include, without limitation, ability to purchase defaulted consumer receivasie@gppropriate prices, changes in
government regulations that affect our ability edlect sufficient amounts on our defaulted consumaeeivables, our ability to employ and
retain qualified employees, changes in the crediapital markets, changes in interest rates, ie&tion in economic conditions, negative
press regarding the debt collection industry whitty have a negative impact on a debtor’s willingrtespay the debt we acquire, and
statements of assumption underlying any of thegireg, as well as other factors set forth undefitlA. Risk Factors” beginning on page 15
of this report and “ltem 7 — Management's Discussiand Analysis of Financial Condition and Resoft®peration” below.

All subsequent written and oral forward-lookingtstaents attributable to us, or persons acting arbehalf, are expressly qualified in
their entirety by the foregoing. Except as requingdaw, we assume no duty to update or revisefamyard-looking statements.
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Part |
ltem 1. Business
Overview

Asta Funding, Inc., together with its wholly owngidnificant operating subsidiaries Palisades Ctted_LC, Palisades Acquisition XV
LLC (“Palisades XVI"), VATIV Recovery Solutions LLCVATIV”), ASFI Pegasus Holdings, LLC (“APH"), Fuh Pegasus, LLC (“Fund
Pegasus”), and other subsidiaries, not all wholyed, and not considered material (the “Company&™or “us”), is primarily engaged in the
business of acquiring, managing, servicing andwegog on portfolios of consumer receivables. Thasfolios generally consist of one or
more of the following types of consumer receivables

» charged-off receivables- accounts that have been written-off by the odgins and may have been previously serviced bgctidin
agencies

» semi-performing receivables accounts where the debtor is currently makindiglaor irregular monthly payments, but the acceunt
may have been writt-off by the originators; an

» Performing receivable— accounts where the debtor is making regular mgméyments that may or may not have been delingunen
the past

A large portion of our distressed consumer recéesmbre MasterCar®dl , Visa and other credit cardaus which were charged-off by
the issuers or providers for non-payment. We aeqghiese and other consumer receivable portfolissladtantial discounts to their face values
The discounts are based on the characteristiagefisaccount size, debtor location and age of dehit)e underlying accounts of each portfolio.

In addition, the Company, owns 80% of Pegasus FgndiLC (“Pegasus”), which invests in funding perabinjury claims.
We operate solely in the United States in one teptr business segment.

Prior to purchasing a portfolio, we perform a qiadive and quantitative analysis of the underlyiegeivables and calculate the purchase
price which is intended to offer us an adequatarnedn our investment after servicing expensesrAgtirchasing a portfolio, we actively
monitor performance and review and adjust our ctibe and servicing strategies accordingly.

We purchase receivables from credit grantors anerstthrough privately negotiated direct saleskémred transactions and auctions in
which sellers of receivables seek bids from sevyamiqualified debt purchasers. We fund portfotla®ugh a combination of internally
generated cash flow and bank debt, if needed.

Our objective is to maximize our return on investiria acquired consumer receivable portfolios. Aesult, before acquiring a portfoli
we analyze the portfolio to determine how to beakimize collections in a cost efficient manner @edide whether to use our internal
servicing and collection department, third-partilemion agencies, attorneys, or a combinationliadhaee options.

When we outsource the servicing of receivables noamagement typically determines the appropriatd-frarty collection agencies and
attorneys based on the type of receivables purdh&smce a group of receivables is sent to thirdypasllection agencies and attorneys, our
management actively monitors and reviews the tharty collection agencies’ and attorneys’ perforogan an ongoing basis. Based on
portfolio performance considerations, our managemdheither (i) move certain receivables from ahéd-party collection agency or attorn
to another or to our internal servicing departmkitanticipates that this will result in an inerge in collections, or (ii) sell portions of the
portfolio accounts. Our internal collection unithieh currently employs approximately 10 collecti@ated staff, including senior managem
assists us in benchmarking our thpdry collection agencies and attorneys, and pesvics with greater flexibility for servicing a pentage o
our consumer receivable portfolios in-house.

We are a Delaware corporation whose principal etkezwoffices are located at 210 Sylvan Avenue, Englod Cliffs, New Jersey 07632.
We were incorporated in New Jersey on July 7, I88#ftwere reincorporated in Delaware on Octobef 295, as the result of a merger with a
Delaware corporation. We were formed as an
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affiliate of Asta Group, Incorporated (the “Famiintity”), an entity owned by Arthur Stern, our Ctméan Emeritus, Gary Stern, our Chairman
President and Chief Executive Officer, and othemimers of the Stern family, to purchase, at a sthsdlount to face value, retail installment
sales contracts secured by motor vehicles. We beeapublic company in November 1995. In 1999, wetakzed on our management’s
almost 50 years of experience and expertise iniaogwand managing consumer receivable portfolasiie Family Entity. As a result, we
ceased purchasing automobile contracts and, wétlaskistance and financial support of the Familjtfgand a partner, purchased our first
significant consumer receivable portfolio. Sincerththe Family Entity ceased acquiring consumegivable portfolios and, accordingly, does
not compete with the Company.

Industry Overview

The purchasing, servicing and collection of chargBdsemi-performing and performing consumer reables is an industry that is
driven by:

* increasing levels of consumer de
* increasing defaults of the underlying receivabéex]
* increasing utilization of thi-party providers to collect such receivab

Strategy

Although we are in a challenging economic period an enhanced regulatory environment, our primbjgative remains to utilize our
management’s experience and expertise by idengifygmaluating, pricing and acquiring consumer nesidgle portfolios and maximizing
collections of such receivables in a cost efficimanner. Our strategies include:

* managing the collection and servicing of our consuraceivable portfolios, including outsourcing ajarmity of those activities to
maintain low fixed overhea

» selling accounts on an opportunistic basis, gelyandien our efforts have been exhausted througtittoaal collecting methods, or
when we can capitalize on pricing during times winerfeel the pricing environment is high; &

 capitalizing on our strategic relationships to idfgrand acquire consumer receivable portfoliopasing, financing and conditions
permit.

Because we reduced our purchases of consumer abtesvportfolios, there has been a reduction infe income. Instead, we focused
on reducing our debt and being highly disciplineaiur portfolio purchases. We continue to revieseptial portfolio acquisitions regularly a
will buy at a price that we believe will yield odesired rate of return.

We believe that, given our management’s experiamceexpertise, along with the fragmented yet grgwirarket in which we operate, as
we implement this short-term strategy, we will bgosition to again grow our business as econoomditions stabilize.
Consumer Receivables Business
Receivables Purchase Program

We purchase bulk receivable portfolios that incladarged-off receivables, semi-performing receigaldnd performing receivables.
These receivables consist primarily of MasterCardfisa® and private label credit card accounts, armathgr types of receivables.

In the past we have acquired, directly and indiyetitrough the consumer receivable portfolios tlatacquire, secured consumer asset
portfolios, consisting primarily of receivables sesd by automobiles.

We identify potential portfolio acquisitions on angoing basis through:
 our relationships with industry participants, fical institutions, collection agencies, investonsl @ur financing source

5
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» brokers who specialize in the sale of consumerivabée portfolios; anc
» other sources

Historically, the purchase prices of the consureeeivable portfolios we have acquired have rangad fess than $100,000 to
approximately $15,000,000; however, we acquiredgroep of portfolios in March 2007 for $300 milli¢the “Portfolio Purchase”). As a part
of our strategy to acquire consumer receivablef@ars, we have, from time to time, entered intogdanay continue to enter into, participation
and profit sharing agreements with our sourcegnaiicing and our third-party collection agencied atiorneys. These arrangements may tak
the form of a joint bid with one of our third-partgllection agencies, collection attorneys, orfiiciag sources that assist in the acquisition of
portfolio. This joint bid provides us with more fanable non-recourse financing terms or a discouséedicing commission. Current
participation agreements include a 50%-50% shaingngement after we have recouped 100% of theofdlsé portfolio purchase plus the
cost of funds.

We utilize our relationships with brokers, thirdrfyacollection agencies and attorneys, and setleportfolios to locate portfolios for
purchase. Our senior management is responsible for:

» coordinating due diligence, including, in some sase-site visits to the sell’s office;
« stratifying and analyzing the portfolio characticss;

« valuing the portfolio

e preparing bid proposal

* negotiating pricing and term

* negotiating and executing a purchase cont

» closing the purchase; ai

» coordinating the receipt of account documentatarttie acquired portfolio

The seller or broker typically supplies us wittheita sample listing or the actual portfolio besiodd, through an electronic form of
media. We analyze each consumer receivable partfoldetermine if it meets our purchasing criteviee may then prepare a bid or negotiate :
purchase price. If a purchase is completed, managemonitors the portfolio’s performance and usésinhformation in determining future
buying criteria including pricing. An integral pant the acquisition process is the oversight bylouestment Committee. This committee,
established in January 2008, must review and appathinvestments above $1 million in value. Vottrgeria are more stringent as the size of
the investment increases. The current membersafdmmittee are the Chairman Emeritus, the ChietEtive Officer, the Chief Financial
Officer, and the Senior Vice President. As the @hah Emeritus and Chief Executive Officer are edddamily members, at least one other
officer must approve transactions.

After determining that an investment should yiaidaalequate return on our acquisition cost aftarigeg fees, including court costs, we
use a variety of qualitative and quantitative fegto calculate the estimated cash flows. The ¥otig variables are analyzed and factored into
our original estimates:

» the number of collection agencies previously attiémgpto collect the receivables in the portfol
» the average balance of the receivak
» the age of the receivables (as older receivablghtne more difficult to collect or might be lesssteffective).

 past history of performance of similar assets ~wagpurchase portfolios of similar assets, we belige have built significant history
on how these receivables will liquidate and castvf

* number of months since cha-off;
e payments made since che-off;
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« the credit originator and their credit guidelin

 the locations of the customers as there are statiedetter regulatory environments, better coltathistories, and that are better
suited to attempt to collect in and ultimately vavé better predictability of the liquidations ahe expected cash flows all of which
factor into our cash flow analysi

» financial wherewithal of the selle

» jobs or property of the customers within portfol— this is of particular importance. Customers vjiths or property are more likely
to repay their obligation and, conversely, custanvethout jobs or property are less likely to replagir obligation; ant

« the ability to obtain customer statements fromdtiginal issuer

We obtain and utilize, as appropriate, input inodgd but not limited to, monthly collection projémts and liquidation rates from our th
party collection agencies and attorneys, as fusthiztentiary matter, to assist us in developindeotion strategies and in modeling the
expected cash flows for a given portfolio.

Once a receivable portfolio has been identifiedpfotential purchase, we prepare various analysssiban extracting customer level dats
from external sources, other than the issuer, &yaa the potential collectability of the portfalid/e also analyze the portfolio by comparing it
to similar portfolios previously acquired by us.dddition, we perform qualitative analyses of otimatters affecting the value of portfolios,
including a review of the delinquency, charge pfacement and recovery policies of the originatowall as the collection authority granted
the originator to any third-party collection agess;iand, if possible, by reviewing their recoveifgrés on the particular portfolio. After these
evaluations are completed, members of our senioagement discuss the findings, decide whether tentae purchase and finalize the price
at which we are willing to purchase the portfolio.

We purchase most of our consumer receivable par#falirectly from originators and other sellerslirming, from time to time, our third-
party collection agencies and attorneys, throughr{vately negotiated direct sales, and (ii) thgbwauction-type sales in which sellers of
receivables seek bids from several pre-qualifidat garchasers. We also, from time to time, uses#hreices of brokers for sourcing consumer
receivable portfolios. We consider a variety oftéas in determining whether potential seller mayatsource of receivables, a variety of factor:
are considered. Sellers must demonstrate thathties:

» adequate internal controls to detect fre
 the ability to provide po-sale support; an
 the capacity to honor g-back and return warranty reque:

Generally, our portfolio purchase agreements pethidt we can return certain accounts to the seltbin a specified time period.
However, in some transactions, we may acquire gighorwith few, if any, rights to return accouritsthe seller. After acquiring a portfolio, \
conduct a detailed analysis to determine which aetoin the portfolio should be returned to théeseAlthough the terms of each portfolio
purchase agreement differ, examples of accountsrthg be returned to the seller include:

» debts paid prior to the cutoff da

» debts in which the consumer filed bankruptcy ptiothe cutoff date
 debts in which the consumer was deceased prianttaffdate; anc

+ fraudulent account:

We have determined that all accounts returnedltersdor fiscal years 2013, 2012 and 2011 are iteni@. Our purchase agreements
generally do not contain any provision for a lirtida on the number of accounts that we may retoithe seller.

We generally use third parties to determine bartkang deceased accounts, allowing us to focusemaurces on portfolio collections.
Under a typical portfolio purchase agreement, gikeisrefunds the portion of the purchase pricetattable to the returned accounts or deliver:
replacement receivables to us. Occasionally,
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we will acquire a well-seasoned or older portfaica reduced price from a seller that is unablaéet all of our purchasing criteria. When we
acquire such portfolios, the purchase price idhrdiscounted beyond the typical discounts weiveaan the portfolios we purchase.

VATIV, our wholly-owned subsidiary located in Houston, Texas, pravlzEnkruptcy account servicing. VATIV provides u#iwinterna
experience and proprietary systems in supportref@ag our own bankruptcy accounts, while als@medfng us the opportunity to enter new
markets for acquisitions in the bankruptcy accdighd.

Receivable Servicing

Our objective is to maximize our return on investtnen acquired consumer receivable portfolios. Assallt, before acquiring a portfol
we analyze the portfolio to determine how to beakimize collections in a cost efficient manner dedide whether to use a third-party
collection agency or an attorney.

Therefore, if we are successful in acquiring thefptio, we can promptly process the receivables there purchased and commence the
collection process. Unlike collection agencies tipically have only a specified period of timerézover a receivable, as the portfolio owner,
we have significantly more flexibility and can dstah payment programs.

We presently outsource a significant amount ofreaeivable servicing to third-party collection ages and attorneys. Our senior
management typically determines the appropriatd-jpérty collection agency and attorney based erytpe of receivables purchased. Once a
group of receivables is sent to a third-party atite agency or attorney, our management activelpitars and reviews the third-party
collection agency’s and attorney’s performance momgoing basis. Our management receives detailaigses, including collection activity
and portfolio performance, from our internal seiicdepartments for the purpose of evaluating dselts of the efforts of the third-party
collection agencies and attorneys. Based on patparformance guidelines, our management will siggiscertain receivables from one third-
party collection agency or attorney to anotheréflyelieve such change will enhance collections.

At September 30, 2013, approximately 28% of outfplio face value was serviced by seven collectioganizations. We have servicing
agreements in place with these seven collectioardzgtions as well as all other third-party coli@etagencies and attorneys. These servicing
agreements cover standard contingency fees anitiggrof the accounts.

Litigation Funding Business

On December 28, 2011, the Company purchased anii@@d¥est in Pegasus. Pegasus Legal Funding (“Phéfgs the other 20% intere
The Company is committed to loan up to $21.8 millper year to Pegasus for a term of five (5) yesdrsf which is secured by the assets of
Pegasus. These loans will provide financing forgliesonal injury litigation claims and operatingperses of Pegasus.

Pegasus is actively managed by personal injugelitbn funders, Max Alperovich and Alexander Khamnaiso rely upon strict
underwriting criteria to provide legal funding tergonal injury plaintiffs prior to the settlemerittioeir claims or their resolution in court. The
Pegasus business model entails the outlay of narse advances to a plaintiff with an agreed-uperstructure to be repaid from the
plaintiff's recovery. Typically, such advances tplaintiff approximate 10-20% of the anticipatedaeery. These funds are generally used by
the plaintiff for a variety of urgent necessitiesnging from surgical procedures to everyday livexgenses.

Pegasus’s profits and losses will be distributeBi0&s to the Company and 20% to PLF. These distdbstwill be made only after the
repayment of Fund Pegasus’ principal amount loapked, an amount equal to advances for overheadseseWhile the overall returns to
Pegasus are currently estimated to be in exce28%fper annum, the Company reserves the righttarate Pegasus if returns to the
Company for any rolling twelve (12) month periofteathe first year of operations, do not exceethl1Bs of September 30, 2013, the
Company has invested approximately $35.8 milliopénsonal injury cases.

8
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The success of Pegasus is tied to several issube -ability to obtain cases directly or throughkas as well as the ability to carefully
assess the viability of each case in accordandeuwmiderwriting guidelines established by the mamege of Pegasus. See Risk Factor-
Litigation Funding Business Risks.

On May 18, 2012, we announced the formation of BBeOMlanagement, LLC (“Balance Point”), a joint weat(the “Venture”) with
California-based Balance Point Divorce Funding, L{!Balance Point Management”). The Venture provides-recourse funding to a spouse
in a matrimonial action where the marital asseteesd $2,000,000. Such funds can be used for lega) &€xpert costs and necessary living
expenses. The Venture receives an agreed percasftdgeproceeds received by such spouse uponréisalution of the case. Balance Point’s
profits and losses will be distributed 60% to ud 48% to Balance Point Management, after the redfiour investment on a case by case
and after a 15% preferred return to us. Our initigestment in the Venture consists of up to $1fianito fund divorce claims to be fulfilled in
three tranches of $5 million. Each investment thenis contingent upon a minimum 15% cash-on-catsinrréo us. At our option, there could
be an additional $35 million investment in divoataims in tranches of $10 million, $10 million, af#l5 million, also with a 15% preferred
return and such investments may even exceed aofo$&l0 million, at our sole option. Should thefpreed return be less than 15% on any $5
million tranche, the 60%/40% profit and loss splduld be adjusted to reflect our priority to a 1p%éferred return. As of September 30, 2013
we have invested $1.6 million in cases managedhisyMenture.

We provided a $1.0 million revolving line of credlit partially fund Balance Point Management's opers with such loan bearing
interest at the prevailing prime rate, with aniaiterm of twenty-four months, which may be exteddinder certain circumstances for an
additional 24 month period. The revolving line oédit is collateralized by Balance Point Managenseguitofits share in the Venture and other
assets. At September 30, 2013, the balance ortioéving line of credit was approximately $917,000.

Operations

The Operations Servicing Division consists of th@l€ttion Department, Media Department, Disputepddnent, Correspondence

Department, and Accounting and Finance Department:
Collection Department

The Collection Department is responsible for making receiving contact with and from consumerdterpurpose of collecting upon
the accounts contained in our consumer receivaadolios. Collection efforts are specific to acobs that are not yet being serviced by our
network of external agencies and attorneys. Thée€in Department uses a friendly, customer sergjgproach to collect receivables and
utilizes collection software, a dialer and teleplsgstem to accomplish this goal. Each collectoesponsible for:

« Initiating outbound collection calls and handlimgéming calls from the consum

* Identifying the debt and iterating the benefitpajing the obligatior

» Working with the customer to develop acceptablemaed satisfying the obligation; ai

» Offering (if necessary, and based upon the indiidituation) an obligor a discount on the oveoaligation.

Additionally, the Collection Department utilizesearies of collection letters, late payment remiadard settlement offers that are sent
at specific intervals or at the request of a menatb¢ie Collection Department.

If the Collection Department cannot contact the@uer by either telephone or mail, the accounkig-traced through an automated
process to obtain the most recent contact infoondbr the customer. This process employs usagetaf supplied by a variety of third party
databases. Once new contact information is obtathedaccount is referred back to the Collectiopd@tment and collection activity is once
again initiated.

Other members of the Collection Department areaesiple for:
» Coordinating customer inquiries and assisting tiection agencies in their processes, if nee

9
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» Handling the repurchase process of ineligible antoreceived from a seller that may be includea jrurchased portfolic
» Working with buyers during the transition periodlgyos-sale process
» Handling any issues that may arise once a purchased/able portfolio is sold; ar

» Reading incoming correspondence for accounts tieatwarently assigned to the Collection Departmensuring the account is
handled properly, taking the initial action reqditend forwarding to a collector and/or managerffddow up action.

Other responsibilities of the Collection Departmieiciude media requests, dispute resolution ancespondence activities.

Accounting and Finance Department
In addition to the customary accounting activitibe Accounting and Finance Department is respan§ii:
» Making daily deposits of customer paymel
» Posting payments to customers accounts;
» Providing senior management with daily, weekly amshthly receivable activity and performance repc

Accounting and finance employees assist colledepartment employees in handling customer dispetating to payment and balance
information and handling the repurchase requesta frompanies to whom we have sold receivables.tibadilly, the Accounting Department
reviews the results of the collection of consuneeeivable portfolios that are being serviced bydtparty collection agencies and attorneys.

Collections Represented by Account Sales

Certain collections represent account sales tor akblet buyers to help maximize revenue and castsflove believe that our business
model of not having a large number of collectomyated with a legal strategy which is focused darapting to perfect liens and judgments
against obligors, allows us the flexibility to saicounts at prices that are attractive to us, jastlas important, sell the less desirable aceount
within our collection portfolios. There are mangtiars that contribute to the decision as to whateivable to sell and which to service,
including:

» the age of the receivabl
« the status of the receivat— whether paying or n-paying; anc
 the selling price

Net collections represented by account sales fofisical years ended September 30, 2013, 2012 @t \Rere $2.4 million, $0.1 million
and $0.4 million, respectively. Collections represel by account sales as a percentage of tota&latiolhs for the fiscal years ended
September 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011 was 4.5%, 0.284).&8%, respectively.

Marketing

Over the last three years our consumer debt partfoirchases have been reduced to one portfolichpise in fiscal year 2013; however,
we have maintained our established relationshifts wviokers who market consumer receivable portédiiom banks, finance companies and
other credit providers. In addition, we subscrib@ational publications that list consumer recel@gtortfolios for sale. We also directly cont
banks, finance companies or other credit provitlesolicit consumer receivables for sale.

10
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Competition

Our business of purchasing distressed consumeivaddes is highly competitive and fragmented, aredexpect that competition from
new and existing companies will continue. We corapeth:

» other purchasers of consumer receivables, incluttiing-party collection companies; al
+ other financial services companies who purchassuwoer receivable:

Some of our competitors are larger and more estadddi and may have substantially greater finarntei@hnological, personnel and other
resources than we have, including greater acceabe toredit and capital markets. We believe thandividual competitor or group of
competitors has a dominant presence in the market.

We compete in the marketplace for consumer rectvadrtfolios based on many factors, including:
» purchase price

» representations, warranties and indemnities reqdg

 timeliness of purchase decisions; ¢

* reputation

Our strategy is designed to capitalize on the nmarkack of a dominant industry player. We beli¢kiat our management’s experience
and expertise in identifying, evaluating, pricingdaacquiring consumer receivable portfolios and agarg collections, coupled with our
strategic alliances with thirgarty collection agencies and attorneys and ourceswof financing, give us a competitive advant&tmvever, we
cannot assure that we will be able to compete ssfaky against current or future competitors @tttompetition will not increase in the
future.

The litigation funding business is highly competitiand fragmented, and we expect that competitimm hew and existing companies
will continue. We compete in the litigation fundintarketplace based on many factors, including:

» cost of funds lent

» application Fee cost

» broke’s commissions and bonuses pi
* reputation; ant

 direct and o-line marketing

We believe that the managements of Pegasus ancaB&Management have the expertise and experieieniifying, evaluating,
pricing and acquisition of litigating funding casetowever, we cannot assure that our litigatiordfaog businesses will be able to compete
against current or future competitors or that caitipa will not increase in the future.

Seasonality and Trends

Our management believes that our operations maggrtee extent, be affected by high delinquency ratelsby lower recoveries on
consumer receivables acquired for liquidation dyion shortly following certain holiday periods atharing the summer months.

Technology

We believe that a high degree of automation is &y to enable us to grow and successfully compigtteother finance companies.
Accordingly, we continually look to upgrade ourhieclogy systems to support the servicing and regoefconsumer receivables acquired for
liquidation. Our telecommunications and technoleggtems allow us to quickly and accurately prot&gge amounts of data necessary to
purchase and service consumer receivable portfdhicaddition, we rely on the information technofagf our third-party collection agencies
and attorneys and periodically review their systéonsnsure that they can adequately service theutoer receivable portfolios outsourced to
them.
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Due to our desire to increase productivity throagtomation, we periodically review our systemsgossible upgrades and
enhancements.

Government Regulation

Our business is subject to extensive federal aatd ségulations. The relationship of a consumeraaaikditor is extensively regulated by
federal, state and local laws, rules, regulatiors@dinances. These laws include, but are notduirio, the following federal statutes and
regulations: the Federal Truth-In-Lending Act, fraér Credit Billing Act (‘FCBA”), the Equal Cred®pportunity Act and the Fair Credit
Reporting Act (“FCRA”), as well as comparable stafuin states where consumers reside and/or whedéars are located. Among other
things, the laws and regulations applicable tootegicreditors impose disclosure requirements réggtte advertisement, application,
establishment and operation of credit card acconmdgher types of credit programs. Federal lawimes a creditor to disclose to consumers,
among other things, the interest rates, fees, gradeds and balance calculation methods assoacidthdheir accounts. In addition, consumers
are entitled to have payments and credits appliebeir accounts promptly, to receive prescribeticas and to request that billing errors be
resolved promptly. In addition, some laws prohdattain discriminatory practices in connection vitib extension of credit. Further, state laws
may limit the interest rate and the fees that ditsemay impose on consumers. Failure by the twexlto comply with applicable laws could
create claims and rights of offset by consumerswioaild reduce or eliminate their obligations, whizould have a material adverse effect on
our operations. Pursuant to agreements under wiegburchase receivables, we are typically inderadiéigainst losses resulting from the
failure of the creditor to have complied with applle laws relating to the receivables prior tomunchase of such receivables.

Certain laws, including the laws described abovay fimit our ability to collect amounts owing withspect to the receivables regardles:s
of any act or omission on our part. For exampleleurthe FCBA, a credit card issuer may be subgecettain claims and defenses arising out
of certain transactions in which a credit cardgediif the consumer has made a good faith attesrgitthin satisfactory resolution of a problem
relative to the transaction and, except in casesravthere is a specified relationship between #regn honoring the card and the credit card
issuer, the amount of the initial transaction edlse®50 and the place where the initial transaaiourred was in the same state as the
consumer’s billing address or within 100 milestwdttaddress. Accordingly, as a purchaser of defduticeivables, we may purchase
receivables subject to valid defenses on the fgaheoconsumer. Other laws provide that, in certagtances, consumers cannot be held liable
for, or their liability is limited to $50 with resggt to, charges to the credit card credit accduattwere a result of an unauthorized use of the
credit card account. No assurances can be givéenain of the receivables were not establistsea @esult of unauthorized use of a credit
card account, and, accordingly, the amount of sackivables may not be collectible by us.

Several federal, state and local laws, rules, egguis and ordinances, including, but not limitedthe Fair Debt Collection Practices Act
(“FDCPA") and the Federal Trade Commission Act anthparable state statutes, regulate consumer didtteon activity. Although, for a
variety of reasons, we may not be specifically sabjo the FDCPA or certain state statutes thaégothird-party debt collectors, it is our
policy to comply with applicable laws in our coltem activities. Additionally, our third-party celttion agencies and attorneys may be subjec
to these laws. To the extent that some or all eé¢Haws apply to our collection activities or third-party collection agencies’ and attorneys’
collection activities, failure to comply with sutdws could have a material adverse effect on us.

In order to comply with the foregoing laws and regions, we provide a comprehensive developmemtitig program for our new
collection/dispute department representatives angaing training for all collection/dispute depaemt associates. All collection and dispute
representatives are tested annually on their krelydef the FDCPA and other applicable laws. Accoaptesentatives not achieving our
minimum standards are required to complete a FD€Ri#ew session and are then retested. In addiiomyal supplemental instruction in the
FDCPA and collection techniques is provided tamall account representatives.

On July 21, 2010, the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Refard Protection Act, or the Dodd-Frank Act, wasoée@ There are significant
corporate governance and executive compensatiateceprovisions in the Dodd-
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Frank Act that require the SEC to adopt additionlds and regulations in areas such as corporagergance, “say on pay” and proxy access.
Our efforts to comply with these requirements hasailted in, and are likely to continue to resatan increase in expenses and a diversion c
management’s time from other business activities.an subject to changing rules and regulatioriedsral and state governments, the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (“PCAOB”) and SIPAQ, all of which have issued a significant numbenew and increasingly
complex requirements and regulations over the eoofshe last several years and continue to dewadiolitional regulations and requirements
in response to laws enacted by Congress.

The enactment of the Dodd-Frank Act will subjectausubstantial additional federal regulation, amdcannot predict the effect of such
regulation on our business, results of operaticash flows or financial condition. Through the Deditink Act, Congress established the
Consumer Financial Protection Bureau (the “CFP®Mhich has regulatory, supervisory and enforcematitaity over entities involved in
consumer financial markets. The CFPB has the aitjttorconduct periodic examinations of “larger fi@pants” in each market, and we
believe it is likely that we will be subject to aramination.

The CFPB published a final rule on October 24, 202 allows the agency to federally supervisddnger consumer debt collectors.
CFPB also released the field guide that examindtsise to ensure that companies and banks engagidgbt collection are following the law.

The consumer debt collection market covered byuleeincludes three main types of debt collectfirst, firms that may buy defaulted
debt and collect the proceeds for themselves; skdwms that may collect defaulted debt owned bgther company in return for a fee; and
third, debt collection attorneys that collect thghditigation. A single company may be involvedainy or all of these activities.

The CFPB’s supervisory authority over these erstitiegan when the rule took effect on January 2320mder the rule, any firm that has
more than $10 million in annual receipts from cansudebt collection activities will be subject letCFPB’s supervisory authority. This
authority will extend to about 175 debt collectashich, according to the CFPB, account for ovepéfcent of the industry’s annual receipts ir
the consumer debt collection market.

Pursuant to the CFPB’s supervisory authority, exans will be assessing potential risks to consurmedswhether debt collectors are
complying with requirements of federal consumeaficial law. Among other things, examiners will baleating whether debt collectors
provide required disclosures; use accurate infdonamaintain a consumer complaint and disputelugism process; and communicate with
consumers in the manner required by law.

The CFPB’s general Supervision and Examination Maras well as its examination manual specifih®debt collection market,
provide guidance on how the Bureau will be conahgrtts monitoring of debt collection activities. &riners will evaluate the quality of the
regulated entity’s compliance management systeengew practices to ensure they comply with fedeasdsumer financial law, and identify
risks to consumers throughout the debt collectimeg@ss. The CFPB can seek relief that includesiggisn or reformation of contracts,
restitution, disgorgement of profits, payment oimdaes, limits on activities and civil money peredtof up to $1 million per day for knowing
violations.

As a company that engages in debt collection, veel ne be prepared for the heavy oversight thaCtReB will bring. Preparing for a
CFPB audit will cost time and money. Additionalflge CFPB has the power to bring an enforcememracti cause a required settlement.
Another large concern is the amount of privilegad aonfidential information the CFPB could releagkich can lead to private lawsuits —
including class and mass actions — as well as ctfa¢e and federal agency oversight.

The CFPB is expressly charged with prohibiting imféeceptive or abusive acts or practices. Thrdatgyhroad powers to regulate and
enforce federal consumer financial laws, the CFB@cdplace restrictions on our business, the bssie®of our customers and the business o
our affiliates, if the CFPB were to determine tlgbuulemaking, supervisory or enforcement actiémsexample, that particular acts or
practices were unfair, deceptive or abusive to gomss.
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The CFPB will thus exercise supervisory authoritgrous. At this time, it is not possible or praatito attempt to provide a
comprehensive analysis of how these new laws agulatons may impact debt collectors.

Additionally, the Dodd~rank Act empowers state attorneys general (oetjuévalent thereof) to bring civil actions in fededistrict cour
(or a state court that is located in that statethathas jurisdiction over the defendant), to esédTitle X of the Act or regulations issued by the
Bureau thereunder. Therefore, we could also bsubgect of investigations and enforcement actionthb Federal Trade Commission or by
state agencies (e.g., state attorneys generalywitlers to enforce Bureau regulations and the FCRA.

The Dodd-Frank Act authorized the CFPB to presanitbes interpreting the FDCPA. On November 12, 2@8 CFPB signaled its
intention to promulgate substantive rules undeiRREPA by publishing an Advance Notice of PropoRetemaking (ANPR) with regard to
debt collection practices. The ANPR requests conteneith regard to a wide array of issues relatmgebt collection. Consumers, consumer
groups, debt collectors, industry representativesahers have 90 days from the date of publicatfdhe ANPR in which to submit
comments. Final rules will likely be issued withie next 12 to 18 months.

The Company has and will continue to have a subgtaoompliance program and maintain procedurenture that the law is followed
and that consumer complaints are dealt with ingprapriate fashion.

Additional laws or amendments to existing laws, rhayenacted that could impose additional restnstion the servicing and collection
of receivables. Such new laws or amendments magraely affect our ability to collect the receivable

We currently hold a number of licenses issued uagelicable consumer credit laws or other licensitagutes or regulations. Certain of
our current licenses, and any licenses that welmeagquired to obtain in the future, may be sulijggteriodic renewal provisions and/or other
requirements. Our inability to renew licenses otalce any other required action with respect tddisenses could have a material adverse
effect upon our results of operation and financaidition.

The litigation funding business is becoming a grayiocus for legislators and policy-makers. Theravariety of state laws in three
substantive areas: (1) laws directly regulatingdgns; (2) the arcane doctrines of maintenance, pbetyn and barratry; and (3) rules regulating
attorney conduct and the application of attorokgnt privilege. Pegasus monitors the state reagula affecting its business in all states whe
is currently active in litigation funding. Pegadiedieves that it currently complies with all applide laws in the jurisdictions where it invests in
litigation cases. It is also possible that Congreadd seek to impose rules, regulations and fegsagcticipants in the litigation funding
business. We cannot predict the effect of any seghlation on our litigation funding business, t&sof operation or financial condition.

Employees
As of September 30, 2013, we had 72 full-time eypds. We are not a party to any collective barggiaigreements.

Additional Information

Our web address is www.astafunding.c@vopies of our Form 10-Ks, 10-Qs, 8-Ks, proxy staets, amendments thereto, and other SE
reports are available on our website as soon asmehly practical after filing electronically withe Securities and Exchange Commission . N
part of our web site is incorporated by referemte this report.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors.
Note Regarding Risk Factors

You should carefully consider the risk factors kelo evaluating us. In addition to the followingks, there may also be risks that we do
not yet know of or that we currently think are inter&l that may also impair our business operatiofiny of the following risks occur, our
business, results of operation or financial coratitcould be adversely affected, the trading priceww common stock could decline and
stockholders might lose all or part of their invesint. The risk factors presented below are thosehade currently consider material.
However, they are not the only risks facing our pany. Additional risks not presently known to usybich we currently consider immateri
may also adversely affect us. There may be risksatiparticular investor views differently from @as\d our analysis might be wrong. If any of
the risks that we face actually occur, our businésancial condition and operating results coule materially adversely affected and could
differ materially from any possible results suggddby any forward-looking statements that we haadeamr might make. In such case, the
trading price of our common stock could declined &ou could lose part or all of your investmdecept as required by law, we expressly
disclaim any obligation to update or revise any ¥gard-looking statements.

The enactment of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Refoand Consumer Protection Act subjects us to subsiradditional federal
regulation, and we cannot predict the effect of $uegulation on our business, results of operatiqreash flows or financial condition.

On July 21, 2010, the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Refarmd Protection Act, or the Dodd-Frank Act, wasoted There are significant
corporate governance and executive compensatiateceprovisions in the Dodd-Frank Act that reqtive SEC to adopt additional rules and
regulations in these areas such as “say on paypend access. Our efforts to comply with thesaunements have resulted in, and are likely
to continue to result in, an increase in expenadsadiversion of management’s time from other iess activities.

Given the uncertainty associated with the mannartiich the provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act will imeplemented by the various
regulatory agencies and through regulations, theftent of the impact such requirements will haweour operations is unclear. The changes
resulting from the Dodd-Frank Act may impact thefjtability of business activities, require changesertain business practices, or otherwise
adversely affect our business. In particular, thteptial impact of the Dodd-Frank Act on our oprenag and activities, both currently and
prospectively, include, among others:

* increased cost of operations due to greater regylatersight, supervision and compliance with ecmnsr debt issuance and collect
practices; an

« the limitation on the ability to expand consumeawdarct and service offerings due to anticipateatgriconsumer protection laws and
regulations

The Dodd-Frank Act establishes the CFPB, whichtdnaad regulatory powers over debt collectors anaily all other “covered
persons” who have any connection to consumer fiahpooducts or services. The CFPB has exclusileemaking authority with respect to all
significant federal statutes that impact the coitecindustry, including the FDCPA, the FCRA, arttlars. This means, for example, that the
CFPB has the ability to pass rules and regulatibasinterpret any of the provisions of the FDCPBAtentially impacting all facets of the
collection channel. Federal agencies, including@R®B, have been given significant discretion iaftilng the rules and regulations that will
implement the Dodd-Frank Act. Consequently, manghefdetails and much of the impact of the Doddikract may not be known for some
time. In addition, this legislation mandated mué#iptudies and reports for Congress, which cowddItén additional legislative or regulatory
action.

The CFPB has the authority to conduct periodic érations of “larger participants” in each marketdave believe it is likely that we
will be subject to an examination.

We cannot predict the requirements of the regulatidtimately adopted under the Dodd-Frank Act,gfiect such regulations will have
on financial markets generally, or on our businesgecifically, the additional
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costs associated with compliance with such reguratior any changes to our operations that mayebessary to comply with the Dodd-Frank
Act, any of which could have a material adverseafbn our business, results of operations, castsfbr financial condition.

Government regulations may limit our ability to rewer and enforce the collection of our receivables.

Federal, state and local laws, rules, regulatiomsaadinances may limit our ability to recover ardorce our rights with respect to the
receivables acquired by us. These laws includeatmnhot limited to, the following federal statutasl regulations promulgated thereunder anc
comparable statutes in states where consumergrasdior where creditors are located:

» The Fair Debt Collection Practices A
* The Federal Trade Commission A

e The Trutt-In-Lending Act;

e The Fair Credit Billing Act

e The Equal Credit Opportunity Ac

e The Fair Credit Reporting Ac

» The Financial Privacy Rult

» The Safeguards Rul

» Telephone Consumer Protection A

» Health Insurance Portability and Accountability A4tIPAA”)/Health Information Technology for Econdoal and Clinical Health
Act (“HITECH");

» U.S. Bankruptcy Code; ar
» Credit Card Accountability Responsibility and Disslire Act of 200€

We may be precluded from collecting receivablepuwehase where the creditor or other previous ownéhmird-party collection agency
or attorney failed to comply with applicable lawdriginating or servicing such acquired receivablesvs relating to the collection of
consumer debt also directly apply to our busin@ss.failure to comply with any laws applicable t® including state licensing laws, could
limit our ability to recover on receivables and kebsubject us to fines and penalties, which coaltlice our earnings and result in a default
under our loan arrangements. In addition, our thady collection agencies and attorneys may b@stio these and other laws and their
failure to comply with such laws could also matkyiadversely affect our finance income and earsing

Additional laws or amendments to existing laws rbayenacted that could impose additional restristiom the servicing and collection
receivables. Such new laws or amendments may adyeffect the ability to collect on our receivaflevhich could also adversely affect our
finance income and earnings.

Because our receivables are generally originatddsarviced pursuant to a variety of federal, sta@/or local laws by a variety of entit
and may involve consumers in all 50 states, thé&ridif Columbia, Puerto Rico and South Amerid¢gre can be no assurance that all
originating and servicing entities have, at alldenbeen in substantial compliance with applic&de Additionally, there can be no assurance
that we or our thirgearty collection agencies and attorneys have bearillacontinue to be at all times in substantiahgpliance with applicab
law. Failure to comply with applicable law could texdally adversely affect our ability to collectroneceivables and could subject us to
increased costs, fines and penalties.

We are subject to changing rules and regulatiorieddral and state government as well as the swckange on which our common
stock is listed. These entities, including the RuBlompany Accounting Oversight Board, the SEC hiedNASDAQ Global Market, have
issued a significant number of new and increasiegiyplex requirements and regulations over thessoaf the last several years and continue
to develop additional regulations and requireméntesponse to laws enacted by Congress.
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The current economic environment has slowed ourlapito collect from our customers.

The recent worldwide financial turmoil has adveyssfected all businesses, including our own. Timeent collection environment is
particularly challenging as a result of factorshia economy over which we have no control. Thes®fa include:

» a slowdown in the econom

» severe problems in the credit and housing mar

» higher unemploymen

 reductions in consumer spendi

» changes in the underwriting criteria by originat@nsd

» changes in laws and regulations governing consieneing and the related collectiol

Our litigation strategy is highly dependent on ahility to locate customers with jobs and/or honm#s. believe that our customers are
straining to pay their obligations owed to us. Highnemployment rates particularly impact our congtis’ ability to pay obligations and our
ability to get wage executions as a source of payniroblems in the credit markets and lower hoalaes have reduced the ability of our
customers to secure financing through second mgeyand home equity lines to pay obligations oweaast A continuation of the current
problems in the credit and housing markets andrgéswdown in the economy will continue to adwdysaffect the effectiveness of our
litigation strategy, and the value of our portfgliand our financial performance.

We are subject to various risks in connection wihr litigation funding business.

Risks of the litigation funding business include fiotential regulation or limitation of interestes and other fees advanced by our
litigation funding subsidiaries under federal amdtate regulation, a change in statutory or casenhich limits or restricts the ability of our
litigation funding subsidiaries to charge or callees and interest at anticipated levels, claismietng unsuccessful in whole or in part in the
personal injury claims or divorce settlement updmol our funds are provided, the continued servideéhe senior management of our
litigation funding subsidiaries to source and amalgases in accordance with the subsidiaries’ otispeunderwriting guidelines.

We may not be able to purchase consumer receivalolgfolios at favorable prices or on sufficienthaforable terms if at all.

Our success depends upon the continued availabflitgpnsumer receivable portfolios that meet oucpasing criteria and our ability to
identify and finance the purchases of such podfolThe availability of consumer receivable poitfelat favorable prices and on terms
acceptable to us, if at all, depends on a numb&aabérs outside of our control, including:

 the growth in consumer del

 the volume of consumer receivable portfolios avdddor sale

 availability of financing to fund purchase

» competitive factors affecting potential purchaserd sellers of consumer receivable portfolios;

» possible future changes in the bankruptcy lawse $tavs and homestead acts which could make it wiiffieult for us to collect

Our future operating results will be negatively impted as we have not replaced our defaulted consuraeeivables at historic levels.

To operate profitably, we must continually acquaeinvest in a sufficient level of various typeseceivables to generate continued
revenue. Our investment in charged off consumezivables during fiscal year 2013, 2012, and 20kldt@wed dramatically. As the economic
environment deteriorated, we felt that pricing of

17



Table of Contents

portfolios had not fallen enough to offset the dexin ultimate collections. Accordingly, our ine®ent in portfolios was $3.4 million in 2013,
$2.5 million in 2012, and $7.5 million in 2011 coampd to $8.0 million in 2010 and $19.6 million iBM. In part, this led to our net cash
collections in fiscal 2013 decreasing $15.9 million22.7%, from $70.0 million in fiscal year 20tt2$54.1 million in fiscal year 2013.
Furthermore, of those collections, $33.2 millionfigcal year 2013 and $36.4 million for fiscal y@812 came from zero basis portfolios
(whose carrying value has been reduced to zera)d€ereased level of buying new portfolios durirsgdl years 2013, 2012, and 2011 will
likely result in future reduced net cash collectiam fiscal year 2014 and slow the growth of odufa revenues and operating results in the
consumer debt part of our business. Furthermoresamaot predict how our ability to identify and @st in receivables, and evaluate the qu.
of those receivables, would be affected if ther@ $hift in consumer lending practices whether edusyy changes in regulations or by a
sustained economic downturn.

Our inability to invest in sufficient quantities ofeceivables portfolios may necessitate workforeductions, which may harm our
business.

Because fixed costs, such as personnel costs,jtobast significant portion of our overhead, we n@yrequired to reduce the number of
employees if we do not continually invest in readiles. Reducing the number of employees can adyeect our business and lead to:

» lower employee morale, higher employee attriticiesaand fewer experienced employse
« disruptions in our operations and loss of efficieirccollection functions

» excess costs associated with unused space intoatidacilities; anc

« further reliance on our third party collection agiels and attorney

We have risks associated with the Portfolio Purckasvhich has not met our expectations and may coud to adversely impact our
financial position and results of operations.

Since the inception of the Portfolio Purchase,rfted by the Receivables Financing Agreement, theeiRables Financing Agreement
has been modified five times due to collectionsmegting our expectations. The shortfall was exssted by the general economic downturn.
We have recorded impairments on the Portfolio Pagettotaling $107.3 million ($30.3 million in fidgaear 2008, $53.9 million in fiscal year
2009, $13.0 million in fiscal year 2010 and $10liom in fiscal year 2013). The Portfolio Purchasas transferred to the cost recovery
method effective with the third quarter of fiscalay 2008, as collections became increasingly miffieudt to predict. Accordingly, we will
recognize finance income only after we recovercdmeying value of the asset. As a result, finame®ie since April 1, 2008 has been and wil
continue to be negatively impacted. There can bassarance as to when or if the current carryitgevaill be recovered. The carrying value
of the Portfolio Purchase as of September 30, 20$33.4 million.

There is no assurance that we will realize the fulllue of the deferred tax asset.

Although the carry forward period for income taxesp to twenty years, such allowance period isideta reasonable period to forecast
full realization of the deferred tax asset. We aardlly monitor forecast information to ensure tladuation allowance is appropriate.

With portfolios classified under the interest metthoour projections of future cash flows from our pfolio purchases may prove to be
inaccurate, which could result in reduced revenuesthe recording of impairment charges if we do nathieve the collections forecasted
by our model. In addition, portfolios classified aler the cost method may experience shortfalls itlextions that may result in further
impairments/write downs.

We use qualitative and quantitative analyses tgeptduture cash flows from our portfolio purchasglere can be no assurance,
however, that we will be able to achieve the coitets forecasted by our analysis. If we are no¢ @ablachieve these levels of forecasted
collections, our revenues will be reduced and wg bwarequired to
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record additional impairment charges, which woesuit in a reduction of our earnings. We recoraepairment charges of $2.5 million, $1.4
million, and $0.7 million for the years ended Semter 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

As the mix of our portfolios has shifted to the ¢aecovery method, there is a negative impact orafice income as no finance income is
recognized on the cost recovery portfolios untietbarrying value has been recovered.

Historically, we have utilized the interest methodecognize finance income on most consumer rab&\vportfolios purchased. As the
economy has impacted our business, making collestioore unpredictable, we have transferred poogdliom the interest method to the cost
recovery method, which delays the recognition wéfice income until the carrying value has been feltovered.

We use estimates for recognizing finance incomeaoportion of our consumer receivables acquired faquidation and our earnings
would be reduced if actual results are less thatireated.

We utilize the interest method of revenue recognifor determining a portion of our finance incoreeognized, which is based on
projected cash flows that may prove to be less #miicipated and could lead to reductions in reeemuadditional impairment charges under
Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Acating Standard Codification (“ASC”) 310, Receivable- Loans and Debt Securities
Acquired with Deteriorated Credit Quality (“ASC 3).0Static pools of accounts are established. Tipegsds are aggregated based on certain
common risk criteria. Each static pool is recordédost and is accounted for as a single unitferécognition of income, principal payments
and loss provision. Once a static pool is estabtidor a quarter, individual receivable accounésrant added to the pool (unless replaced b
seller) or removed from the pool (unless sold turreed to the seller). ASC 310 requires that theeex of the contractual cash flows over
expected cash flows not be recognized as an adjustof revenue or expense or on the balance sh8€1.310 initially freezes the internal r:
of return (“IRR"), estimated when the accounts iegiele are purchased, as the basis for subsequeairment testing. Significant increases in
actual, or expected future cash flows may be reizegrprospectively through an upward adjustmenhefiRR over a portfolio’s remaining
life. Any increase to the IRR then becomes the hemchmark for impairment testing. Rather than lamgethe estimated IRR, if the collection
estimates are not received or projected to bevedethe carrying value of a pool would be writtlswn to maintain the then current IRR. Any
reduction in our earnings resulting from such aewdiown could materially adversely affect our stpdke.

We may not be able to collect sufficient amountsaur consumer receivable portfolios to recover thests associated with the purchase
of those portfolios and to fund our operations.

We acquire and collect on consumer receivable glaytf that contain charged-off, semi-performingd @erforming receivables. In order
to operate profitably over the long term, we musttmually purchase and collect on a sufficieniwoé of receivables to generate revenue the
exceeds our purchase costs. For accounts thaharged-off or semi-performing, the originatorsmterim owners of the receivables generally
have:

* made numerous attempts to collect on these oliggtioften using both their in-house collectiorifstad third-party collection
agencies; an
» subsequently deemed these obligations as uncoliec

These receivable portfolios are purchased at sigmf discounts to the amount the consumers owesd heceivables are difficult to
collect and actual recoveries may be less thaaiti@unt expected. In addition, our collections maysgn in a weak economic cycle. We may
not recover amounts in excess of our acquisiti@hsa@mvicing costs.

Our ability to recover the purchase costs on outfgiios and produce sufficient returns can be tiegly impacted by the quality of the
purchased receivables. In the normal course opottfolio acquisitions, some receivables may béuihed in the portfolios that fail to conform
to certain terms of the purchase agreements andayeseek to return these receivables to the deligrayment or replacement receivables.
However, we can-
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not guarantee that any of such sellers will be tblmeet their payment obligations to us. Accotinét we are unable to return to sellers may
yield no return. If cash flows from operations k&s than anticipated as a result of our inabititgollect sufficient amounts on our receivab
our ability to satisfy our debt obligations, purseanew portfolios, and achieve future growth ardfitability may be materially adversely
affected.

We are subject to competition for the purchase ohsumer receivable portfolios which could result &m increase in prices of such
portfolios.

We compete with other purchasers of consumer rabkiportfolios, with third-party collection ageesiand with financial services
companies that manage their own consumer receiyaitéolios. We compete on the basis of price, tafjon, industry experience and
performance. Some of our competitors have greatgtal, personnel and other resources than we Aédepossible entry of new competitors,
including competitors that historically have focdsm the acquisition of different asset types, tnedexpected increase in competition from
current market participants may reduce our acaeserisumer receivable portfolios. Aggressive pgdiy our competitors has raised the price
of consumer receivable portfolios above levels watare willing to pay, which could reduce the n@mbf consumer receivable portfolios
suitable for us to purchase or if purchased byaduce the profits, if any, generated by such phbot. If we are unable to purchase receivable
portfolios at favorable prices or at all, our ficarincome and earnings could be materially reduced.

We depend upon third parties to service a portidroar consumer receivable portfolios. The loss @trtain servicers could have an
adverse effect on our financial position and ressiibf operation.

Although we utilize our in-house collection staffinitiate the collection process to collect sorhewr receivables, we outsource a
majority of our receivable servicing. As 28% of qartfolio face value is serviced by seven orgatitors, we are dependent upon the efforts o
these collection agencies and attorneys to searidecollect our consumer receivables. Any failyrebr third-party collection agencies and
attorneys to adequately perform collection servioesis or remit such collections to us could miatsr reduce our finance income and our
profitability. In addition, our finance income apdbfitability could be materially adversely affedt# we are not able to secure replacement
third party collection agencies and attorneys auirect payments from the customers to our newd {héirty collection agencies and attorneys
promptly in the event our agreements with our tpiadty collection agencies and attorneys are teatath our third-party collection agencies
and attorneys fail to adequately perform theirgdtiions or if our relationships with such third{yacollection agencies and attorneys adversel
change.

We rely on our third party collectors to comply Wwiall rules and regulations and maintain proper iatnal controls over their accounting
and operations.

Because the receivables were originated and serpigesuant to a variety of federal and/or stateslawa variety of entities and involved
consumers in all 50 states, the District of ColiemBianama and Puerto Rico there can be no assuhated original servicing entities have
all times, been in substantial compliance with aaile law. Additionally, there can be no assuraheg¢ we or our third-party collection
agencies and attorneys have been or will contioltat all times in substantial compliance witplaable law. The failure to comply with
applicable law and not maintain proper controlthiir accounting and operations could materiallyeasiely affect our ability to collect our
receivables and could subject us to increased,dosts and penalties.

We may rely on third parties to locate, identify devaluate consumer receivable portfolios availafde purchase.

We may rely on third parties, including brokers dimidd-party collection agencies and attorneysdémtify consumer receivable
portfolios and, in some instances, to assist walimevaluation and purchase of these portfoliosa Assult, if such third parties fail to identify
receivable portfolios or if our relationships wihch third parties are not maintained, our abititydentify and purchase additional receivable
portfolios could be materially adversely affectBdaddition, if we, or such parties, fail to corlgmr adequately evaluate the value or
collectability of these consumer receivable portfalwe may pay too much for such portfolios anffieswan impairment, which would
negatively impact our earnings.
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Our collections may decrease if bankruptcy filingsrease.

During times of economic recession, the amountedddted consumer receivables generally increaggish contributes to an increase
the amount of personal bankruptcy filings. Undetaia bankruptcy filings, a debtor’s assets aré solrepay credit originators, but since the
defaulted consumer receivables we purchase areajgnensecured, we may not be able to collectmsé receivables. Our collections may
decline with an increase in bankruptcy filingsolir actual collection experience with respect tiefaulted consumer receivable portfolio is
significantly lower than we projected when we pasid the portfolio, our earnings could be negatiaéfected.

The loss of any of our executive officers may ads&ly affect our operations and our ability to suasdully acquire receivable portfolios.

Gary Stern, our Chairman, President and Chief BikexOfficer, Robert J. Michel, our Chief Financt@fficer, and Mary Curtin, our
Senior Vice President, are responsible for makirzstantially all management decisions, includingedaining which portfolios to purchase,
the purchase price and other material terms of poctfiolio acquisitions. These decisions are imsgntal to the success of our business. As o
January 2009, Arthur Stern, former Chairman ofltbard of directors, now Chairman Emeritus, steppmen as an employee of the Company
Mr. Stern continues to serve on the board of dimscand consults with our executives. Significasses of the services of our executive
officers or the inability to replace our officerdtlwvindividuals who have experience in the industryvith the Company could disrupt our
operations and adversely affect our ability to sssfully acquire receivable portfolios.

The Stern family effectively controls the Comparsybstantially reducing the influence of our othetakholders.

Members of the Stern family own directly or indiffgcapproximately 28.2% of our outstanding sharesommon stock. As a result, the
Stern family is able to significantly influence thetions that require stockholder approval, inaigdi

* the election of our directors; al
» the approval of mergers, sales of assets or otiteorate transactions or matters submitted fork$tolcler approval

As a result, our other stockholders may have redlirduence over matters submitted for stockhokgproval. In addition, the Stern
family’s influence could preclude any unsolicited acgaisibf us and, consequently, materially adversélgcathe price of our common stox

An unfavorable government review of our tax returieeuld adversely affect our operating results.

Our tax filings are subject to review or audit bg 1RS and state and local taxing authorities. pnil2010, we received notification from
the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) that our 2608 2009 federal income tax returns would be additlis audit is currently in progress.
The IRS examinations of our federal tax returndatoesult in significant proposed adjustments. aith we believe our tax estimates are
reasonable, we can provide no assurance that malydétermination in an audit will not be mategiaifferent than the treatment reflected in
our historical income tax provisions and accruals assessment of additional taxes as a result afidit could adversely affect our income tax
provision and net income in the period or periazsahich that determination is made. In additidve Company signed a consent to extend th
IRS review period through 2010.

Negative press regarding the debt collection indyghay have a negative impact on a customer’s wiless to pay the debt we acquire.

Consumers are exposed to information from a nurobsources that may cause them to be more reluiigraty their debts or to pursue
legal actions against us. On-line, print and othedia publish stories about the debt collectiorugtdy which cite specific examples of abusive
collection practices. These stories can lead todpel dissemination of the story, adding to theelef exposure to negative publicity about our
industry. Various
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Internet sites are maintained where consumersistatiméir concerns about the activities of debtemtbrs and seek guidance from other websit
posters on how to handle the situation. Advertisagmby debt relief attorneys and credit counsetimgters are becoming more common,
adding to the negative attention given to our iliug\s a result of this negative publicity, cusiens may be more reluctant to pay their debts
or could pursue legal action against us regardi€ssether those actions are warranted. Theserectiould impact our ability to collect on the
receivables we acquire and affect our revenuegpeafiability.

Class action suits and other litigation could ditasur management’s attention from operating our binsss and increase our expenses.

Originators, debt purchasers and third-party cttbecagencies and attorneys in the consumer ciradlistry are frequently subject to
putative class action lawsuits and other litigatiGtaims include failure to comply with applicaltéevs and regulations and improper or
deceptive origination and servicing practices. Beirdefendant in such class action lawsuits orrditigeation could materially adversely affect
our results of operations and financial condition.

We may seek to make acquisitions that prove unsasfig or strain or divert our resources.

We may seek to grow through acquisitions of rel&tasinesses in the financial services sector. &ughisitions present risks that could
materially adversely affect our business and firemerformance, including:

 the diversion of our managem’s attention from our everyday business activi
» the assimilation of the operations and personn#i®ficquired busines

 the contingent and latent risks associated withptst operations of, and other unanticipated problarising in, the acquired
business; an

» the need to expand management, administration pactonal system:

If we make such acquisitions, we cannot predicttive

» we will be able to successfully integrate the opens of any new businesses into our busin

» we will realize any anticipated benefits of comptéacquisitions; ¢

 there will be substantial unanticipated costs dasedt with acquisitions

In addition, future acquisitions by us may resnit i

» potentially dilutive issuances of our equity setes;

 the incurrence of additional debt; a

* the recognition of significant charges for depréoimaand impairment charges related to goodwill atigér intangible asset
If our technology and phone systems are not opevatl, our operations could be disrupted and our Etyito successfully acquire
receivable portfolios and receive collections framstomers could be adversely affected.

Our success depends, in part, on sophisticatecbtelmunications and computer systems. The temptoasyof our computer or
telecommunications systems, through casualty, tipgrenalfunction or service provider failure, cowirupt our operations. In addition, we
must record and process significant amounts of giaiekly and accurately to properly bid on prospecacquisitions of receivable portfolios
and to access, maintain and expand the databasesawer our collection and monitoring activitiégy failure of our information systems and
their backup systems would interrupt our operatidvis may not have adequate backup arrangemenrdd fifrour operations and we may in
significant losses if an outage occurs. In addjtiea rely on third-party collection agencies arndraieys who also may be adversely affected i
the event of an outage in which the third-partyeziion agencies and attorneys do not have adefaateip arrangements. Any interruption in
our
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operations or our third-party collection agenciesd attorneys’ operations could have an adversetafh our results of operations and
financial condition. However, we are in the proceSsnplementing a disaster recovery program wihicluld mitigate this risk.

A cyber security incident could have a negativeeetfon our business as we outsource a significamaant of the collection accounts
with personal information electronically.

A security breach could have a detrimental effecoor business as we maintain a significant amofipersonal information in our
electronic files. A breach of our system or a lefikhe personal information we maintain could leage/ulnerable to, among other things, loss
of information and potential litigation each of whicould have a material adverse effect on oumiessi

Our organizational documents and Delaware law mayke it harder for us to be acquired without the cgent and cooperation of our
board of directors and management.

Several provisions of our organizational documamnis Delaware law may deter or prevent a takeovemgt, including a takeover
attempt in which the potential purchaser offerpdy a per share price greater than the currentaharice of our common stock. Under the
terms of our certificate of incorporation, our babaf directors has the authority, without furtheti@an by the stockholders, to issue shares of
preferred stock in one or more series and to #xrights, preferences, privileges and restrictibieseof. The ability to issue shares of preferrec
stock could tend to discourage takeover or acgorisfiroposals not supported by our current boardiretctors. In addition, we are subject to
Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation,halich restricts business combinations with sotoekdholders once the stockholder
acquires 15% or more of our common stock.

We have adopted a stockholder rights plan which kbmake it more difficult for a third-party to acque us.

We adopted a stockholder rights plan which is idéshto protect us from efforts to obtain controusfthat are inconsistent with our best
interests and the interests of our stockholders.rights will be exercisable ten days following #elier of the public announcement that a
stockholder has acquired 20% or more of our comsatock without board approval or the announcemeanttehder offer which results in the
ownership of 20% or more of our common stock. & tights become exercisable, all rights holdersgothan the person triggering the rights)
will be entitled to acquire our securities at astahtial discount. Because the rights may substfntilute the stock ownership of a person or
group attempting to take over the Company withbatapproval of our board of directors, the righ&gould make it more difficult for a
third-party to acquire us or a significant percgetaf our outstanding capital stock, without finsgotiating with the board of directors.

Future sales of our common stock by our affiliates other stockholders may depress our stock price.

Sales of a substantial number of shares of our camstock in the public market could cause a deergathe market price of our
common stock. We had 12,974,239 shares of comnoak &sued and outstanding as of December 2, 20flthese shares, 3,663,441 are
owned by our affiliates. In addition, options targhase 1,622,771 shares of our common stock wéstanding as of September 30, 2013, of
which 1,108,271 were exercisable. We may also iaglditional shares in connection with our busiress may grant additional stock options
or restricted shares to our employees, officergctlirs and consultants under our present or feiguéty compensation plans or we may issue
warrants to third parties outside of such plansoASeptember 30, 2013, there were 1,687,679 shawkable for such purpose with such
shares available under the 2012 Stock Option anfdrifgance Award Plan. If a significant portion bEse shares were sold in the public
market, the market value of our common stock cbl@dversely affected.

We have the ability to issue preferred shares, veauts, convertible debt and other securities withatibckholder approval which could
dilute the relative ownership interest of currentogkholders and adversely affect our share price.
Future sales of our equity-related securities ephblic market, including sales of our common lstmersuant to our shelf-registration
statement, could adversely affect the trading psfo@ur common stock and our
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ability to raise funds in new stock offerings. @emmon shares may be subordinate to classes efrpdfshares issued in the future in the
payment of dividends and other distributions madh respect to common shares, including distrilmgiapon liquidation or dissolution. Our
certificate of incorporation permits our board @kdtors to issue preferred shares without firgating stockholder approval. If we issued
preferred shares, these additional securities ragg Hividend or liquidation preferences seniorduo@mmon shares. If we issue convertible
preferred shares, a subsequent conversion mag dilatcurrent common stockholders’ interest. Weetsamilar abilities to issue convertible
debt, warrants and other equity securities.

Climate change and related regulatory responses radyersely impact our business.

Climate change as a result of emissions of greesehgases is a significant topic of discussion aay generate federal and other
regulatory responses in the near future, includlregimposition of a so-called “cap and trade” syst# is impracticable to predict with any
certainty the impact on our business of climatengeaor the regulatory responses to it, althoughesegnize that they could be significant.
most direct impact is likely to be an increasenergy costs, which would increase slightly our egiag costs, primarily through increased
utility and transportations costs. In addition,reesed energy costs could impact consumers arrchthiBiy to incur and repay indebtedness.
However, it is too soon for us to predict with amgrtainty the ultimate impact, either directionallyquantitatively, of climate change and
related regulatory responses.

Our quarterly operating results may fluctuate an@use our stock price to decline.

Because of the nature of our business, our quait@drating results may fluctuate, which may adelgraffect the market price of our
common stock. Our results may fluctuate as a re$wahy of the following:

 the timing and amount of collections on our consuraeeivable portfolios

 our inability to identify and acquire additionalrsumer receivable portfolio

» adecline in the estimated future value of our comsr receivable portfolio recoverie
* increases in operating expenses associated witrdiveth of our operation:

» general and economic market conditions;

» Prices we are willing to pay for consumer receiegirtfolios.
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ltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comment
Not applicable.

ltem 2.  Properties

Our executive and administrative offices are lodateEnglewood Cliffs, New Jersey, where we legg@raximately 14,700 square feel
general office space for approximately $21,000menth, plus utilities. The lease expires on JulyZI15, with a two-year renewal option.

Our office in Houston, Texas occupies approxima®e800 square feet of general office space for@pprately $3,800 per month. The
lease expires on August 18, 2016.

Our New York City office occupies approximately 8)6square feet for approximately $19,000 per mantiuding electricity. The lease
expires in September 2017.

We believe that our existing facilities are adeguat our current needs.

Item 3.  Legal Proceedings

In the ordinary course of our business, we areliragbin numerous legal proceedings. We regulailjaite collection lawsuits, using thi
party law firms, against consumers. Also, consurnecasionally initiate litigation against us, iniainthey allege that we have violated a
federal or state law in the process of collectingheeir account. We do not believe that these argicourse matters are material to our bus
and financial condition. As of the date of thisaepwe were not involved in any material litigation which we were a defendant.

Item 4.  Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.
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PART Il

ltem 5.  Market for Registran’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters anduer Purchases of Equity Securitie

Our common stock is quoted on the NASDAQ Globak8eMarket under the symbol “ASFIL.” On Decembe2@13 there were 15
holders of record of our common stock. High and &ales prices of our common stock since Octob201] as reported by NASDAQ are set
forth below (such quotations reflect inter-dealgcgs without retail markup, markdown, or commissiand may not necessarily represent
actual transactions):

High Low

2012

October 1, 2011 to December 31, 2( $ 8.7C $7.4C

January 1, 2012 to March 31, 2C 8.44 7.2%

April 1, 2012 to June 30, 20: 9.4C 7.8C

July 1, 2012 to September 30, 2( 10.0¢ 8.5t
2013

October 1, 2012 to December 31, 2( $10.4¢ $7.9¢

January 1, 2013 to March 31, 2C 9.82 9.1¢

April 1, 2013 to June 30, 20: 9.6¢ 8.27

July 1, 2013 to September 30, 2( 9.11 8.3t

Dividends

In December 2012, our Board of Directors approveddayment of a special accelerated annual dividés0.08 per share to
stockholders of record on December 24, 2012. Tlgeeagte dividend of $1,030,000 was paid on Decer®@®eP012. No additional dividends
were declared during fiscal year 2013. During tearyended September 30, 2012, we declared quacastydividends aggregating $1,111,00(
($0.02 per share, per quarter). Future dividendr@ants will be at the discretion of our board okdiors and will depend upon our financial
condition, operating results, capital requirememd any other factors our board of directors demtevant. In addition, our agreements with
our lender may, from time to time, restrict ourlipto pay dividends. Currently there are no resitbns in place.

Share Repurchase Program

On March 9, 2012, we adopted a Rule 10b5-1 Plaomjunction with our share repurchase programah#torized us to purchase up to
$20.0 million of shares of our common stock. Unidhert program, which expired in March 2013, we pasgd 885,000 shares at an aggregate
cost of approximately $7.9 million. The Rule 10b®l&an superseded the authorization to repurchasesin June 2011, pursuant to which we
repurchased approximately 59,000 shares at angaggreost of approximately $457,000. AdditionaityJune 2012, we repurchased
1.0 million shares for $9.4 million in a privatetggotiated transaction. We repurchased an aggrefjapproximately 1.9 million shares at an
aggregate cost of approximately $17.8 million.
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Performance Graph

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set farttany of our filings under the Securities Act 883, as amended, or the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, that might irzatp by reference thForm 10-K, in whole or in part, the following Penfisance Graph
shall not be incorporated by reference into anyhsfilings.
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ltem 6. Selected Financial Data

The following tables set forth a summary of oursaidated financial data as of and for the fivedisyears ended September 30, 2013.
The selected financial data for the five fiscalrgeanded September 30, 2013, have been derivedduormudited consolidated financial
statements. The selected financial data presemfewvishould be read in conjunction with our cordsatied financial statements, related notes,
other financial information included elsewherehistreport, including the information set forthliam 7 “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Ggiems”. Certain items in prior years’ informatibave been reclassified to conform to the
current year’s presentation.

Year Ended September 30

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
(In thousands, except per share date

Income Statement Dat

Finance income, ne $34,36: $40,59¢ $42,61( $45,63: $ 70,15¢
Other income 8,04¢ 3,90:¢ 557 21¢ 19¢
42,41; 44,50 43,16° 45,84¢ 70,35!
Costs and Expense
General and administrative expen 24,21 23,64( 21,80° 23,21 25,91¢
Interest expens 1,30(¢ 2,53¢ 3,01¢ 4,36¢ 8,45
Impairments of consumer receivables acquired fuidiation 12,59: 1,38: 721 13,02¢ 183,50(
38,10 27,56 25,54« 40,60¢ 217,86°
Income (loss) before income t 4,30¢ 16,94( 17,62 5,241 (147,519
Provisions (benefit) for income t: 1,16¢ 6,872 7,10z 2,112 (56,787
Net income (loss 3,14« 10,06¢ 10,52: 3,12¢ (90,725
Less: net income attributable to I-controlling interes 40€ 31 — — —
Net income (loss) attributable to Asta Funding, $ 2,73¢ $10,03" $10,52: $ 3,12¢ $ (90,72%)
Basic net income (loss) per shi $ 0.2] $ 071 $ 0.7¢ $ 0.22 $ (6.36)
Diluted net income (loss) per sh: $ 0.2] $ 0.7C $ 0.71 $ 0.2z $ (6.36)
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Other Financial Data (Unauditec
For the Year ended September

Cash collection

Portfolio purchases, at cc

Portfolio purchases, at fa

Return on average assets

Return on average stockholc’ equity(1)
Dividends declared per she

At September 3(

Total asset
Total debt

Total stockholder equity
Inception to dat— September 3(

Cumulative aggregate purchases, at

2013

$ 517
3.3
53.8
1.2%
1.€%
$ 0.0¢

207.¢
35.¢
169.¢

31,975.(

2012

$

$

70.C
2.5
6.C
4.2%
5.5%

0.0¢

233.2
61.t
168.t

31,921.!

2011
(In millions)

$ 81z
7.5
19.t
4.1%
6.2%
$ 0.0¢

248.]
71.€
173.(

31,915

2010

$ 101¢
8.C
269.]
1.1%
2.C%
$ 0.0¢

259.2
94.¢
161.¢

31,896.!

2009

$ 147«

19.€

577.C
(23.5%
(44.8%

$  0.0¢

290.¢
130.¢
157.¢

31,626.¢

(1) The return on average assets is computed liginivnet income by average total assets for theafiyear. The return on average
stockholders’ equity is computed by dividing netame by the average stockholders’ equity for thedli year. Both ratios have been
computed using beginning and perend balances
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Iltem 7.  Managemen's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition drResults of Operatior
Caution Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

This Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Fir@r@ondition and Results of Operations and othert® of this Annual Report on
Form 1(-K contain forward-looking statements that invotisks and uncertainties. All forward-looking statemts included in this Annual
Report on Form 1-K are based on information available to us ondlage hereof, and except as required by law, werassw obligation to
update any such forward-looking statements. Ouna&atesults may differ materially from those argiied in these forwartboking statemen
as a result of a number of factors, including theseforth under the caption “Risk Factors” contathin this report and elsewhere herein. The
following should be read in conjunction with oumaral financial statements contained elsewhere imrport.

Overview

We are primarily engaged in the business of aaggiinnanaging, servicing and recovering on portfbbconsumer receivables, and,
through Pegasus Funding, LLC, and BP Case Manageidn, funding of personal injury and matrimonigigation claims, respectively.

Consumer Receivables
The consumer receivable portfolios generally cdredfisne or more of the following types of consunmegeivables:

» charged-off receivables -accounts that have been written-off by the origilmmaind may have been previously serviced by dallec
agencies

» semi-performing receivables aecounts where the debtor is making partial ogirter monthly payments, but the accounts may have
been writte-off by the originators; an

» performing receivable—in limited circumstances accounts where the debtoraking regular monthly payments that may or maty
have been delinquent in the pe

We acquire these consumer receivable portfoli@ssignificant discount to the amount actually owgdhe borrowers. We acquire these
portfolios after a qualitative and quantitative lgss of the underlying receivables and calculhtegurchase price so that our estimated cash
flow offers us an adequate return on our investraéiet servicing expenses. After purchasing a phbotfwe actively monitor its performance
and review and adjust our collection and servigtgtegies accordingly.

We purchase receivables from credit grantors anerstthrough privately negotiated direct saleskémred transactions and auctions in
which sellers of receivables seek bids from sevyenaiqualified debt purchasers. We pursue new aitiguis of consumer receivable portfolios
on an ongoing basis through:

 our relationships with industry participants, ficél institutions, collection agencies, investansl @ur financing source
» brokers who specialize in the sale of consumerivabée portfolios; anc
» other sources

Litigation Funding

In December 2011, we entered into a joint ventutk RLF pursuant to which we purchase interestgeirsonal injury claims from
claimants who are a party to personal injury litigia, with the expectation of a settlement in thife. Through the joint venture, we advance,
to each personal injury claimant, funds on a necourse basis, at an agreed upon interest raaatiripation of a future settlement. The inte
purchased by us in each claim consists of the tm@htceive from such claimant part of the procemd®coveries which such claimant receive:
by reason of a settlement, judgment or award veiipect to such claimant’s claim. Open case revenestimated, recognized and accrued at
rate based on the expected realization and undargvguidelines and facts and circumstances foh @adividual case.
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When a case is closed and the cash is receivedd@dvance provided to a claimant, revenue isgrzed based upon the contractually
agreed upon interest rate and, if applicable, &eljfor any changes due to a settled amount aisdcfesged to the claimant.

In May 2012, we entered into a joint venture withldhce Point Management. The joint venture, thraugkwly-formed indirect
subsidiary, Balance Point, provides non-recoursdifig to claimants in matrimonial actions. Suchdsiican be used for legal fees, expert cos
and necessary living expenses. The venture widlivecan agreed percentage of the proceeds receyvsdch claimant upon final resolution of
the case. Balance Point’s profits and losses willlistributed 60% to us and 40% to Balance Poimiddament, after the return of our
investment, on a case by case basis, and afte¥ogpi&ferred return to us. Should the preferredrnele less than 15% on any $5 million
tranche, the 60%/40% profit and loss split wouldapusted to reflect our priority to a 15% prefdrreturn.

Critical Accounting Policies

We account for our investments in consumer recédvportfolios, using either:

» The interest method,; «

» The cost recovery metho

As we believe our extensive liquidating experieimceertain asset classes such as distressed caediteceivables, consumer loan
receivables and mixed consumer receivables hagathtwe use the interest method when we believeaneeasonably estimate the timing of
the cash flows. In those situations where we difsecar acquisitions into other asset classes iictvlwe do not possess the same expertise ol
history, or we cannot reasonably estimate the tjnoiiithe cash flows, we utilize the cost recovesttmod of accounting for those portfolios of
receivables.

We account for our investment in finance receivabiging the interest method under the guidanceSe B10. Static pools of accounts
are established. These pools are aggregated basmdtain common risk criteria. Each static poakisorded at cost and is accounted for as a
single unit for the recognition of income, prindipayments and loss provision. We currently consideaggregation portfolios of accounts,
purchased within the same fiscal quarter, that igdigehave the following characteristics:

e same issuer/originatc

» same underlying credit qualit

» similar geographic distribution of the accour

» similar age of the receivable; a

» same type of asset class (credit cards, teleconuations, etc.)

After determining that an investment will yield adequate return on our acquisition cost after senyifees, including court costs, which
are expensed as incurred, we use a variety oftgtiedi and quantitative factors to determine ttereged cash flows. The following variables
are analyzed and factored into our original estasiat

» the number of collection agencies previously attémgpto collect the receivables in the portfol
» the average balance of the receivat
» the age of the receivables (as older receivablghtne more difficult to collect or might be lesssteffective).

» past history of performance of similar assets —wagpurchase portfolios of similar assets, we beli@e have built significant history
on how these receivables will liquidate and castvf

* number of months since cha-off;
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* payments made since chg-off;
« the credit originator and their credit guidelin

* the locations of the customers as there are bsttitggs to attempt to collect in and ultimately vagéhbetter predictability of the
liquidations and the expected cash flo

» financial wherewithal of the selle

 jobs or property of the customers found within fmids-with our business model. Customers with jobs opprty are more likely to
repay their obligation and conversely, customethauit jobs or property are less likely to repayirtdligation; anc

« the ability to obtain customer statements fromdtiginal issuer

We will obtain and utilize as appropriate inputliring, but not limited to, monthly collection peajtions and liquidation rates, from our
third party collection agencies and attorneysuathér evidentiary matter, to assist us in develgmiollection strategies and in modeling the
expected cash flows for a given portfolio.

We acquire accounts that have experienced detdooraf credit quality between origination and thegte of our acquisition of the
accounts. The amount paid for a portfolio of acdsuaflects our determination that it is probabkewill be unable to collect all amounts due
according to the portfolio of accounts’ contractieaims. We consider the expected payments andagstifme amount and timing of
undiscounted expected principal, interest and athsh flows for each acquired portfolio coupledwekpected cash flows from accounts
available for sales. The excess of this amount theecost of the portfolio, representing the exa#ghe account’s cash flows expected to be
collected over the amount paid, is accreted intorime recognized on finance receivables over the@gd remaining life of the portfolio.

We believe we have significant experience in adqggicertain distressed consumer receivable poodadt a significant discount to the
amount actually owed by underlying customers. Wuaie these portfolios only after both qualitatared quantitative analyses of the
underlying receivables are performed and a caledlptirchase price is paid so that we believe dimated cash flow offers us an adequate
return on our acquisition costs including servicaxgpenses. Additionally, when considering largeatfpbo purchases of accounts, or portfolios
from issuers from whom we have little or limitedpexience, we have the added benefit of solicitimgthird party collection agencies and
attorneys for their input on liquidation rates atdimes incorporate such input into the price Werdor a given portfolio and the estimates we
use for our expected cash flows.

As a result of the current challenging economiciramment and the impact it has had on collectiéorsthe nonmedical account portfol
purchases acquired since the beginning of fiscal 2809, we extended our time frame of the expectaif recovering 100% of our invested
capital to a 24-39 month period from an 18-28 maqudtiod, and the expectation of recovering 130-140%r seven years from the previous
five year expectation. The 2009 time frame of exmians has remained in force for fiscal year 204/8.routinely monitor these expectations
against the actual cash flows and, in the eventdisb flows are below our expectations and we \xeliieere are no reasons relating to mere
timing differences or explainable delays (suchasaccur particularly when the court system is imed) for the reduced collections, an
impairment is recorded on portfolios accounteduioder the interest method. Conversely, in the etrentash flows are in excess of our
expectations and the reason is due to timing, waldwdefer the “excess” collection as deferred rexen

We use the cost recovery method when collectiors particular pool of accounts cannot be reasonataglicted. Under the cost
recovery method, no finance income is recognizéi tine cost of the portfolio has been fully recos@. A pool can become fully amortized
(zero carrying balance on the balance sheet) wlillegenerating cash collections. In this caskcah collections are recognized as finance
income when received.
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Results of Operations

The following discussion of our operations and fiicial condition should be read in conjunction watlr financial statements and notes
thereto included elsewhere in this report. In thgiseussions, most percentages and dollar amoantsiteen rounded to aid presentation. As :
result, all such figures are approximations.

Years Ended September 3C

2013 2012 2011
Finance income, net 81.(% 91.2% 98.7%
Other income 19.(% 8.8% 1.2%
Total revenus 100.(% 100.(% 100.(%
General and administrative expen 57.1% 53.1% 50.5%
Interest expens 3.1% 5.7% 7.C%
Impairments of consumer receivables acquired fuidiation 29.7% 3.1% 1.7%
Income before income tax 10.1% 38.1% 40.8%
Income tax expens 2.7% 15.5% 16.2%
Net income 7.4% 22.€% 24.8%
Less: net income attributable to I-controlling interes 0.€% 0.1% —%
Net income attributable to Asta Funding, | 6.5% 22.5% 24.4%

Year Ended September 30, 2013 Compared to the Eedled September 30, 2012

Finance income. For the year ended September 30, 2013, fingncoene decreased $6.2 million, or 15.4%, to $34illam from
$40.6 million for the year ended September 30, 20h2 decrease is primarily due to the lower |®fgdortfolio purchases over the last three
years and, as a result, an increased percentage pbrtfolio balances are in the later stage$eiirtyield curves. During the fiscal year enc
September 30, 2013, we acquired $53.5 million @efealue of new portfolios at a cost of $3.3 millas compared to $6.0 million of face ve
portfolios at a cost of approximately $2.5 milli@uring the fiscal year ended September 30, 20ihanEe income recognized from fully
amortized portfolios (zero basis revenue) was $88lon for the year ended September 30, 2013oaspared tch 36.4 million for the year
ended September 30, 2012.

Net collections decreased $15.9 million, or 22.99%%4.1 million for the fiscal year ended Septen8@r2013, from $70.0 million for
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2012. Durswgfiyear 2013, gross collections decreased 2102885.5 million from $108.5 million for
fiscal year 2012, reflecting the lower level of ghases and the age of our portfolios. Commissiadsees associated with gross collections
from our third party collection agencies and atéydecreased $7.1 million, or 18.3% as compar#tetsame period in the prior year and
averaged 36.7% of collections for the fiscal yeatesl September 30, 2012 as compared to 35.5% sathe prior year period. The higher rate
was the result of higher collections (of higher coissioned) out-of-statute paper coupled with inseglcasset search costs in the current fisca
year.

Further, as we have curtailed our purchases ofpmtfolios of consumer receivables in the lastéhiscal years, finance income was
negatively impacted and we expect will continubeémegatively impacted going forward since we hastebeen replacing our receivables
acquired for liquidation. Instead, we focused aueing our debt and being highly disciplined in portfolio purchases. We continue to rev
potential portfolio acquisitions regularly and wilirchase such portfolios when we believe the mselwill yield our desired rate of return, as
we did with the purchase of a consumer debt paotfiliring the fiscal year 2013. There were no aatie yield adjustments recorded during

the fiscal years ended September 30, 2013 and 2012.
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Other income. The following table summarizes other incometfar years ended September 30, 2013 and 2012:

2013 2012
Interest and dividend income $1,583,00! $1,614,00!
Personal injury fee incorr 6,438,001 1,647,001
Matrimonial fee incom 34,00( 165,00(
Realized (losses) gail (27,000 339,00(
Service fee incom 25,00( 92,00(
Other (4,000 46,00(

$8,049,001 $3,903,00!

General and administrative expensesFor the year ended September 30, 2013, geamdahdministrative expenses increased $0.6
million, or 2.4%, to $24.2 million from $23.6 mibin for the year ended September 30, 2012. Thedreris due primarily to increased expe
related to Pegasus Funding, LLC (12 months in ffigear 2013 compared to nine months in fiscal @&dr2) and other corporate initiatives,
offset by lower collection expenses of the consudadat operations which include lower salary andcefienosts, resulting from a headcount
reduction in January 2013, and other collectioneesggs. The costs associated with the collectioimbéss decreased 16.0% from fiscal year
2012.

Interest expense. For the year ended September 30, 2013, interpsinse decreased $1.2 million or 48.8% to $1liBomirom
$2.5 million during the year ended September 3222The decrease was due primarily to the redudtidhe balance of our Receivables
Financing Agreement (“Receivables Financing Agreafavith the Bank of Montreal (“BMO”) during theear ended September 30, 2013, a:
compared to the year ended September 30, 2012.

Impairments. We recorded impairments of $12,592,000 duregytear ended September 30, 2013 of which $10,088y@s recorded
on the Great Seneca portfolio (i.e. “the Portfétiorchase”). Impairments of $1,383,000 for the wrmted September 30, 2012, as collections
on various portfolios were short of expectations.

Income tax expense.Income tax expense of $1.2 million recorded focdlsyear 2013 consists of a $0.9 million currecbme tax
expense and a $0.3 million deferred income tax ms@elncome tax expense was lower primarily dev@r pre-tax income. In fiscal year
2012, income tax expense of $6.9 million consistiea current income tax expense of $3.5 million ardkferred income tax expense of $3.4
million.

Net income. For the year ended September 30, 2013, netaadecreased $ 6.9 million to $3.1 million from $LMillion for the year
ended September 30, 2012, primarily reflecting eéased total revenue, increased general and adrathistexpenses and impairments further
offset by lower interest expense and income taxes.

Income attributable to non-controlling interest.Income to non-controlling interests increase.4 million from $31 thousand due to
the improvement in the results of the joint venteegasus Funding, LLC.

Net income attributable to Asta Funding, Inc For the year ended September 30, 2013, neiria@ttributable to Asta Funding, Inc
decreased $7.3 million to $2.7 million from $10.0lion for the year ended September 30, 2012, prieeflecting decreased total revenue,
increased general and administrative expensesjrimgats and income to non-controlling interestgiply offset by lower interest expense
and income taxes. Net income per diluted sharéhtoyear ended September 30, 2013 decreased tb |$&. 2liluted share down from $0.70
diluted share for the year ended September 30,.2012

Year Ended September 30, 2012 Compared to the ¥Eealed September 30, 2011

Finance income For the year ended September 30, 2012, finamcoene decreased $2.0 million, or 4.7%, to $40.&anifrom $42.6 million
for the year ended September 30, 2011. The decieasearily due to the
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lower level of portfolio purchases over the lasb tyears and, as a result, an increased percenftage portfolio balances are in the later stage:
of their yield curves. During the fiscal year end=ptember 30, 2012, we acquired $6.0 million gefaalue of new portfolios at a cost of

$2.5 million as compared to $19.5 million of facdue portfolios at a cost of approximately $7.5liom, during the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2011. Finance income recognized futlynamortized portfolios (zero basis revenue) W&86.4 million for the year ended
September 30, 2012 as compare8 8.3 million for the year ended September 30, 2011.

Net collections decreased $11.2 million, or 13.8%10.0 million for the fiscal year ended Septen8®r2012, from $81.2 million for
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2011. Durgaafiyear 2011, gross collections decreased 1639248.5 million from $129.7 million for
fiscal year 2011, reflecting the lower level of ghases, the age of our portfolios and the slowdiovthe economy. Commissions and fees
associated with gross collections from our thirdyeollection agencies and attorneys decreased$tllion, or 20.7% as compared to the
same period in the prior year and averaged 35.586ltéctions for the fiscal year ended Septembe28Q2 as compared to 37.4% in the samq
prior year period. The lower rate was the resuli ohe-time $1.3 million charge in the fourth qeadf fiscal year 2011 that impacted
commissions and fees.

Further, as we have curtailed our purchases ofpwtiolios of consumer receivables in the lastéhiscal years, finance income was
negatively impacted and we expect will continubeémegatively impacted going forward since we hastebeen replacing our receivables
acquired for liquidation. Instead, we focused aueing our debt and being highly disciplined in portfolio purchases. We continue to rev
potential portfolio acquisitions regularly and willirchase such portfolios when we believe the mselwill yield our desired rate of return.
There were no accretable yield adjustments recaddedg the fiscal years ended September 30, 26d2811.

Other income. The following table summarizes other incometfar years ended September 30, 2012 and 2011:

2012 2011
Interest and dividend income $1,614,00! $ 579,00(
Personal injury fee incorr 1,647,001 —
Matrimonial fee incom 165,00( —
Realized gain 339,00t —
Service fee incom 92,00( 86,00(
Other 46,00( (108,000

$3,903,00! $ 557,00(

General and administrative expensesFor the year ended September 30, 2012, geaedshdministrative expenses increased
$1.8 million, or 8.4%, to $23.6 million from $21ndillion for the year ended September 30, 2011. ilbeease is due primarily to increased
professional fees related to acquisition activitg ather corporate initiatives, offset by lowerleotion expenses which include lower salary
and benefit costs. In addition, there were incré@&sgenses related to the investment in the perggngey financing unit, Pegasus Funding,
LLC.

Interest expense. For the year ended September 30, 2012, interpsinse decreased $0.5 million or 15.8% to $2ltomirom
$3.0 million during the year ended September 3@12The decrease was due primarily to the redudtidhe balance of our Receivables
Financing Agreement (“Receivables Financing Agreatfavith the Bank of Montreal (“BMO”) during theear ended September 30, 2012, a:
compared to the year ended September 30, 2011tiéwtly, the average interest rate during the wsated September 30, 2012 on the
Receivable Financing Agreement was 3.76% as cordgar®.75% during the year ended September 30,. 204, we repaid the outstanding
borrowings on our subordinated debt during fisen2011.

Impairments. We recorded impairments of $1,383,000 durirgytsar ended September 30, 2012 as compared tq090Xbr the year
ended September 30, 2011, as collections on vapiotflios were short of expectations.
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Income tax expense.Income tax expense for fiscal year 2012 of $6.%i@nilconsists of a current tax expense of $3.5iomland a
deferred tax expense of $3.4 million. The $3.4ionlldeferred tax expense consists of $1.8 millibfederal tax expense and $1.6 million in
state deferred expense. The true up adjustmentddiscal years 2012 and 2011 federal tax retwere not material.

Net income. For the year ended September 30, 2012, netnaaecreased $0.5 million to $10.0 million from ELnillion for the year
ended September 30, 2011, primarily reflectingéased total revenue offset by increased generah@méhistrative expenses and impairment
further offset by lower interest expense and incéaxes. Net income per diluted share for the yaded September 30, 2012 decreased sli
to $0.70 per diluted share down from $0.71 penedwshare for the year ended September 30, 2011.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our primary source of cash from operations is ctit@s on the receivable portfolios we have acgli@ur primary uses of cash include
repayments of debt, our purchases of consumerveddei portfolios, interest payments, costs involirethe collections of consumer
receivables, taxes and dividends, if approvedhénpiast, we relied significantly upon our lenderpriovide the funds necessary for the purc
of consumer receivables acquired for liquidation.

Receivables Financing Agreement

In March 2007, Palisades XVI borrowed approxima&227 million under the Receivables Financing Agrest, as amended, in order to
finance the Portfolio Purchase. The Portfolio Pasehhad a purchase price of $300 million (plus 2B%et payments after Palisades XVI
recovers 150% of its purchase price plus costdi$uwhich recovery has not yet occurred). Prightomodification, discussed below, the ¢
was full recourse only to Palisades XVI and borénderest rate of approximately 170 basis poinesrddBOR. The original term of the
agreement was three years. This term was extendeddh of the Second, Third, Fourth and Fifth Ammeadts to the Receivables Financing
Agreement as discussed below. The Portfolio Puechsaserviced by Palisades Collection LLC, our whoilvned subsidiary which has
engaged unaffiliated subservicers for a majorityhef Portfolio Purchase.

Since the inception of the Receivables FinancingeAment, amendments have been signed to revisagdarms of the Receivables
Financing Agreement. Currently, we are operatindgenrthe Settlement Agreement and Omnibus Amend(t®attlement Agreement”).

On August 7, 2013, Palisades XVI, a 100% owned hetky remote subsidiary, entered into a Settlemgneement with BMO as an
amendment to the Receivables Financing Agreemembrisideration for a $15 million prepayment funtgdhe Company, BMO has agreed
to significantly reduce minimum monthly paymentuggments and the interest rate. If and when BM&ikes the next $15 million of
collections from the Portfolio Purchase, less dertaedits for payments made prior to the consunonaif the Settlement Agreement, the
Company is entitled to receive the next $15 milliomet collections, thus recovering the prepayntieait it funded. Thereafter, BMO will have
the right to receive 30% of future net collectioNs. gain or loss was recognized with regard toSbtlement Agreement. Palisades XVI wa
technical violation of the borrowing base coveraniune 30, 2013. The covenant was eliminatededynfiom the Settlement Agreement.

On October 26, 2010, Palisades XVI entered intd=ifte Amendment to the Receivables Financing Agreet (the “Fifth Amendmen}”
The effective date of the Fifth Amendment is Octobg 2010. The Fifth Amendment (i) extends theimtjpn date of the Receivables
Financing Agreement to April 30, 2014, (ii) reduties minimum monthly total payment to $750,000) éiccelerates our guarantee credit
enhancement of $8,700,000, which was paid uponutioecof the Fifth Amendment, (iv) eliminated oimited guarantee of repayment of the
loans outstanding by Palisades XVI, and (v) revieesdefinition of “Borrowing Base Deficit”, as deéd in the Receivables Financing
Agreement, to mean the excess, if any, of 105%efdans outstanding over the borrowing base.
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In connection with the Fifth Amendment, on OctoBér 2010, we entered into the Omnibus Terminatigne@ment (the “Termination
Agreement”). The limited recourse subordinated gniyr set forth in the Fourth Amendment, was elitédaupon signing the Termination
Agreement.

On September 30, 2013 and 2012, the outstandirgbalon this loan was approximately $35.8 millamg $61.5 million, respectively.
The applicable interest rate at September 30, 20832012 was 0.43 % and 3.73%, respectively. Oerrage debt obligation for the fiscal ye
ended September 30, 2013 and 2012 was approxinggdl{t million and $66.8 million, respectively. Taeerage interest rate of the
Receivable Financing Agreement was 3.05% and 3fo8%e years ended September 30, 2013 and 204/ ctvely.

Other significant amendments to the Receivablearféimg Agreement are as follows:

Second Amendment — Receivables Financing Agreerdatgd December 27, 2007 revised the amortizatbadule of the loan from
25 months to approximately 31 months. BMO chargais®des XVI a fee of $475,000 which was paid oruday 10, 2008. The fee was
capitalized and is being amortized over the remgitife of the Receivables Financing Agreement.

Third Amendment — Receivables Financing Agreemaatied May 19, 2008 extended the payments of thetlwaugh December 2010.
The lender also increased the interest rate frodnbbsis points over LIBOR to approximately 320 gasints over LIBOR, subject to
automatic reduction in the future if additional tapcontributions are made by the parent of PdisaXVI.

Fourth Amendment — Receivables Financing Agreendated February 20, 2009, among other thingsp\iieted the collection rate
minimum to $1 million per month (plus interest drds) as an average for each period of three cotigeenonths, (ii) provided for an
automatic extension of the maturity date from Apf| 2011 to April 30, 2012 should the outstandiatance be reduced to $25 million or less
by April 30, 2011, and (iii) permanently waived thieevious termination events. The interest rateained unchanged at approximately
320 basis points over LIBOR, subject to automagatuction in the future should certain collectiorestiones be attained.

Senior Secured Discretionary Credit Facility

On December 30, 2011, we and certain of our sudrsidi obtained a $20,000,000 Senior Secured Disnegy Credit Facility (the
“Credit Facility”) from Bank Leumi pursuant to a &o Agreement (the “Loan Agreement”) between ceréiour subsidiaries and Bank
Leumi. Under the Loan Agreement, certain of oursadiaries issued a Revolving Note to Bank Leunthia principal amount of up to
$20,000,000. Any outstanding balance under theiCFedility accrues interest at an annual rate etjuthe Prime Rate plus 50 basis points.
The Credit Facility was not utilized and expiredrebruary 23, 2013.

Litigation Funding

During fiscal 2012, we entered into joint ventuneth APH and Balance Point Management relatindheoftinding of personal injury and
matrimonial claims. For a more detailed descriptibour litigation funding operations, see the gatentitled “Litigation Funding Business”
under “ltem 1. Business.” As of the date of thisa#, we have invested $35.8 million and $1.6 wiillin the APH and Balance Point
Management joint ventures, respectively. We hase ptovided a $1.0 million revolving line of crethtpartially fund Balance Point
Management'’s operations. The line of credit accimesest at the prevailing prime rate and hasdial term of twenty-four months, which
may be extended under certain circumstances fadditional 24 month period. The revolving line oédit is collateralized by Balance Point
Management's share of the profits in our joint weatand other assets. The revolving line of crisdipproximately $917,000 at September 30
2013.

Cash Flow

As of September 30, 2013, our cash and cash eguigaincreased $30.2 million to $35.2 million, fr&5.0 million at September 30,
2012. Although our cash flow remains strong, weehdiversified some of our cash flow into other istveents.

37



Table of Contents

Net cash provided by operating activities was $18illion during the fiscal year ended SeptemberZi,3, compared to $17.4 million
for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2012. iitxease is primarily due to higher net income afigion-cash impairment charges and lower
tax payments, partially offset by a decrease infdum third party collection agencies and attornéyst cash provided by investing activities
was $40.1 million during the fiscal year ended 8eyter 30, 2013, as compared to net cash usedeasting activities of $69.9 million during
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2012. The ehiancash provided by / (used in) investing aateiis primarily due to the investing activ
in other than cash and cash equivalents depositmgunts and lower collections of consumer recé@dgaficquired for liquidation during the
year ended September 30, 2013 as compared torttee @2 period. We increased our investment inlaai for sale securities ai
investments in personal injury claims. Net cashlusdinancing activities was $28.9 million duritige fiscal year ended September 30, 2013,
as compared to $26.9 million in the same 2012 defitie increase in net cash used in financing ideswvas primarily due to an increase in
the pay down of the non-recourse debt offset byelogwurchases of treasury stock in the fiscal yaded September 30, 2013 as compared to
the prior period.

Our cash requirements have been and will contiodeetsignificant and have, in the past, dependesktarnal financing to acquire
consumer receivables and operate the businessfiGighrequirements include repayments under aurrecourse debt facilities, investment
in personal injury claims, costs involved in thdl@ctions of consumer receivables, and investmeibhsumer receivable portfolios. In
addition, dividends are paid if approved by therbaat directors. Acquisitions recently have beeraficed through cash flows from operating
activities. We believe we will be less dependentaamedit facility in the shoitierm, as our cash flow from operations will be might to inves
in personal injury claims, purchase portfolios aparate the business. However, as the collectisim@ment remains challenging, we may
seek additional funding.

We believe our available cash resources and expeetsh flows from operations will be sufficientftmd operations for the next twelve
months. We do not expect to incur any materialteapxpenditures during the next twelve months.

We are cognizant of the current market fundameimaise debt purchase and company acquisition nseich, because of significant
supply and tight capital availability, could resmltincreased buying opportunities. The outcomarf future transaction(s) is subject to marke
conditions. In addition, due to these opportunjties continue to seek opportunities with bankingamizations and others on a possible
financing loan facility.

Share Repurchase Program

On March 9, 2012, we adopted a Rule 10b5-1 Plaomunction with our share repurchase programah#torized us to purchase up to
$20.0 million of shares of our common stock. Unitheit program, which expired in March 2013, we pasgd 885,000 shares at an aggregate
cost of approximately $7.9 million. The Rule 10b®l&an superseded the authorization to repurchasesin June 2011, pursuant to which we
repurchased approximately 59,000 shares at angaggreost of approximately $457,000. AdditionaityJune 2012, we repurchased
1.0 million shares for $9.4 million in a privatelggotiated transaction. We repurchased an aggrefjafgproximately 1.9 million shares at an
aggregate cost of approximately $17.8 million.

Contractual Obligations
The following table summarizes our contractual gégiions in future fiscal years:
Payments Due By Period

More Than
Less Than
Total 1 Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years 5 Years
Long Term Debt Obligations $ 9,659,00 $4,600,00! $5,059,00! $ — $ —
Operating Lease Obligatiol 1,588,00! 540,00( 800,00( 248,00( —
Total $11,247,00 $5,140,00! $5,859,00! $248,00( $ —
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The Company and its subsidiary Fund Pegasus armitted under the Pegasus Operating Agreement tbuprio $21,800,000 to
Pegasus per year for a term of five (5) years mggnin December 2011. The sum of $20,000,000 ketased for funding investments in
litigation matters and the balance is to be usedferating expenses of Pegasus which are to beest to Fund Pegasus before any profit
distribution is to be made. The loan is securethlyassets of Pegasus. These loans provide firgafaithe personal injury litigation claims
and operating expenses of Pegasus. As of Septe&8@b2013, the Company had an invested balancepsbzimately $35.8 million in personal
injury cases.

In connection with the divorce funding business, @ompany may invest up to $15 million in the Veatto fund divorce cases,
consisting of three tranches of $5 million. At @ption, we may invest additional funds in the Veafprovided that the first $35 million in
additional investment must be provided in tranabfes10 million, $10 million, and $15 million, resgiévely. We are entitled to a 15% cash-on-
cash return in each particular tranche. If the Ments unable to provide the 15% preferred retamston any initial $5 million tranche,
BPCM'’s profit and loss distribution will be adjudtéom the current 60% and 40% split to providenmith the equivalent of a 15% preferred
return, if possible. To date, we have an investdrze of $1.5 million in matrimonial cases.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of September 30, 2013, we did not have anyiogiships with unconsolidated entities or finangattners, such as entities often
referred to as structured finance or special pwemugities, established for the purpose of fatititaoff-balance sheet arrangements or other
contractually narrow or limited purposes. As sugh,are not materially exposed to any financingjiiiy, market or credit risk that could ar
if we had engaged in such relationships.

The following table shows the changes in finanoeirables, including amounts paid to acquire nemfglos:

Year Ended September 30

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
(In millions)

Balance at beginning of peri $ 86.¢ $115.2 $147.( $208.: $ 449.(
Acquisitions of finance receivables, net of buyks 3.2 2.t 7.5 8.C 19.€
Cash collections from customers applied to prin€ip: (29.7) (29.9) (38.9) (55.7) (69.7)
Cash collections represented by account salesegptgliprincipal

(1) — 0.9 0.2 (1.2 (8.9
Impairments/Portfolio write dow (12.6) (1.4 (0.7) (13.0 (183.5
Effect of foreign exchang — — — — 0.4
Balance at end of peric $ 57.€ $ 86.¢ $115.2 $147.( $ 208.:

(1) Cash collections applied to principal cons@dtsash collections less income recognized on fiearceivables plus amounts received by u
from the sale of consumer receivable portfoliothtad parties

Supplementary Information on Consumer Receivabbegdbios:

Portfolio Purchases
Year Ended September 30

2013 2012 2011

(In millions)
Aggregate Purchase Pri $ 3.2 $2.E $ 7.t
Aggregate Portfolio Face Amou 53.t 6.C 19.t
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The prices we pay for our consumer receivable pliot are dependent on many criteria includingaye of the portfolio, the number of
third party collection agencies and attorneys tiaafe been involved in the collection process aedytpgraphical distribution of the portfolio.
When we pay higher prices for portfolios which pegforming or fresher, we believe it is not at saerifice of our expected returns. Price
fluctuations for portfolio purchases from quarteiquarter or year to year are primarily indicatbféhe overall mix of the types of portfolios
are purchasing.

Schedule of Portfolios by Income Recognition Categp

September 30, 201 September 30, 201 September 30, 201
Cost Interest Cost Interest Cost Interest
Recovery Method Recovery Method Recovery Method
Portfolios Portfolios Portfolios Portfolios Portfolios Portfolios
(In millions)
Original Purchase Price
(at period end $ 466. $ 783.¢ $ 466.( $ 780.( $ 443: $ 787
Cumulative Aggregate Managed Portfolios
(at period end 13,940.: 18,018.: 13,940.: 17,964.¢ 13,915.. 17,985.(
Receivable Carrying Value
(at period end 49.¢ 8.1 74.€ 12.: 84.C 31.2
Finance Income Earned (for the respective
period) 4.4 30.C 3.C 37.€ 2.7 39.¢
Total Cash Flows (for the respective peri 19.C 35.1 20.2 49.¢ 19.€ 61.€

The original purchase price reflects what we paidliie receivables from 1998 through the end ofdlspective period. The cumulative
aggregate managed portfolio balance is the origiggtegate amount owed by the borrowers at thegtie: respective period. Additional
differences between year to year period end batamag result from the transfer of portfolios betwéige interest method and the cost reco
method. We purchase consumer receivables at stibs@incounts from the face amount. We recordrfogincome on our receivables under
either the cost recovery or interest method. Tkeiv@ble carrying value represents the currenstinghe receivables after collections and
amortization of the original price.

Collections Represented by Account Sales

Collections

Represented Finance

By account Income
Year Sales Recognized
2013 $2,448,00! $2,015,00!
2012 117,00( 50,00(
2011 $ 390,00( $ 155,00(
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Portfolio Performance (1)

The following table summarizes our historical politf purchase price and cash collections on intenethod portfolios on an annual
vintage basis since October 1, 2012 through Sepest 2013.

Total

Net Cash Estimated
Collections Estimated Total Collections
Purchase Purchase Including Remaining Estimated as a Percentage
Period Price(2) Cash Sales(3) Collections(4 Collections(5) of Purchase Pric
2001 $ 65,120,00 $105,748,00 $ — $105,748,00 162%
2002 36,557,00 48,318,00 — 48,318,00 132%
2003 115,626,00 224,044,00 — 224,044,00 194%
2004 103,743,00 194,156,00 19,00( 194,175,00 187%
2005 126,023,00 229,781,00 407,00( 230,188,00 18%
2006 163,392,00 275,330,00 992,00( 276,322,00 16%
2007 109,235,00 110,355,00 3,679,00! 114,034,00 104%
2008 26,626,00 53,595,00 — 53,595,00 201%
2009 19,127,00 41,017,00 — 41,017,00 214%
2010 7,212,001 23,704,00 — 23,704,00 32%
2011 — — — — 0%
2012 — — — — 0%
2013 3,340,001 253,00( 4,090,00! 4,343,00! 13(%

(1) Total collections do not represent full collectiadfghe Company with respect to this or any otresry

(2) Purchase price refers to the cash paid tolergelacquire a portfolio less the purchase pridended by a seller due to the return of non-
compliant accounts (referred to“ put-back:"), plus third party commission

(3) Cash collections include net collections froom third-party collection agencies and attornepdiections from our in-house efforts and
collections represented by account st

(4) Does not include estimated collections from poifeothat are zero bas

(5) Total estimated collections refer to the actualasesth collections, including cash sales, plus eg@thremaining collection

We do not anticipate collecting the majority of fhechased principal amounts. Accordingly, theatd#hce between the carrying value o
the portfolios and the gross receivables is natatd/e of future finance income from these accewattquired for liquidation. Since we
purchased these accounts at significant discowatsinticipate collecting only a portion of the fareounts.

For the year ended September 30, 2013, we recaffirmnce income of $4.4 million under the cosorery method because of $4.4
million of collections in excess of our purchasg@ion certain portfolios. In addition, we earn&®® million of finance income under the
interest method based on actuarial computationshwyim turn, are based on actual collections dutfiegperiod and on what we project to
collect in future periods. During the year endegt&mber 30, 2013, we purchased portfolios withggregate purchase price of $3.3 million
with a face value (gross contracted amount) of 5&dllion.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In July 2013, the FASB issued Accounting Standalgdate (“ASU”) No. 2013-11 thcome Taxes (Topic 740) Presentation of an
Unrecognized Tax Benefit When a Net Operating Gassyforward, a Similar Tax Loss, or a Tax Cred&r@/forward Exists."There is
diversity in practice in the presentation of unigmiaed tax benefits in those instances. Some esfitiesent unrecognized tax benefits as a
liability unless the unrecognized tax benefit isedtly associated with a tax position taken imayt@ar that results in, or that resulted in, the
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recognition of a net operating loss or tax creditgforward for that year and the net operating loistax credit carryforward has not been
utilized. Other entities present unrecognized &mdfits as a reduction of a deferred tax asset feat operating loss or tax credit carryforward
in certain circumstances. The objective of the aingnts in this Update is to eliminate that divgrsitpractice. This standard becomes
effective for fiscal years and interim periods lmeging after December 15, 2013. The Company is vaxg the affects of implementation of
this standard.

In February 2013, the FASB issued Accounting Stedslblpdate (“ASU”) No. 2013-02 Reporting of Amounts Reclassified Out of
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Inc”. The amendments require an entity to present, eithie income statement or the notes,
significant amounts reclassified out of accumulatttter comprehensive income by the respectiveitémas of net income, but only if the
amount reclassified is required under U.S. Genedatcepted Accounting Principles (“GAAPt) be reclassified to net income in its entiret
the same reporting period. For other amounts tteahet required under U.S. GAAP to be reclassifietiheir entirety, an entity is required to
cross-reference to other disclosures that mightigecadditional details about the amounts. This A#$ effective for annual and interim
periods beginning January 1, 2013. Adoption ofAls&) did not have a significant effect on the Compsiconsolidated financial statements
(see Note 3: Investments).

Inflation

We believe that inflation has not had a materigdat on our results of operations for the yeargdrgeptember 30, 2013, 2012 and
2011.

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About MarkRisk

We are exposed to various types of market riskénrtormal course of business, including the impéetterest rate changes and change:
in corporate tax rates. A material change in thiases could adversely affect our operating resutscash flows. At September 30, 2013, our
Receivables Financing Agreement, under the nevieetht Agreement, all of which is variable ratetgdéld an outstanding balance of
$35.8 million. A 25 basis-point increase in inténeges would have increased our annual intergmrese by approximately $135,000 based or
the average debt obligation outstanding durinditeal year. We do not currently invest in derivatifinancial or commodity instruments.

Item 8. Financial Statements And Supplementary Da

The Financial Statements of the Company, the Nbr®to and the Report of Independent RegisterélidPAiccounting Firm thereon
required by this item begin on page F-1 of thiorecated immediately preceding the signaturespag
Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants orcéunting and Financial Disclosure

During the fiscal year ended September 30, 20E3Cihmpany changed Independent Registered Publicuhting Firms. Grant Thornt
LLP was replaced by WeiserMazars LLP.
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

An evaluation of the effectiveness of the our disare controls and procedures (as defined in ExgghAct Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15
(e)) as of the end of the period ended Septemhe2@IB was carried out by us under the superviaimhwith the participation of our chief
executive officer and chief financial officer. Basgpon that evaluation, our chief executive offiaad chief financial officer concluded that as
of September 30, 2013, our disclosure controlspandedures were effective to ensure (i) that infstion we are required to disclose in reports
that we file or submit under the Securities ExcleaAgt of 1934 is recorded, processed, summarizddeported within the time periods
specified in the SEC’s rules and forms and (ii} $iach information is accumulated and communicadedanagement, including our president,
in order to allow timely decisions regarding reedidisclosure.
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Management’'s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finaha@orting (as defined in Rule 13a-
15(f) under the Exchange Act). Under the superwisind with the participation of our managementiuding its principal executive officer a
principal financial officer, we conducted an assemst of the effectiveness of its internal contregiofinancial reporting. In making this
assessment, we used the criteria set forth by timen@ittee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tregd@ammission (“COSO”) in Internal
Control — Integrated Framework. Based on managemassessment, and based on the criteria of theQC@8 believe that, as of
September 30, 2013, our internal control over fai@reporting is effective at the reasonable amste level.

Our internal control system was designed to prové@esonable assurance regarding the reliabilifinahcial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples in the U.S. Our internal
control over financial reporting includes thoseigies and procedures that:

(i) pertain to the maintenance of records thatgasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettitansactions and dispositions of
assets;

(ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactiomsecorded as necessary to permit preparatifinasfcial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generallyepted in the U.S., and that our receipts and experd are being made only in
accordance with authorization of our managementdinedtors; and

(iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding priwemr timely detection of unauthorized acquisitioise or disposition of our
assets that could have a material effect on thediolated financial statements.

Our independent registered public accounting fiwejserMazars LLP, audited our internal control oweancial reporting as of
September 30, 2013 and their report dated Decetihe013 expresses an unqualified opinion on derril control over financial reporting
and is included in this Item 9A.

Changes in Internal Controls over Financial Reportng

There have not been any changes in our internatasrover financial reporting (as defined in Exapa Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15
(f) that occurred during our fourth fiscal quartieat have materially affected, or are reasonakéhl to materially affect, our internal control
over financial reporting.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Asta Funding, Inc.

We have audited Asta Funding, Inc. and subsidiafies “Company”) internal control over financiaporting as of September 30, 2013,
based on criteria established in Internal Contrdintegrated Framework issued by the Committee ohSpiong Organizations of the Treadv
Commission ("*COSQ”). The Comparsyinanagement is responsible for maintaining effedtiternal control over financial reporting and its
assessment of the effectiveness of internal cootret financial reporting, included in the accomyag Management’s Annual Report on
Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our r@sgibility is to express an opinion on the Comparigternal control over financial reporting
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stedwof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti@d&/nited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet dndbtain reasonable assurance about whetheatigianternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe®is:. audit included obtaining an understanding térimal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness etésting and evaluating the design and operatifegfeness of internal control, based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedsre®& considered necessary in the circumstancefeliéve that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company'’s internal control over financial repodiis a process designed to provide reasonablesaesuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordanttegeinerally accepted accounting princip

A company'’s internal control over financial repodiincludes those policies and procedures thai€ftrin to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reftbettransactions and dispositions of the assdtseocfompany; (2) provide reasonable assuranc
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatp@aparation of financial statements in accor@awith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditureb®ttbmpany are being made only in accordance witioaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanabburance regarding prevention or timely deteatfainauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzaneterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or détaisstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomdeénaate because of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all maleespects, effective internal control over figal reporting as of September 30,
2013, based on criteria established in Internalt@br— Integrated Framework issued by COSO.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), the
consolidated balance sheet of the Company as dé®der 30, 2013 and the related consolidated séatenof income, comprehensive incol
stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for the yeatesl September 30, 2013, and our report dated Desret3, 2013, expressed an unqualified
opinion on those consolidated financial statements.

/sl WeiserMazars LLP
New York, New York
December 13, 2013
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Item 9B. Other Information.
None.
PART III
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Govente.

The information required by this item will be setth in our definitive proxy statement with respexbur 2014 annual meeting of
stockholders to be filed not later than 120 daysré8eptember 30, 2013 and is incorporated hesethib reference.
Item 11. Executive Compensatior

The information required by this item will be setth in our definitive proxy statement with respecbur 2014 annual meeting of
stockholders to be filed not later than 120 daysré&8eptember 30, 2013 and is incorporated hesethib reference.
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners aianagement and Related Stockholder Matte

The information required by this item will be setth in our definitive proxy statement with respexbur 2014 annual meeting of
stockholders to be filed not later than 120 daysré8eptember 30, 2013 and is incorporated hesethib reference.
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, aDatector Independence.

The information required by this item will be setth in our definitive proxy statement with respecbur 2014 annual meeting of
stockholders to be filed not later than 120 daysré8eptember 30, 2013 and is incorporated hesethib reference.
Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Service

The information required by this item will be setth in our definitive proxy statement with respecbur 2014 annual meeting of
stockholders to be filed not later than 120 daysr&8eptember 30, 2013 and is incorporated hesethib reference.

Part IV
Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedule
(a) The following documents are filed as part @ tieport
Exhibit
Number
3.1 Certificate of Incorporation(1
3.2 Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation|
3.3 Certificate of Designation of Series A Preferredc&(3)
3.4 Bylaws(4)
3.5 Amendments to Article IX of the E-Laws of Asta Funding, Inc.(¢
4.1 Rights Agreement, dated as of August 23, 2012, &etwAsta Funding, Inc. and American Stock Tran&férust Co., LLC(6
10.1 Asta Funding, Inc 1995 Stock Option Plan as Ame(ibe
10.2 Asta Funding, Inc. 2002 Stock Option Plar
10.3 Asta Funding, Inc. Equity Compensation Plar
10.4 Asta Funding, Inc. 2012 Stock Option and Perforneafsward Plan(8
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Exhibit

Number

10.5
10.6
10.7
10.8
10.9
10.10
10.11
10.12
10.13

10.14
10.15
10.16
10.17
10.18
10.19
10.20

10.21

10.22
10.23
10.24

10.25

10.26

10.27
10.28
10.29
10.30
10.31
10.32
10.33

Receivables Finance Agreement dated March 2, 28@veen the Company and the Bank of Montree

Subservicing Agreement between the Company an8ubservicer dated March 2, 2007(.

Purchase and Sale Agreement dated February 5, T\

First Amendment to the Receivables Finance Agreéufeted July 1, 2007 between the Company and BaMoatreal(11)
Second Amendment to the Receivables Financing Aggeedated December 27, 2007(

Third Amendment to the Receivables Financing Agresindated May 19, 2008(1

Amended and Restated Servicing Agreement dated19ag008 between the Company and The Bank of Mal{ir¢)
Subordinated Promissory Note between Asta Funditegand Asta Group, Inc. dated April 29, 2008(

Fourth Amendment to the Receivables Financing Agere dated February 20, 2009 between the CompahiBank of
Montreal(16)

Subordinated Guarantor Security Agreement dateduaeyp 20, 2009 to Bank of Montreal(1

Subordinated Limited Recourse Guaranty Agreemetetddaebruary 20, 2009(1

Subordinated Guarantor Security Agreement dateduaep 20, 2009 to Asta Group, Inc.(]

Subordinated Limited Recourse Guaranty Agreemetetddaebruary 20, 2009 to Asta Group, Inc.(

Form of Intercreditor Agreement between Asta Fugdind IDB as lending agent(2

Amended and Restated Management Agreement, datdfdJasuary 16, 2009, between Palisades ColledtianC., and [*](22]
Amended and Restated Master Servicing Agreemetedaes of January 16, 2009, between Palisadeso@iotieL.L.C., and [*]
(23)

First Amendment to Amended and Restated Masteri&egvAgreement, dated as of September 16, 200@nbyamong
Palisades Collection, L.L.C., and [*], and [*](2

Loan Agreement Between Asta Funding and Bank Lelated December 14, 2009.(-

Indemnification agreement between Asta Funding@wts Family Investors LLC. (2¢€

Fifth Amendment to the Receivables Financing Agreendated October 26, 2010 between the CompanBankl of Montreal
(27)

Omnibus Termination Agreement, by and among Pads#tquisition XVI, LLC, BMO Capital Markets Corgas collateral
agent, Asta Group, Incorporated, and each guaraetdprth therein. (2¢

Settlement Agreement and Omnibus Amendment amoteAmding, Inc., Palisades Acquisition XVI and BND@pital
Markets dated August 7, 2013. (¢

Lease agreement between the Company and ESL20@lated August 2, 2010 (2

Revolving Credit Agreement, dated December 28, 20§ nd between Pegasus Funding, LLC and FundsBeghl C(30)
Security Agreement, dated December 28, 2011, bybatwleen Pegasus Funding, LLC and Fund Pegasug3IL).
Secured Revolving Credit Note, dated December @81 2by Pegasus Funding, LLC in favor of Fund PegalsL.C(32)
Operating Agreement of Pegasus Funding, LLC, dBetember 28, 2011(3:

Loan Agreement, dated December 30, 2011, by awaeleet certain subsidiaries of the Company and Bamkni USA(34)
Form of Revolving Note(3&
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Exhibit

Number

10.34 Form of Guaranty(3€

10.35 Form of Security Agreement(3

10.36 Form of Pledge Agreement(3

10.37 Consulting Agreement, dated December 12, 2011 ndybatween the Company and A.L. Piccolo & Co.,(B®)

21.1 Subsidiaries of the Registrar

23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing*

23.2 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing*

31.1 Certification of Registra’s Chief Executive Officer, Gary Stern, pursuanéztion 302 of the Sarbar-Oxley Act of 2002.*

31.2 Certification of Registrant’s Chief Financial Of#ic Robert J. Michel, pursuant to Section 302 ef$larbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.*

32.1 Certification of the Registrant’s Chief Executivéier, Gary Stern, pursuant to Section 906 of Slagbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.*

32.2 Certification of the Registrant’s Chief Financiafficer, Robert J. Michel, pursuant to Section 906he Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.*

* Filed herewitr

(1) Incorporated by reference to an Exhibit to Astading' s Registration Statement on Form-2 (File No. 3:-97212).

(2) Incorporated by reference to an Exhibit to Astading' s Quarterly Report on Form -QSB for the three months ended March 31, 2
(3) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Astadinc’'s Current Report on Forn-K filed August 24, 2012

(4) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Astadinc’'s Annual Report on Form -KSB for the year ended September 30, 1!

(5) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to Astadinc’'s Current Report on Forn-K filed August 24, 2012

(6) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Astadinc’'s Current Report on Forn-K filed August 24, 2012

(7) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Astadin¢'s Current Report on Forn-K filed March 3, 2006

(8) Incorporated by reference to Appendix A to Astanding’s Definitive Proxy Statement filed on Redy 17, 2012 for the March 21, 2012
Annual Meeting of Stockholde

(9) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Astadinc¢'s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the three months ended March 31, 2!
(10) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Assadin¢’s Current Report on Forn-K filed February 9, 2007

(11) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Astadin¢'s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the Three Months Ended June 30, 2(
(12) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Astadin¢’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the Three Months Ended March 31, 2C
(13) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to Assadin¢s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended September 30, 2(

(14) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to Astadin¢ s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the three months ended March 31, 2(
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(15)
(16)
(17)
(18)
(19)
(20)
(21)
(22)
(23)
(24)
(25)
(26)
(27)
(28)
(29)
(30)
(31)
(32)
(33)
(34)
(35)
(36)
(37)

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to Astadin¢s Current Report on Forn-K filed May 1, 2008

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.21 to Astadin¢s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended September 30, 2(
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.22 to Astadin¢ s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended September 30, 2(
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.23 to Astadin¢s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended September 30, 2(
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.24 to Astadin¢ s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended September 30, 2(
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.25 to Astadin¢s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended September 30, 2(
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.26 to Astadin¢s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended September 30, 2
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.27 to Astadin¢s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended September 30, 2(
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.28 to Astadin¢ s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended September 30, 2(
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.29 to Astadin¢s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended September 30, 2(
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Astadhin¢'s Current Report on Forn-K filed December 18, 200!

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.32 to Astadin¢s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended September 30, 2(
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Astmdin¢’'s Current Report on Forn-K filed November 1, 201(

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Astadin¢'s Current Report on Forn-K filed November 22, 201(

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Astmdin¢’'s Current Report on Forn-K filed August 5, 2010

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Astadin¢’s Current Report on Forn-K filed January 4, 201:

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Astmdinc¢’'s Current Report on Forn-K filed January 4, 201:

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Astadin¢’s Current Report on Forn-K filed January 4, 201:

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Astamdinc¢’'s Current Report on Forn-K filed January 4, 201:

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Astadin¢’s Current Report on Forn-K filed January 6, 201:

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Astamdin¢’'s Current Report on Forn-K filed January 6, 201:

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Astadin¢’s Current Report on Forn-K filed January 6, 201:

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Astmdin¢’'s Current Report on Forn-K filed January 6, 201:
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(38) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to Astamdin¢’'s Current Report on Forn-K filed January 6, 201:
(39) I Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to ABtandin¢'s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended December 31, 2
(40) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Astmdin¢'s Current Report on Forn-K filed August 9, 2013

49



Table of Contents

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Exchange Act, the Registrant caused tlpisrt¢o be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

ASTA FUNDING, INC.

By: /s/ Gary Stern
Gary Sterr
President and Chief Executive Offic
(Principal Executive Officer

Dated: December 13, 2013

Pursuant to the requirements of the Exchange RAistréport has been signed below by the followiagspns on behalf of the Registrant
and in the capacities and on the dates indicated:

Signature Title Date
/sl Gary Stern Chairman of the Board, President, and December 13, 2013
Gary Sterr Chief Executive Officer
/s/ Robert J. Michel Chief Financial Officer December 13, 2013
Robert J. Michel (Principal Financial Officer and

Accounting Officer)

/sl Arthur Stern Chairman Emeritus and Director December 13, 2013
Arthur Stern

/s/ Herman Badillo Director December 13, 2013
Herman Badillc

/s/ Edward Celano Director December 13, 2013
Edward Celant

/s Harvey Leibowitz Director December 13, 2013
Harvey Leibowitz

/s/ David Slackman Director December 13, 2013
David Slackmar

/s] Louis A. Piccolo Director December 13, 2013
Louis A. Piccolc
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Asta Funding, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeet of Asta Funding, Inc. and subsidiaries ‘{@ompany”) as of
September 30, 2013, and the related consolidat¢einsénts of income, comprehensive income, stockhsldquity, and cash flows for the yi
ended September 30, 2013. These consolidated faiatatements are the responsibility of the Compfsamanagement. Our responsibility is
to express an opinion on these consolidated fimhstatements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stededof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti8d&nited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the &mdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindrecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on tldasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disds in the consolidated financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing twiating principles used and significant estimatesle by management, as well as evalu:
the overall consolidated financial statement prizgam. We believe that our audit provides a reabtmbasis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetegeferred to above present fairly, in all matenégpects, the consolidated financial
position of the Company as of September 30, 2018 tlae consolidated results of their operationstard cash flows for the year ended
September 30, 2013 in conformity with U.S. gengraticepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), the
Company’s internal control over financial reportiag of September 30, 2013, based on criteria éstebl in Internal Control — Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoringa@imgtions of the Treadway Commission (“COSQ”) andreport dated December 13,
2013 expressed an unqualified opinion on the dffexess of the Company’s internal control overfiicial reporting.

/sl WeiserMazars LL

New York, New York
December 13, 201
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Stockholders
Asta Funding, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeet of Asta Funding, Inc. and subsidiaries ‘{@ompany”) as of September
30, 2012, and the related consolidated statemémtsevations, stockholders’ equity, and cash fléevseach of the two years in the period
ended September 30, 2012. These financial statsraemthe responsibility of the Company’s managent@ur responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based omodits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting OversighamioUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the &mdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindrecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on tldasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disis in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princiged and significant estimates made by managenenelhas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial stateteerferred to above present fairly, in all materggpects, the financial position of Asta
Funding, Inc. and subsidiaries as of SeptembeR@02, and the results of their operations and ttesh flows for each of the two years in the
period ended September 30, 2012 in conformity witounting principles generally accepted in thetét¢hBtates of America.

/sl GRANT THORNTON LLP

New York, New York
January 18, 2013
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ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalel

Investments

Available-for-sale
Certificates of depos

Restricted cas

ASTA FUNDING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Balance Sheets

Consumer receivables acquired for liquidation @trealizable value

Other investments, n

Due from third party collection agencies and attys

Prepaid and income taxes receive

Furniture and equipment (net of accumulated deatieci of $4,136,000 in 2013 and $3,696,000 in 2

Deferred income taxe

Other asset
Total asset

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY

Liabilities

Non-recourse dek

Other liabilities

Dividends payabli
Total liabilities

Commitments and contingenci
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Preferred stock, $.01 par value; authorized 5,@M,3sued and outstandi— none

Common stock, $.01 par value, authorized 30,000$b@0es; issued — 14,917,977 at September 30,
2013 and 14,778,956 at September 30, 2012; anthadisag — 12,974,239 at September 30, 2013

and 13,006,918 at September 30, 2

Additional paic-in capital
Retained earning

Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) incomepheticome taxe:
Treasury stock (at cost), 1,943,738 shares at Bdyetie30, 2013 and 1,772,038 shares at September 30,

2012

Non-controlling interes
Total stockholder equity

Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity

See notes to the accompanying consolidated finbsteilements
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September 30

2013 2012
$ 35,179,00 $ 4,953,00
58,035,00 58,712,00
— 42,682,00
968,00( 1,088,001
57,900,00 86,887,00
35,758,00 18,596,00
1,169,00! 2,042,001
1,496,00! 2,057,001
1,106,00! 821,00(
10,443,00 10,410,00
5,793,001 4,916,00
$207,847,00  $233,164,00
$ 35,760,000 $ 61,463,00
2,486,001 2,920,001
— 260,00(
38,246,00 64,643,00
149,00( 148,00(
79,104,000 77,024,00
109,011,00 107,303,00
(674,000 241,00(
(17,805,00) (16,226,00)
(184,000) 31,00(
169,601,00 168,521,00
$207,847,00  $233,164,00
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ASTA FUNDING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Income

Revenues:

Finance income, nt

Other income (includes ($252,000), $339,000, anduBihg the years ended
September 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectivebc@fmulated other comprehens
income reclassifications for unrealized net (loy$egins on available for sale
securities)

Expenses

General and administrative expen

Interest expense (related pa— 2013, $0; 2012, $0; 2011, $86,0(
Impairments of consumer receivables acquired fuidiation

Income before income te

Income tax expense (includes (taxes) / tax ben&{100,000), $137,000 and $0 durin
the years ended September 30, 2013, 2012, and 2&hkctively’

Net income

Less: net income attributable to I-controlling interes

Net income attributable to Asta Funding, |

Net income per share attributable to Asta Fundimgy;
Basic
Diluted
Weighted average number of common shares outsigr
Basic
Diluted

Year Ended September 30

2013 2012 2011
$34,363,00 $40,599,00 $42,610,00
8,049,00i 3,903,001 557,00(
42,412,00 44,502,00 43,167,00
24,212,00 23,640,00 21,807,00
1,300,001 2,539,001 3,016,001
12,592,00 1,383,001 721,00(
38,104,00 27,562,00 25,544,00
4,308,00 16,940,00 17,623,00
1,164,00 6,872,001 7,102,001
3,144,001 10,068,00 10,521,00
406,00( 31,00( —
$ 2,738,001 $10,037,00 $10,521,00
$ 0.21 $ 0.71 $ 0.7z
$ 0.21 $ 0.7¢ $ 0.71
12,952,15 14,077,65 14,626,97
13,216,05 14,321,38 14,827,60

See notes to the accompanying consolidated finbsteilements
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ASTA FUNDING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Year Ended September 30
2013 2012 2011

Comprehensive income is as follov
Net income $ 3,144,001 $10,068,00 $10,521,00
Net unrealized securities (loss) / gain, net ofliarefit / (taxes) of $705,000, ($495,01

and $196,000, during the years ended Septemb&033, 2012 and 2011,

respectively (1,067,00i) 733,00( (290,000
Reclassification adjustments for securities sofd,af (taxes) / tax benefit of ($100,000)

and $137,000, during years ended September 30,&042012, respectivel 152,00( (202,000 —
Foreign currency translation, r — — (9,000
Other comprehensive (loss) incol (915,000 531,00( (299,000
Total comprehensive incon $ 2,229,000 $10,599,00 $10,222,00

See notes to the accompanying consolidated finbsteitements
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Balance, September 30, 201
Exercise of option
Stock based compensation expe
Restricted stoc
Dividends
Purchase of treasury sto
Net income
Foreign currency translatic

Unrealized loss on marketable securi
Balance, September 30, 201
Exercise of option

Stock based compensation expe
Dividends
Purchase of treasury sto

Net income

Unrealized gain on marketable securi
Balance, September 30, 201
Exercise of option

Stock based compensation expe
Restricted stoc
Dividends
Purchase of treasury sto

Net income
Unrealized loss on marketable securi
Distributions to no-controlling interes

Balance, September 30, 201

ASTA FUNDING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity
For the years ended September 30, 2013, 2012 and .20

Common Stock Accumulated

Other Non- Total

Additional Comprehensive Controlling  Stockholders’
Issued Paid-in Retained Treasury

Shares Amount Capital Earnings Income (Loss) Stock(1) Interest Equity
14,600,42 $146,000 $72,717,00 $ 89,026,00 $ 9,000 $ — 3 — $161,898,00
6,26¢ 21,00( 21,00(
2,055,001 2,055,001
32,76! —
(1,170,001 (1,170,001
(70,000 (70,000
10,521,00 10,521,00
(9,000) (9,000)
(290,000 (290,001)
14,639,45 146,000  74,793,00 98,377,00 (290,000) (70,000 — 172,956,00
139,50( 2,00( 608,00( 610,00(
1,623,00 1,623,001
(1,111,001 (1,111,001
(16,156,00) (16,156,00)
10,037,00 31,00( 10,068,00
531,00( 531,00(
14,778,95 148,00 77,024,00 107,303,00 241,00  (16,226,00) 31,00( 168,521,00
36,70( 125,00( 125,00(
1,956,00 1,956,001
102,32: 1,00( (1,000 —
(1,030,001 (1,030,001
(1,579,00i) (1,579,001
2,738,001 406,00( 3,144,001
(915,00() (915,001)
(621,000 (621,00()
14,917,97 $149,000 $79,104,00 $109,011,00 $ (674,000 $(17,805,00) $ (184,000 $ 169,601,00

(1) Treasury shares are as follows: September 30, 3)300; Purchase of treasury stock, 1,763,138;e8amr 30, 2012, 1,772,02
30, 2012, 1,772,038; Purchase of treasury stock,70D; September 30, 2013, 1,943,738.

Septem

See notes to the accompanying consolidated finbsteitements
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ASTA FUNDING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Year Ended September 30

2013 2012 2011
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $ 3,144,00i $ 10,068,00 $10,521,00
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigeal by operating activitie
Depreciation and amortizatic 440,00( 380,00( 262,00(
Deferred income taxe 326,00( 3,393,00! 4,611,001
Impairments of consumer receivables acquired fuidiation 12,592,00 1,383,001 721,00(
Stock based compensati 1,956,00! 1,623,00! 2,055,001
Loss (gain) on sale of availa-for-sale securitie 252,00( (339,000 —
Changes in
Prepaid and income tax receiva 561,00( 1,281,001 (3,142,000
Due from third party collection agencies and attys 873,00( 42,00( 1,444,00
Other asset (631,000 (190,000 (771,000
Other liabilities (434,000 (247,000 1,041,00!
Net cash provided by operating activit 19,079,00 17,394,00 16,742,00
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of consumer receivables acquired fordafign (3,340,001 (2,495,000 (7,435,000
Principal collected on consumer receivables acdue liquidation 19,302,00 29,353,00 38,360,00
Principal collected on consumer receivable accorepiesented by account
sales 433,00( 67,00( 235,00(
Effect of foreign exchange on consumer receivahbdegiired for liquidatior — — (45,000
Purchase of availat-for-sale securitie (34,171,00) (66,625,00) (14,000,00)
Proceeds from sales of availe-for-sale securitie 33,076,00 22,656,00 —
Purchase of certificates of depc — (45,121,00) (3,980,001
Proceeds from maturities of certificates of dep 42,682,000 11,499,00 3,854,001
Other investment— advance: (30,963,00) (22,549,00) —
Other investment— receipts 13,801,000 3,953,00! —
Capital expenditure (725,000 (638,000 (475,000
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activi 40,095,00 (69,900,00) 16,514,00
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from exercise of stock opti 125,00( 610,00( 21,00(
Purchase of treasury sto (1,579,001 (16,156,00) (70,000
Change in restricted ca 120,00( (57,000 273,00(
Dividends paic (1,290,001 (1,144,00) (1,169,001
Distributions to no-controlling interes (621,000 — —
Repayments of nerecourse debt, ni (25,703,00) (10,141,00) (18,879,00)
Repayments under subordinated — related party — — (4,386,00)
Net cash used in financing activiti (28,948,00) (26,888,00) (24,210,00)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivake 30,226,00 (79,394,00) 9,046,00!
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of 4,953,001 84,347,00 75,301,00
Cash and cash equivalents at end of ye:i $ 35,179,000 $ 4,953,00 $ 84,347,00
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information
Cash paid for
Interest (related party: 20— $0; 2012— $0; 2011— $122,000) $ 1,822,00 $ 2,570,00 $ 3,114,00
Income taxe: $ = $ 2,002,00 $ 5,647,00

See notes to the accompanying consolidated finbsteitements
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ASTA FUNDING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2013 and 2012

N oTE A — T HE C OMPANY AND ITS SIGNIFICANT A CCOUNTING P OLICIES
[1] The Company:

Asta Funding, Inc., together with its wholly owngdnificant operating subsidiaries Palisades Ctted_LC, Palisades Acquisition XV
LLC (“Palisades XVI"), VATIV Recovery Solutions LLCVATIV”), ASFI Pegasus Holdings, LLC (“APH"), FuhPegasus, LLC (“Fund
Pegasus”), and other subsidiaries, not all whalyped, and not considered material (collectivelg, tGompany”),is engaged in the busines:
purchasing, managing for its own account and senyidistressed consumer receivables, includingggthoff receivables, semi-performing
receivables, performing receivables and investrrelitigation related receivables. The primary aded-off receivables are accounts that have
been written-off by the originators and may haverbpreviously serviced by collection agencies. Sgenforming receivables are accounts
whereby the debtor is currently making partialroegular monthly payments, but the accounts may leen written-off by the originators.
Performing receivables are accounts whereby theodebmaking regular monthly payments that maynay not have been delinquent in the
past. Distressed consumer receivables are thedidpats of individuals to banks, finance compaaiss other credit providers. A large port
of the Company’s distressed consumer receivabiesMasterCar@ , Visa , and other credit card acisowhich were charged-off by the
issuers for non-payment. The Company acquires thedfolios at substantial discounts from theirdfamalues. The discounts are based on the
characteristics (issuer, account size, debtorimeand age of debt) of the underlying accountsawth portfolio. Litigation related receivables
are semi-performing investments whereby the Comjmagsigned the revenue stream from the proceeds/ed.

In addition, the Company, owns 80% of Pegasus FgndiLC (“Pegasus”), which invests in funding perabinjury claims.

The consolidated financial statements are preparadcordance with accounting principles generaflgepted in the United States
(“U.S. GAAP”) and industry practices.

[1A] Liquidity:

The Company'’s cash requirements have been andantinue to be significant. In the past, we haveetheled upon external financing to
acquire consumer receivables, fund operating exgsmsterest and income taxes. If approved, divdderaid is also a significant use of cash.
We have depended solely on operating cash flowrid the acquisition of portfolios, pay operatingenses, dividends, and taxes. As of
September 30, 2013, the outstanding amount on d@imé Bf Montreal (“BMO”) facility (“Receivables Fimzing Agreement”) that financed the
$6.9 billion in face value receivables for a pussharice of $300 million, (the “Portfolio Purchapes’ $35.8 million. We continue to pay down
the balance and the interest from the collectidrithereceivables under the Portfolio Purchase.N8#e F — Non-Recourse Debt for further
information on the Settlement Agreement signed uigést 2013.

Net collections decreased $15.9 million or 22.786rf1$70.0 million in fiscal year 2012 to $54.1 naltiin fiscal year 2013. Although the
Company’s collections decreased from the prior ytéb&r Company believes its net cash collections theenext twelve months, coupled with
its current liquid cash balances, will be sufficiemcover its operating expenses, service debpagdnterest.

[2] Principles of consolidation:

The consolidated financial statements include tu@ants of the Company and its wholly owned subsiels. All significant

intercompany balances and transactions have beeimaled in consolidation.
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ASTA FUNDING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2013 and 2012

N oTE A — T HE C OMPANY AND ITS SIGNIFICANT A CCOUNTING P oLICIES (C ONTINUED )
[3] Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash:
The Company considers all highly liquid investmanith a maturity of three months or less at theedsdtpurchase to be cash equivale

Cash balances are maintained at various depositstifutions and are insured by the Federal Depositirance Corporation (“FDIC").
The Company had cash balances with 7 banks thatdrd the balance insured by the FDIC by approrim&81.1 million at September 30,
2013. The Company had cash balances with 2 banichwimounted to $26.4 million at September 30, 2013

The restricted cash at September 30, 2013 repeesasi on hand, substantially all of which is desigd to be paid to our lender
subsequent to September 30, 2013. The lender hadatea in which depository institutions the castoibe maintained.

[4] Investments
Available-for-Sale

Investments that the Company intends to hold fandafinite period of time, but not necessarilyntaturity, are classified as available-
for-sale and are carried at fair value. Unrealigaths and losses on available-for-sale securitiesletermined using the specific-identification
method.

Declines in the fair value of individual availalfle-sale securities below their respective cosas dne other than temporary will result in
write-downs of the individual securities to thairfvalue. Factors affecting the determination bkther an other-than-temporary impairment
has occurred include: a downgrading of the secbsitg rating agency, a significant deterioratiotthi@ financial condition of the issuer, or that
management would not have the ability to hold aiscfor a period of time sufficient to allow fany anticipated recovery in fair value.

Certificates of Deposit

There were no certificates of deposit at SepterBbeP013. Certificates of deposit at Septembe28@2 had maturities greater than tr
months at the date of purchase.

[5] Income recognition, Impairments and Accretabjgeld adjustments:
Income Recognition

The Company accounts for its investment in consueegivables acquired for liquidation using therast method under the guidance o
Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Acating Standards Codification (“ASC”) 31BRgeceivables — Loans and Debt Securities
Acquired with Deteriorated Credit Quali, (“ASC 3107).In ASC 310 static pools of accounts are establisihbdse pools are aggregated bi
on certain common risk criteria. Each static psakicorded at cost and is accounted for as a simifiéor the recognition of income, principal
payments and loss provision.

Once a static pool is established for a quarteliyidual receivable accounts are not added to tod unless replaced by the seller) or
removed from the pool (unless sold or returnedhéoseller). ASC 310 requires that the excess ofdinéractual cash flows over expected cash
flows not be recognized as an adjustment of reven@xpense or on the balance sheet. ASC 310linifiaezes the internal rate of return
(“IRR"), estimated when the accounts receivable are purdhasehe basis for subsequent impairment tesSiggnificant increases in actual,
expected future cash flows are recognized prospgtihrough an upward adjustment of
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ASTA FUNDING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2013 and 2012

N oTE A — T HE C OMPANY AND ITS SIGNIFICANT A CCOUNTING P oLICIES (C ONTINUED )
[5] Income recognition, Impairments and Accretabjgeld adjustments: (Continued)

the IRR over a portfolio’s remaining life. Any irease to the IRR then becomes the new benchmaifpairment testing. Under ASC 310,
rather than lowering the estimated IRR if the altn estimates are not received or projected tebeived, the carrying value of a pool would
be written down to maintain the then current IRR.

Finance income is recognized on cost recovery qlaotf after the carrying value has been fully resred through collections or amounts
written down.

The Company accounts for its investments in peddopay claims at an agreed upon interest ratgriticipation of a future settlement.
The interest purchased by Pegasus in each claincamisist of the right to receive from such claimpart of the proceeds or recoveries which
such claimant receives by reason of a settlemetignjent or reward with respect to such claimarésc Open case revenue is estimated,
recognized and accrued at a rate based on thetegpealization and underwriting guidelines andgand circumstances for each individual
case. These personal injury claims are non-recourse

When a case is closed and the cash is receivedd@dvance provided to a claimant, revenue isgrized based upon the contractually
agreed upon interest rate, and, if applicable,stégufor any changes due to a settled amount asdcfearged to the claimant.

The funding of matrimonial actions is on a non-tgse basis. Revenues are recognized under theeoastery method.

Impairments and accretable yield adjustments

The Company accounts for its impairments in acamedavith ASC 310, which provides guidance on howdoount for differences
between contractual and expected cash flows fromastor’s initial investment in loans or debtwseties acquired in a transfer if those
differences are attributable, at least in pargrealit quality. Increases in expected cash flovesracognized prospectively through an adjust
of the internal rate of return while decreasesqmeeted cash flows are recognized as impairmemizairments of approximately $12.6 million
were recorded in the fiscal year ended Septemhe2@®B. An impairment of approximately $1.4 milliaas recorded in the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2012 and $0.7 million was recorddid@al year 2011. Finance income is not recognaedost recovery method portfolios
until the cost of the portfolio is fully recovere@ollection projections are performed on both ies¢method and cost recovery method
portfolios. With regard to the cost recovery pditfs, if collection projections indicate the camgivalue will not be recovered, a write down in
value is required. There were no accretable yidjJdsdaments recorded in the fiscal years ended 8dpe30, 2013, 2012 and 2011.

The recognition of income under ASC 310 is depehderthe Company having the ability to develop oeable expectations of both the
timing and amount of cash flows to be collectedthim event the Company cannot develop a reasopapketation as to both the timing and
amount of cash flows expected to be collected, B%Cpermits the change to the cost recovery mefhioel Company will recognize income
only after it has recovered its carrying value.oASeptember 30, 2013, the carrying value of theféla Purchase was approximately $43.4
million. There can be no assurance as to whentbeitarrying value will be recovered.

The Company’s analysis of the timing and amourtash flows to be generated by its portfolio purelsaand investments are based on
the following attributes:

 the type of receivable, the location of the deltwd the number of collection agencies previoudbnapting to collect the receivables
in the portfolio. The Company has found that tremebetter states to try to collect receivablestaedCompany factors in both better
and worse states when establishing their initiashdébow expectations
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ASTA FUNDING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2013 and 2012

N oTE A — T HE C OMPANY AND ITS SIGNIFICANT A CCOUNTING P oLICIES (C ONTINUED )
[5] Income recognition, Impairments and Accretabjgeld adjustments: (Continued)

» the average balance of the receivables influengeamalysis in that lower average balance portfaiend to be more collectible in the
short-term and higher average balance portfoliesyare appropriate for the Company’s lawsuit sgpatend thus yield better results
over the longer term. As the Company has signifiexperience with both types of balances, it catofathese variables into its initial
expected cash flow:

» the age of the receivables, the number of day® siharge-off, any payments since charge-off, aadtadit guidelines of the credit
originator also represent factors taken into caersition in our estimation process. For examplesroldceivables might be more
difficult and/or require more time and effort tdleat;

» past history and performance of similar assetsisadjuAs the Company purchases portfolios of ligeads, it accumulates a significant
historical data base on the tendencies of debpayreents and factor this into its initial expectash flows

» the Compan’s ability to analyze accounts and resell accourasreet its criterie

 jobs or property of the customers found within fudios. With our business model, this is of parkisuimportance. Customers wi
jobs or property are more likely to repay theirigation through the lawsuit strategy and, conversaistomers without jobs
property are less likely to repay their obligatidihe Company believes that customers with jobgopgrty are more likely to repay
because courts have mandated the debtor must alett. Ultimately, the debtor with property wilypto clear title or release a lien.
The Company also believes that these customersabnmight take longer to repay and that is faetbinto its initial expected cash
flows; and

» credit standards of the issu

The Company acquires accounts that have experiatetedoration of credit quality between originatiand the date of its acquisition of
the accounts. The amount invested in a portfoliaamounts reflects our determination that it idjatde we will be unable to collect all amot
due according to the portfolio of accounts’ contuatterms. The Company considers the expected patgand estimates the amount and
timing of undiscounted expected principal, interasd other cash flows for each acquired portfotiopted with expected cash flows from
accounts available for sale. The excess of thisuatnaver the cost of the portfolio, representing étxcess of the accounts’ cash flows expecte
to be collected over the amount paid, is accretamincome recognized on finance receivables adeduior on the interest method over the
expected remaining life of the portfolio.

The Company believes it has significant experien@equiring certain distressed consumer receivpbitolios at a significant discount
to the amount actually owed by underlying customénge Company invests in these portfolios onlyrdfteth qualitative and quantitative
analyses of the underlying receivables are perfdramel a calculated purchase price is paid sothalieves its estimated cash flow offers an
adequate return on acquisition costs after senyieixpenses. Additionally, when considering largatfplio purchases of accounts, or portfo
from issuers with whom the Company has limited eigpee, it has the added benefit of solicitinghiisd party collection agencies and
attorneys for their input on liquidation rates aatitimes, incorporates such input into the eses#@tuses for its expected cash flows.

As a result of the challenging economic environnaamtt the impact it has had on collections, forfptid purchases acquired in fiscal
year 2013, the Compa’s expectation of recovering 100% of its investagital is a
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ASTA FUNDING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2013 and 2012

N oTE A — T HE C OMPANY AND ITS SIGNIFICANT A CCOUNTING P oLICIES (C ONTINUED )
[5] Income recognition, Impairments and Accretabjgeld adjustments: (Continued)

24-39 month period, with the expectation of recovgd30-140% over 7 years. The 2013 time framexpeetations have remained unchangec
from fiscal year 2012. The Company routinely morstthese expectations against the actual cash #iodsin the event the cash flows are
below expectations and the Company believes threra@reasons relating to mere timing differenagesxplainable delays (such as can occur
particularly when the court system is involved) tioe reduced collections, an impairment is recotegortfolios accounted for on the interest
method. Conversely, in the event the cash flowsraexcess of its expectations and the reasondgaltiming, the Company would defer the
“excess” collection as deferred revenue.

[6] Commissions and fees:

Commissions and fees are the contractual commissiamed by third party collection agencies anutalys, and direct costs associatec
with the collection effort- generally court costhie Company expects to continue to purchase pmr$faind utilize third party collection
agencies and attorney networks.

[7] Furniture, equipment and leasehold improvements

Furniture and equipment is stated at cost. Deplieni#s provided using the straight-line methodroe estimated useful lives of the
assets (5 to 7 years). Amortization on leasehofmtéwements is provided by the straight line-metbbthe remaining life of the respective
lease. An accelerated depreciation method is umetidf purposes.

[8] Income taxes:

Deferred federal and state taxes arise from (9gaition of finance income collected for tax purpssbut not yet recognized for financial
reporting; (ii) provision for impairments/creditdses, all resulting in timing differences betweaaricial accounting and tax reporting, and
(iif) amortization of leasehold improvements resigtin timing differences between financial accongtand tax reporting.

[9] Net income per share:

Basic per share data is determined by dividingneme by the weighted average shares outstandiniggdthe period. Diluted per share
data is computed by dividing net income by the \Ww&dd average shares outstanding, assuming alivéilpbtential common shares were
issued. The assumed proceeds from the exerciskitife options are calculated using the treastiogls method based on the average market
price for the period.

The following table presents the computation oftasd diluted per share data for the fiscal yeaded September 30, 2013, 2012 and
2011:

2013 2012 2011
Weighted Per Weighted Per Weighted Per
Net Average Share Net Average Share Net Average Share
Income Shares Amount Income Shares Amount Income Shares Amount
Basic $2,738,000 12,952,15 $0.21 $10,037,000 14,077,65 $0.71 $10,521,00 14,626,997 $0.7Z
Dilutive effect of stock
options 263,90: 243,73.  (0.0]) 200,63'  (0.0])
Diluted $2,738,000 13,216,05 $0.21 $10,037,000 14,321,38 $0.7C $10,521,00 14,827,60 $ 0.71
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[9] Net income per share: (Continued)

At September 30, 2013, 606,332 options at a weihjaterage exercise price of $8.01 were not includé¢le diluted earnings per share
calculation as they were anti-dilutive. At SeptemBe@, 2012, 1,210,396 options at a weighted aveeagecise price of $12.23 were not
included in the diluted earnings per share calmnas they were anti-dilutive. At September 30, 2M086,732 options at a weighted average
exercise price of $13.18 were not included in tihated earnings per share calculation as they watiedilutive.

[10] Use of estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith accounting principles generally acceptethia United States of America
requires management to make estimates and assasfiiat affect the reported amounts of assetsiabitities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the finanstalements and the reported amounts of revenukesxgenses during the reporting period. With
respect to income recognition under the intereshote the Company takes into consideration theivel@redit quality of the underlying
receivables constituting the portfolio acquireds #trategy involved to maximize the collectiongdioé, the time required to implement the
collection strategy as well as other factors tonestie the anticipated cash flows. Actual resultsiddiffer from those estimates including
management’s estimates of future cash flows andethdtant allocation of collections between phiatiand interest resulting therefrom.
Downward revisions to estimated cash flows wilufes impairments.

[11] Stock-based compensation:

The Company accounts for stock-based employee awsafien under FASB ASC 718ompensation — Stock Compensati¢iASC
718"). ASC 718 requires that compensation expeaseciated with stock options and vesting of retstdstock awards be recognized in the
statement of income.

[12] Impact of Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In July 2013, the FASB issued Accounting Standalddate (“ASU”) No. 2013-11 thcome Taxes (Topic 740) Presentation of an
Unrecognized Tax Benefit When a Net Operating Gassyforward, a Similar Tax Loss, or a Tax Cred&r@/forward Exists."There is
diversity in practice in the presentation of unigmiaed tax benefits in those instances. Some esfitiesent unrecognized tax benefits as a
liability unless the unrecognized tax benefit isedtly associated with a tax position taken imayt@ar that results in, or that resulted in, the
recognition of a net operating loss or tax creditrgforward for that year and the net operating loistax credit carryforward has not been
utilized. Other entities present unrecognized &mdfits as a reduction of a deferred tax asset feat operating loss or tax credit carryforward
in certain circumstances. The objective of the aingnts in this Update is to eliminate that divgrsitpractice. This standard becomes
effective for fiscal years and interim periods Imeging after December 15, 2013. The Company is véaaig the affects of implementation of
this standard.

In February 2013, the FASB issued Accounting Stedslblpdate (“ASU”) No. 2013-02 Reporting of Amounts Reclassified Out of
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Inc”. The amendments require an entity to present, eithie income statement or the notes,
significant amounts reclassified out of accumulatttter comprehensive income by the respectiveitémas of net income, but only if the
amount reclassified is required under U.S. Genedatcepted Accounting Principles (“GAAPt) be reclassified to net income in its entiret
the same reporting period. For other amounts tieahat required under U.S. GAAP to be reclassifietheir entirety, an entity is required to
cross-reference to other disclosures that mightigecadditional details about

F-14



Table of Contents

ASTA FUNDING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2013 and 2012
N oTE A — T HE C OMPANY AND ITS SIGNIFICANT A CCOUNTING P oLICIES (C ONTINUED )
[12] Impact of Recently Issued Accounting Standard€ontinued)
the amounts. This ASU was effective for annual iaberim periods beginning January 1, 2013. Adoptibthe ASU did not have a significant
effect on the Company’s consolidated financialestents (see Note B: Investments).
[13] Reclassifications:
Certain items in prior years’ financial statemdmse been reclassified to conform to the curreat’ggresentation, principally related to
certain cash flow items.
N OoTE B — | NVESTMENTS
Available-for-Sale
Mutual funds investments classified as availablesfde at September 30, 2013 and 2012 consisedbtlowing:

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
2013 $59,151,00 $ 27,00( $(1,143,00i) $58,035,00
2012 $58,308,00 $404,00( $ — $58,712,00

The available-for-sale investments did not have@mtractual maturities. The Company sold four steents during the year ended
September 30, 2013, with an aggregate realizedlod252,000. Additionally, the Company receive@$D200 in capital gains distributions
during fiscal year 2013. The Company sold five stugents in fiscal year 2012, resulting in an aggtegealized gain of approximately
$339,000. The realized gains and losses are #lidad as part of other income.

At September 30, 2013, there were six investméintsof which were in an unrealized loss positilach of the five investments had
current unrealized losses existing for 12 monthess. At September 30, 2012, there were six imvests, all in an unrealized gain position.
All of these securities were considered to be aedd@ credit risks. Based on the evaluation ofavlable evidence at that time, including
changes in market rates and credit rating inforomatmanagement believed that any decline in fdirevéor these instruments would be
temporary. In addition, management had the alilitydid not believe it would be required to setigh investment securities for a period of
time sufficient to allow for an anticipated recoyer maturity. Should the impairment of any of tac®curities become other than temporary,
the cost basis of the investment will be reducetithe resulting loss recognized in net income éghriod in which the other-than-temporary
impairment were identified.

Unrealized holding gains and losses on availableséibe securities are included in other comprelvensicome within stockholders’
equity. Realized gains (losses) on available-fée-sacurities are included in other income and,mdigplicable, are reported as a
reclassification adjustment in other comprehensigceme.

Certificates of Deposit

Other investments consist of the following:

September 30 September 30
2013 2012
Certificates of deposits in banks $ — $42,682,00
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Certificates are generally nonnegotiable and nasfexable, and may incur substantial penaltiesvftirdrawal prior to maturity, which
will be within one year.

N oTE C — C ONSUMER R ECEIVABLES A CQUIRED F OR L IQUIDATION

Accounts acquired for liquidation are stated airthet estimated realizable value and consist pilgnaf defaulted consumer loans to
individuals primarily throughout the United States.

The Company accounts for its investments in consuateivable portfolios, using either:
* the interest method; «
 the cost recovery metha

The Company accounts for its investment in finamoeivables using the interest method under theagugie of ASC 310. Under the
guidance of ASC 310, static pools of accounts atebéished and these pools are aggregated basmitain common risk criteria. Each static
pool is recorded at cost and is accounted forsasgde unit for the recognition of income, prindipayments and loss provision.

Once a static pool is established for a quarteiyidual receivable accounts are not added to toe funless replaced by the seller) or
removed from the pool (unless sold or returnedhéoseller). ASC 310 requires that the excess ofdinéractual cash flows over expected cash
flows not be recognized as an adjustment of reven@xpense or on the balance sheet. ASC 310linitiaezes the internal rate of return,
referred to as IRR, estimated when the accountsvwasle are purchased, as the basis for subsemmpairment testing. Significant increase:
actual or expected future cash flows may be re@aghprospectively through an upward adjustmerh®fiRR over a portfoli® remaining life
Any increase to the IRR then becomes the new beadhfar impairment testing. Rather than lowering &stimated IRR if the collection
estimates are not received or projected to bevedgthe carrying value of a pool would be impaim@dwritten down to maintain the then
current IRR. Under the interest method, incomeé®gnized on the effective yield method based eratitual cash collected during a period
and future estimated cash flows and timing of stallections and the portfolio’s cost. Revenue agdrom collections in excess of anticipated
amounts attributable to timing differences is deféruntil such time as a review results in a chandke expected cash flows. The estimated
future cash flows are reevaluated quarterly.

The Company uses the cost recovery method wheectiolhs on a particular pool of accounts cannaebsonably predicted. Under the
cost recovery method, no income is recognized thtilcost of the portfolio has been fully recover&gool can become fully amortized (zero
carrying balance on the balance sheet) whilegiierating cash collections. In this case, all cadlections are recognized as revenue when
received.

The Company’s extensive liquidating experiencea ithe field of distressed credit card receivaldiglgcommunication receivables,
consumer loan receivables, retail installment @an$, consumer receivables, and auto deficien®@ivalsles. The Company uses the interest
method for accounting for asset acquisitions withiese classes of receivables when it believemitreasonably estimate the timing of the cas
flows. In those situations where the Company difiessits acquisitions into other asset classesre/tiee Company does not possess the sam
expertise or history, or the Company cannot redsigrestimate the timing of the cash flows, the Camputilizes the cost recovery method of
accounting for those portfolios of receivables S&ptember 30, 2013, approximately $8.1 millionhef tonsumer receivables acquired for
liguidation are accounted for using the interesthod, while approximately $49.8 million are accadhfor using the cost recovery method, of
which $43.4 million is concentrated in one poriolihe Portfolio Purchase.
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The Company aggregates portfolios of receivablgsiaed sharing specific common characteristics Whiere acquired within a given
guarter. The Company currently considers for agafieg portfolios of accounts, purchased within shene fiscal quarter, that generally meet
the following characteristics:

Same issuer/originatc

Same underlying credit qualit

similar geographic distribution of the accour

similar age of the receivable; a

Same type of asset class (credit cards, teleconuation, etc.)

The Company uses a variety of qualitative and dtadive factors to estimate collections and thdangpthereof. This analysis includes
following variables:

the number of collection agencies previously attiémgpto collect the receivables in the portfol

the average balance of the receivables, as highandes might be more difficult to collect whileMdalances might not be cost
effective to collect

the age of the receivables, as older receivablghtrhie more difficult to collect or might be lesssteffective. On the other hand, the
passage of time, in certain circumstances, mightlrén higher collections due to changing life etgeof some individual custome

past history of performance of similar ass

time since charc-off;

payments made since chg-off;

the credit originator and its credit guidelin

the Compan’s ability to analyze accounts and resell accounasrheet our criteria for resa

the locations of the customers, as there are kattiggs to attempt to collect in and ultimately @mmpany has better predictability of
the liquidations and the expected cash flows. Crawlg, there are also states where the liquidatites are not as favorable and that i
factored into our cash flow analys

jobs or property of the customers found within faios. In the Compar’s business model, this is of particular importar@@estomers
with jobs or property are more likely to repay thahligation and conversely, customers without jobproperty are less likely to reg
their obligation; anc

the ability to obtain timely customer statementsifrthe original issue

The Company obtains and utilizes, as appropriafgitj including but not limited to monthly collemti projections and liquidation rates,
from third party collection agencies and attornegsfurther evidentiary matter, to assist in evéthggand developing collection strategies and
in evaluating and modeling the expected cash fli@va given portfolio.
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The following tables summarize the changes in @ilarite sheet of the investment in receivable pa#aluring the following periods:

For the Year Ended September 30, 201

Interest Cost
Method Recovery
Portfolios Portfolios Total
Balance, beginning of period $12,326,00 $ 74,561,00 $ 86,887,00
Acquisitions of receivable portfolic 3,340,001 — 3,340,001
Net cash collections from collection of consumeereables
acquired for liquidatior (34,128,00) (17,522,00) (51,650,00)
Cash collections represented by account salesnsiucoer
receivables acquired for liquidatit (989,000 (1,459,00) (2,448,00i)
Impairments (2,444,00) (10,148,00) (12,592,00)
Finance income recognized| 29,966,00 4,397,001 34,363,000
Balance, end of peric $ 8,071,00 $ 49,829,00 $ 57,900,00
Finance income as a percentage of collect 85.2% 23.2% 63.5%

(1) Includes $33.2 million derived from fully amortizpdols. Finance income recognized from accounssateounted to $2.0 milliol

For the Year Ended September 30, 201

Interest Cost
Method Recovery
Portfolios Portfolios Total
Balance, beginning of period $ 31,193,00 $ 84,002,00 $115,195,00
Acquisitions of receivable portfolic 1,278,001 1,217,001 2,495,001
Net cash collections from collection of consumeereables
acquired for liquidatior (49,723,00) (20,179,00) (69,902,00)
Cash collections represented by account salesnsiucoer
receivables acquired for liquidatit (117,000 — (117,000
Transfer to cost recove (6,484,001 6,484,001 —
Impairments (1,383,001 — (1,383,001
Finance income recognized| 37,562,001 3,037,001 40,599,00
Balance, end of peric $ 12,326,00 $ 74,561,00 $ 86,887,00
Revenue as a percentage of collecti 75.4% 15.1% 58.(%

(1) Includes $36.4 million derived from fully amortizpdols. Finance income recognized from accounssateounted to $0.1 milliol
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As of September 30, 2013, the Company had $57,000r0consumer receivables acquired for liquidatafrwhich $8,071,000 are
accounted for on the interest method. Based upoemiuprojections, net cash collections, appliegriacipal for interest method portfolios are
estimated as follows for the twelve months in theqds ending:

September 30, 201 $4,291,00
September 30, 201 1,051,001
September 30, 201 813,00t
September 30, 201 636,00(
September 30, 201 536,00(
September 30, 201 463,00(
September 30, 20z 281,00(
Total $8,071,00

Accretable yield represents the amount of inconreedbmpany can expect to generate over the remaamrggtizable life of its existing
portfolios based on estimated future net cash flasvef September 30, 2013. The Company adjustscitretable yield upward when it
believes, based on available evidence, that partéalllections will exceed amounts previously estied. There were no accretable yield
adjustments in fiscal years 2013 and 2012. Prajeateretable yield for the fiscal years ended Sapéz 30, 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

Year Ended
September 30,
2013

Balance at beginning of period, October 1, 2012 $ 2,086,00
Income recognized on finance receivables, (29,966,00)
Additions representing expected revenue from plaes 983,00(
Reclassifications from naccretable difference(. 28,013,00
Balance at end of period, September 30, 2 $ 1,116,00!

(1) Includes portfolios that became zero based pootfadiuring the period, removal of zero basis padfofrom the accretable yield calculat
and, other immaterial impairments and accretiorsgthan the certain collection curves being exter

Year Ended
September 30,
2012

Balance at beginning of period, October 1, 2011 $ 7,473,00
Income recognized on finance receivables, (37,561,00)
Additions representing expected revenue from paes 361,00(
Transfers to Cost Recove (1,840,001
Reclassifications from n-accretable difference(: 33,653,00
Balance at end of period, September 30, z $ 2,086,00
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During the year ended September 30, 2013, the Coynparchased $53.5 million in face value receivalalea cost of $3.3 million.
During the year ended September 30, 2012, the Coynparchased $6.0 million in face value receivalliesost of $2.5 million.

The following table summarizes collections receibgdhe Company’s third-party collection agencied attorneys, less commissions
and direct costs for the years ended Septembe&(0d3, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

For the Years Ended, September 3(

2013 2012 2011
Gross collections(1) $85,512,00 $108,487,00 $129,688,00
Less: commissions and fees 31,414,00 38,468,00 48,483,00
Net collections $54,098,00 $ 70,019,00 $ 81,205,00

(1) Gross collections include collections from thparty collection agencies and attorneys, colbastifrom in-house efforts and collections
represented by account sal

(2) Commissions and fees are the contractual cosioms earned by third party collection agenciesattaineys, and direct costs associated
with the collection effort, generally court codtscludes a 3% fee charged by a servicer on grdésctions in connection with the Portfol
Purchase. Such arrangement was consummated in Dec@007. The fee is charged for asset locatidp,tskcing and ultimately suing
debtors in connection with this portfolio purche

Finance income recognized on net collections remtes! by account sales was $2.0 million, $0.1 emliind $0.2 million for the fiscal
years ended September 30, 2013, 2012 and 201 &ctasly.
N oTE D — F URNITURE AND E QUIPMENT

Furniture and equipment as of September 30, 20d26amh2 consist of the following:

2013 2012

Furniture $ 310,00( $ 310,00(
Equipment 3,622,001 3,470,001
Software 1,211,001 638,00(
Leasehold improvemen 99,00( 99,00(

5,242,001 4,517,001
Less accumulated depreciati 4,136,001 3,696,001

$1,106,00! $ 821,00(

Depreciation expense for the years ended SepteBh@013, 2012 and 2011 aggregated $440,000, $3Bayed $250,000, respectively.

N oTE E — O THER | NVESTMENTS
Personal Injury Claims
Pegasus purchases interests in claims from clagweimb are a party to personal injury litigationgRsus advances, to each claimant,
funds, on a non-recourse basis at an agreed upemeshrate, in anticipation of a
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Personal Injury Claims (Continued)

future settlement. The interest in each claim paseld by Pegasus consists of the right to receiwe $uch claimant, part of the proceeds or
recoveries which such claimant receives by reasansettlement, judgment or award with respecttthsclaimant’s claims. The Company,
through Pegasus, earned $6.4 million in interedtfaas during fiscal year 2013 compared to $1.6iamiin interest and fees during fiscal year
2012. These amounts are recorded as part of atbemie. The Company had a net invested balancesoma injury claims of $35.8 million
and $18.6 million on September 30, 2013 and 204shectively. The collections yielded net incomalaitable to non-controlling interest of
$406,000 for the year-ended September 30, 2013 a@dpo $31,000 for the year ended September 3. Begasus records reserves for ba
debts, which, at September 30, 2013, amounted.frilion.

Matrimonial Claims

On May 18, 2012, the Company formed BP Case ManagemLC (“BPCM?”), a joint venture with Californibased Balance Point
Divorce Funding, LLC (“BP Divorce Funding”). BPCMqgvides non-recourse funding to a spouse in a matrial action. The Company
provides a $1.0 million revolving line of credit partially fund BPCM'’s operations, with such loagahbing interest at the prevailing prime rate,
with an initial term of twenty-four months. The mving line of credit is collateralized by BP Divaer Funding'’s profits share in BPCM and
other assets. As of September 30, 2013, the Corfppmwestment in cases through BPCM was approxim&t®.6 million. The Company
recognized $34,000 in revenue during fiscal yed328mpared to $165,000 during fiscal year 2012.

N oTe F — N ON-R ECOURSED EBT
Receivables Financing Agreement

In March 2007, Palisades XVI borrowed approxima&227 million under the Receivables Financing Agrest, as amended in July
2007, December 2007, May 2008 and February 2008y BMO, in order to finance the Portfolio PurchaBlee Portfolio Purchase had a
purchase price of $300 million (plus 20% of netipayts after Palisades XVI recovers 150% of its ppase price plus cost of funds, which
recovery has not yet occurred). Prior to the modifons, discussed below, the debt was full re@ardy to Palisades XVI and bore an interes
rate of approximately 170 basis points over LIBORe original term of the agreement was three yddns. term was extended by each of the
Second, Third, Fourth and Fifth Amendments to teedivables Financing Agreement as discussed bédlog/Receivables Financing
Agreement contained cross default provisions rdledehe IDB Credit Facility. This cross defaultutth only occur in the event of a non-
payment in excess of $2.5 million of the IDB Crdeficility. Proceeds received as a result of thecakctions from the Portfolio Purchase are
applied to interest and principal of the underlyiogn. The Portfolio Purchase is serviced by PdésaCollection LLC, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, which has engaged uiaaéfil subservicers for a majority of the Portfdfiorchase.

Since the inception of the Receivables FinancingeAment amendments have been signed to revisaigdeons of the Receivables
Financing Agreement. Currently, the Settlement Agrent and Omnibus Amendment (“Settlement Agreeménth effect on August 7, 2013,
Palisades XVI, a 100% owned bankruptcy remote giifryi, entered into a Settlement Agreement with BBCan amendment to the
Receivables Financing Agreement. In consideraoraf$15 million prepayment funded by the Comp&iO has agreed to significantly
reduce minimum monthly payment requirements andrttegest rate. If and when BMO receives the né&& illion of collections from the
Portfolio Purchase, less certain credits for payserade prior to the
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Receivables Financing Agreement (Continued)

consummation of the Settlement Agreement, the Comzentitled to recover from future net colleasahe $15 million prepayment that it
funded. Thereafter, BMO will have the right to reee30% of future net collections. No gain or legss recognized with regard to the
Settlement Agreement.

The aggregate minimum repayment obligations reduiraler the Settlement Amendment, including intesiad principal, for the fiscal
years ended September 30, 2014, 2015 and 2016a6sr#dion, $3.6 million and, $1.5 million, respaatly. All cash collections received on 1
Portfolio Purchase are used to repay the non-reeadegbt and the interest.

On September 30, 2013 and 2012, the outstandimgdalon this loan was approximately $35.8 milliad &61.5 million, respectively.
The applicable interest rate at September 30, 20832012 was 0.43% and 3.73%, respectively. Theagednterest rate of the Receivables
Financing Agreement was 3.05% and 3.76% for thesyeaded September 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

The Company’s average debt obligation for the yeaded September 30, 2013 and 2012 was approxin®&él1 million and $66.8
million, respectively.

Other significant amendments to the Receivablearféimg Agreement are as follows:

Second Amendment — Receivables Financing Agreerdated December 27, 2007 revised the amortizatibadile of the loan from
25 months to approximately 31 months. BMO chargais®des XVI a fee of $475,000 which was paid oruday 10, 2008. The fee was
capitalized and is being amortized over the remagitife of the Receivables Financing Agreement.

Third Amendment — Receivables Financing Agreemaatied May 19, 2008 extended the payments of thetlmaugh December 2010.
The lender also increased the interest rate frodnbbsis points over LIBOR to approximately 320 dasints over LIBOR, subject to
automatic reduction in the future if additional itapcontributions are made by the parent of PdbsaxVI.

Fourth Amendment — Receivables Financing Agreendated February 20, 2009, among other thingsp\iieted the collection rate
minimum to $1 million per month (plus interest &rds) as an average for each period of three cotigeenonths, (ii) provided for an
automatic extension of the maturity date from Apf| 2011 to April 30, 2012 should the outstandiatance be reduced to $25 million or less
by April 30, 2011 and (iii) permanently waived theevious termination events. The interest rate mesnanchanged at approximately 320 basi:
points over LIBOR, subject to automatic reductinrhie future should certain collection milestonesttained.

As additional credit support for repayment by Radiss XVI of its obligations under the Receivablesmfcing Agreement and as an
inducement for BMO to enter into the Fourth Amendiméhe Company provided BMO a limited recoursdosdinated guaranty, secured by
the assets of the Company, in an amount not toeek$8.0 million plus reasonable costs of enforceraad collection. Under the terms of the
guaranty, BMO could not exercise any recourse agéie Company until the earlier of (i) five yefnmm the date of the Fourth Amendment
and (ii) the termination of the Company’s exists®pior lending facility or any successor senioilitstc

Fifth Amendment — Receivables Financing Agreemeéated October 14, 2010, (i) extended the expiradate of the Receivables
Financing Agreement to April 30, 2014, (ii) redudbd minimum monthly total payment to $750,000) éccelerated the Compamsyguarante
credit enhancement of $8,700,000, which was paghgxecution of the Fifth Amendment, (iv) elimindtie Company’s limited guarantee of
repayment of the loans
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Receivables Financing Agreement (Continued)

outstanding by Palisades XVI, and (v) revised tbfnition of “Borrowing Base Deficit’as defined in the Receivables Financing Agreente
mean the excess, if any, of 105% of the loans andhg over the borrowing base.

In connection with the Fifth Amendment, on OctoB6ér 2010, the Company entered into the Omnibus ihetion Agreement (the
“Termination Agreement”). The limited recourse suboated guaranty set forth in the Fourth Amendnveas eliminated upon signing the
Termination Agreement.

Senior Secured Discretionary Credit Facility

On December 30, 2011, the Company and certairs sbibsidiaries obtained a $20,000,000 Senior Oisaay Credit Facility (the
“Credit Facility”) from Bank Leumi pursuant to a &o Agreement (the “Loan Agreement”) between cerditne Company’s subsidiaries and
Bank Leumi. Under the Loan Agreement, certain glibges issued a Revolving Note (the “Not&)Bank Leumi in the principal amount of
to $20 million. Any outstanding balance under thredt Facility would accrue interest at an anna#t requal to the Prime Rate plus 50 basis
points. The Company and certain subsidiaries haekdgto serve as guarantors of the obligationseidbrrower subsidiaries and entered into
Guarantee Agreements. Pursuant to a series ofi§egagreements and Pledge Agreements, the Creditifyavas collateralized by the first
priority perfected liens on substantially all oet@ompany’s assets and the assets of its subesliaicept those of Palisades XVI. The Credit
Facility was subject to an administrative fee 05800 upon the first drawdown of the Credit Fagilifthe Loan Agreement contained standarc
and customary representations and warranties, eowgrevents of default and other provisions, iiclg financial covenants that required the
Company to: (i) maintain a minimum net worth of §1&illion; and (ii) incur no net loss in any fisgaar. The term of the Credit Facility
expired February 23, 2013. The Company never adlithis facility.

N oTE G — O THER L IABILITIES
Other liabilities as of September 30, 2013 and 2i&2as follows:

2013 2012
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $2,274,00! $2,091,00!
Accrued interest payab 4,00( 192,00(
Other 208,00( 637,00(
Total other liabilities $2,486,00! $2,920,00!
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The components of the provision for income taxegte years ended September 30, 2013, 2012 andat@Xis follows:

2013 2012 2011
Current:
Federa $ 561,00( $3,437,00I $2,418,00!
State 383,00( — —
Federal true u 42,00( 73,00(
944,00( 3,479,00I 2,491,00!
Deferred:
Federa 212,00( 1,813,00! 2,963,001
State 8,00( 1,580,00!I 1,648,00!
220,00( 3,393,00! 4,611,001
Provision for income taxe $1,164,00! $6,872,00I $7,102,00!

The difference between the statutory federal inctareate on the Company'’s pre-tax income and tragany’s effective income tax
rate is summarized for the years ended Septemh&033, 2012 and 2011 as follows:

2013 2012 2011
Statutory federal income tax rate 34.(% 34.(% 34.(%
State income tax, net of federal ben 6.1 6.1 6.3
Deferred tax valuation allowan: — — 1.8
Permanent difference in municipal inter (7.5) — —
Permanent difference oth (0.7) — —
Federal prior year provision to tax return diffece (2.7) 2 —
Other (2.9 .3 (1.9
Effective income tax rat 27.(% 40.6% 40.2%
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The Company recognized a net deferred tax as$t)#43,000 and $10,410,000 as of September 33,284 2012, respectively. The
components are as follows:

September 30 September 30
2013 2012

Deferred and accrued revenue $ (414,000 $ (116,000
Impairments/bad debt resen 5,241,00! 5,449,00!
State tax net operating loss carryforw 9,524,00! 9,671,00!
Stock based compensati 2,133,001 1,737,001
Depreciation, amortization and ott (312,000 (571,000
Deferred income taxe 16,172,00 16,170,00
Deferred tax valuation allowan: (5,729,001 (5,760,001
Deferred income taxe $10,443,00 $10,410,00

The Company files consolidated Federal and statanie tax returns. Substantially all of the Comparsgibsidiaries are single member
limited liability companies and, therefore, do file separate tax returns. Majority and minorityr@d subsidiaries file separate partnership ta
returns. The expiration date for state net opegdtiss carryforwards (from September 30, 2009ejst&mnber 30, 2029. There are no federe
operating loss carryforwards.

The Company accounts for income taxes using thet assl liability method which requires the recoigmitof deferred tax assets and, if
applicable, deferred tax liabilities, for the exfgetfuture tax consequences of temporary differebedween the carrying amounts and the tax
bases of assets and, if applicable, liabilitiesdifidnally, the Company would adjust deferred tateeseflect estimated tax rate changes, if
applicable. The Company conducts periodic evalnatio determine whether it is more likely than thait some or all of its deferred tax assets
will not be realized. Among the factors considerethis evaluation are estimates of future earnitiys future reversal of temporary differen
and the impact of tax planning strategies that areimplement if warranted. The Company is requiceprovide a valuation allowance for any
portion of our deferred tax assets that, moreyikiehn not, will not be realized at September 31,3 Based on this evaluation, the Company
has a deferred tax asset valuation allowance abappately $5.7 million as of September 30, 2018e Teferred tax valuation allowance
decreased by $31,000 from 2012. Although the carvwdrd period for state income tax purposes ioup/enty years, given the economic
conditions, such economic environment could linndvgth over a reasonable time period to realizediferred tax asset. The Company
determined the time period allowance for carryfahia outside a reasonable period to forecastdallization of the deferred tax asset,
therefore recognized the deferred tax asset valualiowance. The Company continually monitors dast information to ensure the valuation
allowance is at the appropriate value. As requine@ASB ASC 740, Income Taxes, the Company recagnize financial statement benefit of
a tax position only after determining that the valat tax authority would more likely than not sustine position following an audit. For tax
positions meeting the more-likely-than-not threghthe amount recognized in the financial stateminthe largest benefit that has a greater
than 50 percent likelihood of being realized uptiimate settlement with the relevant tax authoribterest and penalties arising from uncer
tax positions will be presented as a componemade taxes. No amounts of interest or penalties vexzognized in the Company’s
consolidated financial statements for 2013 and 2012

The corporate federal income tax returns of the @amy for 2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012 are subjectam@ation by the Internal
Revenue Service (“IRS”) generally for three yedtsrahey are filed. The state income tax retumd ather state filings of the Company are
subject to examination by the state taxing autlessifor various periods, generally up to four geater they are filed.
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In April 2010, the Company received naotificationrr the IRS that the Company’s 2008, 2009 and 26d6r&l income tax returns would
be audited. This audit is currently in progresgh8ligh the Company believes that its tax estimatelspositions are reasonable, the Company
can provide no assurance that any final deternainati an audit will be materially different tharettreatment reflected in its historical income
tax provisions and accruals.

N oTE | — C OMMITMENTS AND C ONTINGENCIES

Employment Agreements

In January 2007, the Company entered into an emqmoy agreement (the “Employment Agreement”) wityGatern, its Chairman,
President and Chief Executive Officer, which exgios December 31, 2009. Mr. Stern is continuingigncurrent roles at the discretion of the
Board of Directors until a new agreement is signed.

Leases

The Company leases its facilities in (i) Englewdddfs, New Jersey, (ii) Houston, Texas and (iiig\M York, New York. The leases are
operating leases, and the Company incurred retatgicexpense in the amounts of $554,000, $413,86%205,000 during the years ended
September 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively fdtare minimum lease payments are as follows:

Year

Ending

September 30

2014 $ 540,00(
2015 505,00(
2016 295,00(
2017 248,00(

$1,588,00

Contingencies

In the ordinary course of its business, the Compsiityvolved in numerous legal proceedings. The gamy regularly initiates collection
lawsuits, using its network of third party law fistragainst consumers. Also, consumers occasianéibte litigation against the Company, in
which they allege that the Company has violategidefal or state law in the process of collectirggrtaccount. The Company does not believe
that these matters are material to its businesdiaadcial condition. The Company is not involvedainy material litigation in which it was a
defendant.

During fiscal year 2013, the Company received sebps from two jurisdictions seeking information /amadlocumentation regarding its
business practices. One jurisdiction closed itedtigation during fiscal year 2013 without takimy action against the Company. The
Company is fully cooperating with the issuing ageimcthe other jurisdiction. The Company has notlmany provision with respect to these
matters in the financial statements because thep@oyndoes not believe that they are material tbutness and financial condition.
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At September 30, 2013, approximately 28% of the @amy’s portfolio face value was serviced by sewatection organizations. The
Company has servicing agreements in place witteteesen collection organizations as well as athefCompanys other third party collectic
agencies and attorneys that cover standard contiygdees and servicing of the accounts.

N oTe K — ST1ock O PTION P LANS
2012 Stock Option and Performance Award Plan

On February 7, 2012, the Board of Directors adofitedCompany’s 2012 Stock Option and Performancardwlan (the “2012 Plan”),
which was approved by the stockholders of the Capma March 21, 2012. The 2012 Plan replaces thatf Gompensation Plan (as defined
below).

The 2012 Plan provides the Company with flexibilitith respect to equity awards by also providingdants of stock awards (i.e.,
restricted or unrestricted), stock purchase rights stock appreciation rights, in addition to thenging of stock options.

The Company authorized 2,000,000 shares of Comrtamuk $or issuance under the 2012 Plan. In Decerfd&?, the Company granted
options to purchase shares of the Company and ardasf restricted stock totaling 262,321 sharedih@hally, the Company granted 50,000
shares of the Company to non-executive employeésria 2013, leaving 1,687,679 shares availablé @sptember 30, 2013. As of
September 30, 2013, approximately 48 of the Compammployees were eligible to participate in th&2®lan.

Equity Compensation Plan

On December 1, 2005, the board of directors adape€ompany’s Equity Compensation Plan (the “BgGidmpensation Plan”), which
was approved by the stockholders of the Companyanh 1, 2006. The Equity Compensation Plan wagtdbto supplement the Compasy’
2002 Stock Option Plan (as defined below).

In addition to permitting the grant of stock optsces are permitted under the 2002 Stock Option, FiarEquity Compensation Plan
allows the Company flexibility with respect to etyuawards by also providing for grants of stock edgd(i.e., restricted or unrestricted), stock
purchase rights and stock appreciation rights.

The Company authorized 1,000,000 shares of Comrtaok $or issuance under the Equity Compensation.Pa of March 21, 2012, no
more awards could be issued under this plan.
2002 Stock Option Plan

On March 5, 2002, the board of directors adopteddbmpany’s 2002 Stock Option Plan (the “2002 Blanhich was approved by the
Companys stockholders on May 1, 2002. The 2002 Plan waptad in order to attract and retain qualified clioes, officers and employees
and consultants to, the Company.

The 2002 Plan authorizes the granting of incergieek options (as defined in Section 422 of therimtl Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended (“the “Code”)) and non-qualified stock ops to eligible employees of the Company, includiffgcers and directors of the Company
(whether or not employees) and consultants of thagany.

The Company authorized 1,000,000 shares of Comrtmrk $or issuance under the 2002 Plan. As of M&cP012, no more awards
could be issued under this plan.
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1995 Stock Option Plan

In 1995, the Board of Directors adopted the Comfzah995 Stock Option Plan (the “1995 Plan”), whetpired on September 14, 2005.
The plan was adopted in order to attract and refaiified directors, officers and employees of] annsultants to, the Company.

The 1995 Plan authorizes the granting of incergteek options (as defined in the Code) and noniigristock options to eligible
employees of the Company, including officers arméators of the Company (whether or not employeed)ansultants of the Company.

The Company authorized 1,840,000 shares of Comrtomk $or issuance under the 1995 Plan. As of Selpterh4, 2005, no more
awards could be issued under this plan. All outlitejnoptions under this plan expired in Novembet20

Stock Based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock-based employee awsagien under ASC 71&ompensation — Stock CompensafigxSC 718").
ASC 718 requires that compensation expense assdaidth stock options and other stock based awaedecognized in the income statemen
rather than a disclosure in the notes to the Cogipaonsolidated financial statements.

In June 2013, through a previous action of the Gamsption Committee of the board of directors ofGenpany (the “Compensation
Committee”) authorizing the Chief Executive Offiadrthe Company the discretion to grant stock eptiwards to non-officer employees, the
Chief Executive Officer awarded 50,000 stock opitmnon-officer employees. The exercise pricdneé options, issued on June 13, 2013,
was at the market price on that date. The opti@ss im three equal installments, accounted fomasgraded vesting award, starting on the firs
anniversary of the grant. The assumptions uselgemption pricing model were as follows:

Risk-free interest rat 0.1(%
Expected term (year: 6.2

Expected volatility 99.7%
Dividend yield 0.92%

In December 2012, the Compensation Committee gulet8,000 stock options, of which 65,000 optionsensvarded to three officers
of the Company and 20,000 options were awarded engloyee of the Company. The remaining 75,000eshaere issued to six non-
employee directors of the Company. The exerciseepf these options, issued on December 18, 2042 aivthe market price on that date. The
options vest in three equal installments, accoufdeds one graded vesting award, starting oniteednniversary of the grant. The
assumptions used in the option pricing model werlobows:

Risk-free interest rat 0.1€%
Expected term (year: 6.C

Expected volatility 101.(%
Dividend yield 1.67%

In addition, the Company granted 102,321 restristeates to the Chief Executive Officer of the Compda he shares vest in three equal
installments, starting on the first anniversaryha grant.
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Stock Based Compensation (Continued)

In December 2011, the Compensation Committee gie866,000 stock options, of which 150,000 optioreserawarded to the Chief
Executive Officer, and 30,000 stock options wemgareled to both the Chief Financial Officer and $amior Vice President. 60,000 shares
were issued to five non-employee directors of tben@Gany. The exercise price of these options, isRemmber 13, 2011, was at the market
price on that date. The weighted average assungptised in the option pricing model were as follows:

Risk-free interest rat 0.0&%
Expected term (year: 10.C

Expected volatility 103.9%
Dividend yield 1.05%

On December 22, 2011, the remaining 90,000 stotkhrpwere granted to selected non-officer empleyd#ahe Company. The exercise
price of all stock options was at the market pdoghe date of the grant. The weighted averagengstsons used in the option pricing model
were as follows:

Risk-free interest rat 0.0&%
Expected term (year: 10.C

Expected volatility 95.7%
Dividend yield 1.02%

In June 2011, the Compensation Committee grantg@DBGtock options to a consultant. The exercige mf these options was above
market price on the date of the grant. The weightatage assumptions used in the option pricingeinedre as follows:

Risk-free interest rat 0.09%
Expected term (year: 10.C

Expected volatility 105.%%
Dividend yield 0.95%

In March 2011, the Compensation Committee gran@@0D stock options to an employee. The exercise pf these options was at the
market price on the date of the grant. The weightextage assumptions used in the option pricingainedre as follows:

Risk-free interest rat 0.1(%
Expected term (year: 10.C

Expected volatility 106.2%
Dividend yield 0.94%
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Stock Based Compensation (Continued)

In December 2010, the Compensation Committee giie82d,800 stock options, of which 30,000 optionsenssued to each non-
employee independent director for a total of 150,8(@ck options. 60,000 stock options were awatdele Chief Executive Officer and
30,000 stock options were awarded to the Chiefrigiz Officer and the Senior Vice President. Theaming 54,800 stock options were
granted to full time employees of the Company, Wwhd been employed at the Company for at least entims prior to the date of grant. The
grants to employees excluded officers of the Comp@ihe exercise price of these options was at thket price on the date of the grant. The
exercise price of all stock options was at the mbpkice on the date of the grant. The weightedageeassumptions used in the option pricing
model were as follows:

Risk-free interest rat 0.17%
Expected term (year: 10.C

Expected volatility 106.9%
Dividend yield 0.9¢%

The following table summarizes stock option tratisas under the plans:
Year Ended September 30

2013 2012 2011
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Exercise Exercise Exercise
Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price
Outstanding options at the beginning of year 1,499,447  $11.25 1,294,27.  $11.4] 922,03¢ $12.7(
Options grante 210,00( 9.3¢ 360,00( 7.87 384,80( 7.5¢%
Options cancelle (50,000 7.7 (15,300 6.0C (6,300 6.07
Options exercise (36,700 3.41 (139,500 4.3¢€ (6,26¢) 3.3t
Outstanding options at the end of y 1,622,77  $11.3] 1,499,47  $11.2i 1,294,27. $11.4]
Exercisable options at the end of y 1,108,27  $12.62 1,000,90. $12.9: 992,600 $12.41

The Company recognized $1,683,000 of compensaftiparese related to stock options, for fiscal yedr®0ncluding approximately
$161,000 for non-vested options cancelled duriregthird quarter. The Company recognized $1,538z0@0$1,906,000 of compensation
expense related to stock options in the fiscalyeaded September 30, 2012 and 2011, respectA®lyt September 30, 2013, there was
$2,003,000 of unrecognized compensation cost ttatenvested stock options. The weighted averagmining period over which such costs
are expected to be recognized is 1.8 years.

The intrinsic value of the outstanding and exetdsaptions as of September 30, 2013 was approgignd074,000 and $654,000,
respectively. The intrinsic value of the optiongeised during fiscal years 2013 and 2012 was appedely $213,000 and $691,000,
respectively. The fair value of the options exexdigluring the fiscal years ended September 30, 20d2012 was approximately $339,000
and $1,299,000, respectively. The weighted averagrining contractual life of exercisable option8i9 years. The fair value of the stock
options that vested during the 2013 fiscal year aggzwoximately $1,289,000. The fair value of theaedg granted during the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2013 was $1,702,000. During 2018epds from the exercise of stock options amoumté&d 25,000. There is no tax effect
associated with these exercises.
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Stock Based Compensation (Continued)
The following table summarizes information abow ftans’ outstanding options as of September 303220

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average

Remaining Average Average
Range of Number Contractual Exercise Number Exercise

Exercise Price Outstanding Life (In Years) Price Exercisable Price
$ 2.8751-% 5.7500 18,70( 5.€ $ 2.9t 18,70( $ 2.9t
$ 5.7501- $ 8.625( 790,80( 7.4 7.81 486,30( 1.717
$ 8.6251- $14.375( 260,00( 9.C 9.77 50,00( 11.5(C
$14.3751- $17.250( 198,61: 0.1 14.8¢ 198,61: 14.8¢
$17.2501- $20.125( 339,66( 1.1 18.2: 339,66( 18.2:
$25.8751- $28.750( 15,00( 3.2 28.7¢ 15,00( 28.7¢
1,622,77. 54 $11.31 1,108,27. $12.62

The following table summarizes information aboutrieted stock transactions:

Weighted Weighted
Year Ended Average Year Ended Average
September 30, 201 Grant Date September 30, 201 Grant Date
Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value
Unvested at the beginning of period 10,92: $ 7.62 21,84 $ 7.6
Awards grante« 102,32: 9.57 — 0.0C
Vested (10,927 7.65 (10,92)) 7.65
Forfeited — 0.0C — 0.0c
Unvested at the end of peri 102,32: $ 9.57 10,92: $ 7.6:

The Company recognized $273,000, $83,000 and $a@®Dcompensation expense during the fiscal yeaded September 30, 2013,
2012 and 2011, respectively, for restricted stéakof September 30, 2013, there was a total of $T¥Bof unrecognized compensation cost
related to unvested restricted stock. The weightegtage remaining period over which such costsem@gnized is 2.2 years. The fair value of
the awards granted during the fiscal year endedeSder 30, 2013 was $979,000. The fair value obthards vested during the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2013 was $83,000.

The Company recognized an aggregate total of $10986$1,623,000 and $2,055,000 in compensatioaresgfor the fiscal years ended
September 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectivalyhéostock options and restricted stock grantsoffSeptember 30, 2013, there was a total
of $2,726,000 of unrecognized compensation coatedlto unvested stock options and restricted sjcahts. The method used to calculate
stock based compensation is the straight line aredrmethod.

N OTE L — S TOCKHOLDERS ' E QuITY

In December 2012, the Board of Directors of the §any approved the payment of a special acceleeatedal dividend of $0.08 per
share to stockholders of record on December 24 .2DHe aggregate dividend of $1,030,000 was paibDecember 28, 2012. No additional
dividends were declared during fiscal year 2013.
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N OTE L — STOCKHOLDERS ' E QuITY (C ONTINUED )

During the year ended September 30, 2012, the Coyngheclared quarterly cash dividends aggregating281000, which includes $0.02
per share, per quarter, of which $260,000 was accas of September 30, 2012 and paid Novemberl®,. 20

The Company expects to pay a regular cash dividehdure quarters, but the amount has not yet let¢ermined. This will be at the
discretion of the board of directors and will degp@ipon the Company’s financial condition, operatiegults, capital requirements and any
other factors the board of directors deems relevaragddition, agreements with the Company’s leadeay, from time to time, restrict the
ability to pay dividends. As of September 30, 20th2re were no such restrictions.

On March 9, 2012, the Company adopted a Rule 10BE in conjunction with its share repurchase m@og The Board of Directors
approved the purchase of up to $20 million of tleenPany’s common stock, which was effective throltdrch 11, 2013. The Company
purchased approximately 885,000 shares at an aafgregst of approximately $7.9 million under thertte2012 Rule 10b5-1 Plan.
Additionally, in June 2012, the Company repurchak@dmillion shares of its common stock for $9.4liom in a privately negotiated
transaction outside of the Rule 10b5-1 Plan. Th&se repurchase authorization superseded the @ation to repurchase shares in June 2011
pursuant to which the Company repurchased appra&ly;na9,000 shares at an aggregate cost of appadeimn$457,000.

N oTE M — R ETIREMENT P LAN

The Company maintains a 401(k) Retirement Planriogell of its eligible employees. Matching cobtitions made by the employee:
the plan are made at the discretion of the boadirettors each plan year. Contributions for thergeended September 30, 2013, 2012 and
2011 were $88,000, $108,000 and $106,000, respéetiv

N oTE N — FAIR V ALUE OF F INANCIAL M EASUREMENTS AND D ISCLOSURES

Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instrumes

FASB ASC 825Financial Instruments (“ASC 825"), requires disclosure of fair valuédrmation about financial instruments, whether
or not recognized on the balance sheet, for whithpracticable to estimate that value. Becauseethre a limited number of market
participants for certain of the Company’s assetklabilities, fair value estimates are based upolgments regarding credit risk, investor
expectation of economic conditions, normal cosdrhinistration and other risk characteristics,udahg interest rate and prepayment risk.
These estimates are subjective in nature and ieuaheertainties and matters of judgment, whichiBaamtly affect the estimates.

The estimated fair value of the Company'’s finaniziatruments is summarized as follows:

September 30, 201. September 30, 201,
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value

Financial assei
Available-for-sale investments (Level $58,035,00 $58,035,00 $58,712,00 $ 58,712,00
Certificates of deposit (Level : — — 42,682,00 42,682,00
Consumer receivables acquired for liquidation (LLe)e 57,900,00 70,875,00 86,887,00 100,706,00
Financial liabilities
Non-Recourse Debt (Level . 35,760,00 27,000,00 61,463,00 61,463,00
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N oTE N — FAIR V ALUE OF F INANCIAL M EASUREMENTS AND D ISCLOSURES (C ONTINUED )
Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instrumes (Continued)

Disclosure of the estimated fair values of finahtiatruments often requires the use of estimatee. Company uses the following
methods and assumptions to estimate the fair \@l€éieancial instruments:

Certificates of deposit — The carrying amount agpnates fair value due to the short-term naturthefdeposits.

Available-for-sale investments — The available-$ate securities consist of mutual funds that alkeedhbased on quoted prices in active
markets.

Consumer receivables acquired for liquidation — Tloenpany computed the fair value of the consuneivables acquired for
liquidation using its proprietary forecasting madehe Company’s forecasting model utilizes a disted cash flow analysis. The Company’s
cash flows are an estimate of collections for cameureceivables based on variables fully describétbte C: Consumer Receivables Acqu
for Liquidation. These cash flows are discounteddtermine the fair value.

Non-Recourse Debt -earries a variable rate. The fair value at Septer@Be2013 is based on the discounted weightechgeeiorecaste
future collections of the Portfolio Purchase. Theryging value at September 30, 2012 approximatiedddue because of the short term nature
of the remaining loan term of the then-existing &eable Finance Agreement.

Fair Value Hierarchy

The Company recorded its available-for-sale invesii at estimated fair value on a recurring bdsis.accompanying consolidated
financial statements include estimated fair vahfermation regarding its available-for-sale investits as of September 30, 2013, as required
by FASB ASC 820Fair Value Measurements and Disclosu(&sSC 8207). ASC 820 defines fair value as the prtbat would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability (&t price) in an orderly transaction between magagticipants on the measurement date. ASC
also establishes a fair value hierarchy which neguan entity to maximize the use of observablatsipnd minimize the use of unobservable
inputs when measuring fair value. A financial instient’s level within the fair value hierarchy isskbd on the lowest level of input significant
to the fair value measurement.

Level 1 — Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active rateior identical assets or liabilities that therany has the ability to assess at the
measurement date.

Level 2 — Observable inputs other than Level 1lewjsuch as quoted prices for similar assets lailifias in active markets; quoted
prices in markets that are not active for identaradimilar assets or liabilities; or other inpthat are observable or can be corroborated by
observable market data for substantially the riirt of the asset or liability.

Level 3 — Unobservable inputs that are supportetitthyy or no market activity and significant toetlfair value of the assets or liabilities
that are developed using the reporting entitieireges and assumptions, which reflect those ttaaket participants would use.

The Company'’s available-for-sale investments amesified as Level 1 financial instruments basetherclassifications described above.
The Company did not have any transfers into (optefel 1 investments during the fiscal year en8egdtember 30, 2013. The Company had
no Level 2 or Level 3 available-for-sale investnsethtiring the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013.
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N oTE O — RELATED P ARTY T RANSACTIONS

On December 12, 2011, the Company and A.L. Pic&dlin., Inc. (“Piccolo”), which is owned by Louisd®olo, a director of the
Company, entered into a Consulting Agreement, @mntsto which Piccolo will provide consulting sem&which include, but are not limited
analysis of proposed debt and equity transactiuns diligence and financial analysis and managemrgulting services (“Services”). The
Consulting Agreement shall be for a period of tveans and Piccolo will receive compensation of 3080 per annum payable monthly, a
bonus of $25,000 per new transaction closed by thmapany with Piccolo’s assistance (excluding angpiial pending transactions) and
30,000 options per year, with such options vestiripree equal annual installments on the firatpse and third anniversaries of the first gran
date. The total expense recognized related tatiisement during the year ended September 30,&008nted to $279,000.

N OTE P — SUMMARIZED Q UARTERLY D ATA ( UNAUDITED )

First Second Third Fourth Full
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year
2013
Total revenus $10,552,00 $10,085,00 $12,668,00 $ 9,107,000 $42,412,00
Income (loss) before income tax 4,390,001 1,560,001 (4,543,00) 2,901,001 4,308,001
Net income attributable to Asta
Funding, Inc. 2,588,001 882,00( (2,737,00) 2,005,001 2,738,001
Basic net income (loss) per share attributablesta A
Funding, Inc. $ 0.2C $ 0.07 $ (0.2)) % 0.1€ % 0.21
Diluted net income (loss) per share attributablédta
Funding, Inc. $ 02 $ 007 $ (0.2) % 0.1t % 0.21
2012
Total revenus $10,439,00 $11,470,00 $11,571,00 $11,022,00 $44,502,00
Income before income tax 4,999,00! 4,181,00! 5,136,00! 2,624,00! 16,940,00
Net income attributable to Asta
Funding, Inc. 2,977,001 2,460,00i 3,048,001 1,552,001 10,037,00
Basic net income per share attributable to Astadiuy
Inc. $ 0.2C $ 017 $ 02z % 0.1z % 0.71
Diluted net income per share attributable to Astading,
Inc. $ 02 $ 017 $ 021 % 0.1z % 0.7¢

*  Due to rounding the sum of quarterly totals fomé@ags per share may not add to the yearly t
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Exhibit 21.1

Subsidiary Companies

Jurisdiction Percentag¢
Under

Name Which Organized Owned
Asta Funding, Inc. Delaware

Asta Funding Acquisition I, LLC Delaware 10C%
Asta Funding Acquisition I, LLC Delaware 10C%
Asta Commercial, LLC Delaware 10C%
Asta Funding.com, LL( Delaware 10C%
Palisades Acquisition I, LL( Delaware 10C%
Palisades Acquisition Il, LL¢ Delaware 10C%
Palisades Acquisition IV, LL( Delaware 10C%
Computer Finance, LL! Delaware 10C%
Palisades Collection, LL Delaware 10C%
Palisades Acquisition VIII, LLC Delaware 10C%
Option Card, LLC Colorado 10C%
Palisades Acquisition IX, LL( Delaware 10C%
VATIV Recovery Solutions LLC Texas 10C%
Palisades Acquisition X, LL( Delaware 10C%
Cliffs Portfolio Acquisition I, LLC Delaware 10C%
Sylvan Acquisition I. LLC Delaware 10C%
Palisades Acquisition XI LL( Delaware 10C%
Palisades Acquisition XII LL( Delaware 10C%
Palisades Acquisition XIII LLC Delaware 10C%
Palisades Acquisition XIV LL( Delaware 10C%
Palisades Acquisition XV LL( Delaware 10C%
Palisades Acquisition XVI LL( Delaware 10C%
Palisades Acquisition XVII LLC Delaware 10C%
Palisades Acquisition XVIII LLC Delaware 10C%
Brook Mays Joint Ventur Massachusel 25%
LBLINY, LLC Delaware 10C%
ELR Holdings LLC Delaware 10C%
Asta GFN LLC Delaware 10C%
Prestiga Funding, LL¢ Delaware 10C%
ASFI Litigation Holdings LLC Delaware 10C%
ASFI Pegasus Holdings, LL Delaware 10C%
Pegasus Funding, LL Delaware 80%
Disability Help Center, LLC Delaware 10C%
EMIRIC LLC Delaware 10C%

Inst-A-Lease, LLC Delaware 10C%



Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémtiee Registration Statements on Forms S-8 (file333-185175, effective
November 28, 2012, File No. 3-142201, effective April 18, 2007, File No. 333-999 effective September 20, 2002, and File No. 33336,
effective June 8, 2000); and Form S-3 (File No.-388212, effective May 12, 2010) of our reportsedadecember 13, 2013 on (i) the
consolidated financial statements of Asta Funding, and subsidiaries as of and for the year eis#grtember 30, 2013 and (ii) the
effectiveness of internal control over financigboeting as of September 30, 2013, all of which apje the Annual Report on Form 10-K of

Asta Funding, Inc. for the year ended Septembe2G03.

/s] WeiserMazars LLP

New York, New York
December 13, 201




Exhibit 23.2
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We have issued our report dated January 18, 20ii3y@spect to the consolidated financial statesertluded in the Annual Report of
Asta Funding, Inc. on Form 10-K for the year en8egtember 30, 2013. We hereby consent to the incatipn by reference of said reports in
the Registration Statements of Asta Funding, Ind=orms S-8 (File No. 333-142201, effective ApBl| 2007, File No. 333-99911, effective
September 20, 2002, and File No. 333-38836, effectiine 8, 2000) and on Form S-3 (File No. 333-1862ffective May 12, 2010).

/sl  GRANT THORNTON

New York, New York
December 13, 201




Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION
I, Gary Stern, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fKsta Funding, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact orténstate a material fact necessary tc
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, niatadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andrk responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proesgar caused such disclosure controls and proesdorbe designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhsubsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duriig period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financggdorting, or caused such internal control oveatriitial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and preséntlis report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougyeldis report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thastegnt's internal control over financial reportititat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regrsts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuadm® that has materially affected, ol
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reporting;dan

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anbdve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal obotrer financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize aqbrt financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that inved management or other employees who have ais@ntifole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

/sl Gary Stern

Gary Sterr

Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Exeeutiv
Officer

(Principal Executive Officer

December 13, 2013

A signed original of this written statement reqdit®y Section 302 has been provided to the Compadwall be retained by the
Company and furnished to the Securities and Exah&@ammission or its staff per request.




Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION
I, Robert J. Michel, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fKsta Funding, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ortémnstate a material fact necessary t
make the statements made, in light of the circuntstsunder which such statements were made, niatadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amngtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andrk responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proesgar caused such disclosure controls and proesdoibe designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgibsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duriig period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financggdorting, or caused such internal control oveariitial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and preséntlis report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conaintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougyeldis report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thastegnt's internal control over financial reportititat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regists fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuabirg that has materially affected, ol
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reporting;dan

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regrg’s ability to record, process, summarize aqbrt financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that ined management or other employees who have aisatifole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ Robert J. Michel
Robert J. Miche

Chief Financial Office
(Principal Financial Officer

December 13, 2013

A signed original of this written statement reqdit®y Section 302 has been provided to the Compadwll be retained by the
Company and furnished to the Securities and Exah&@ammission or its staff per request.




EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Asta Furgdimc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the yeaded September 30, 2013 as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commisstbe (Report”), |, Gary Stern, Chief Executive O#fcof the Company, certify, pursuant to
18 U.S.C. ss. 1350, as adopted pursuant to Seafiéof the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to mgvidedge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirermeenf Section 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Ad934; and
(2) The information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the consailfihancial condition of the
company as of the dates presented and the consalidzsult of operations of the Company for theéqusr presented.

/sl Gary Stern

Gary Sterr

President and Chief Executive Offic
(Principal Executive Officer

Dated: December 13, 2013

This certification has been furnished solely punsda Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 280@ is not being filed as part of the
10-K as a separate disclosure statement.

A signed original of this written statement reqdil®y Section 906 has been provided to the Compadyé| be retained by the
Company and furnished to the Securities and Exah&@ammission or its staff per request.



EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Asta Furgdimc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the yeaded September 30, 2013 as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commisstbe (Report”), I, Robert J. Michel, Chief Financiafficer of the Company, certify,
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. ss. 1350, as adopted purtu&ection 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2@t to my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirermmeenf Section 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Ad934; and
(2) The information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the consailfihancial condition of the
Company as of the dates presented and the consalidzsult of operations of the Company for thequks presented.

/s Robert J. Michel
Robert J. Miche

Chief Financial Office
(Principal Financial Officer

Dated: December 13, 2013

This certification has been furnished solely punsda Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 280@ is not being filed as part of the
10-K as a separate disclosure statement.

A signed original of this written statement reqdil®y Section 906 has been provided to the Compadyé| be retained by the
Company and furnished to the Securities and Exah&@ammission or its staff per reque



